
 
 

                     MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
                                CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
                                    6801 Delmar Blvd. 
                         University City, Missouri 63130 
                                      August 3, 2015 
                                            6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER  
 
B. ROLL CALL  
 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
D. PROCLAMATIONS 

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

1. June 22, 2015 Regular Session 
2. July 13, 2015, Study Session 
3. July 13, 2015, Regular Session 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS  

1. Scot Edison is nominated for reappointment to the Green Practices Commission by 
Councilmember Kraft. 

2. Bob Wilcox is nominated for appointment to CALOP by Mayor Welsch. 
3. Garry Aronberg and Gregory Pace nominated for reappointment to the Board of Appeals 

by Councilmember Carr 
 

G. SWEARING IN  
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
J. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

1. Approval of bicycle facility improvement project award to Traffic Control Co. for total of 
$122,123.93.  The project is funded by a grant administered by East-West Gateway 
Council of Government which covers eight percent (80%) for the total of $97,699.14 with 
City’s match of twenty percent (20%) for $24,424.79.  
 

2. Approval to grant authority to the City Manager to sign contract with SWT Design to 
complete the design and construction engineering services for Heman Park – south 
draining improvement project not to exceed $47,500.00. 

 
3. Approval to award audit service contract to Schowalter & Jabouri for audit years of FY 

2015 for $41,500, FY 2016 for 42,700 and FY 2017 for $43,900. 
 

4. Approval to grant authority to the City Manager to enter into an agreement for emergency 
and non-emergency transportation services with Gateway. 
 



 
 

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
BILLS 
1. BILL 9267 – An ordinance amending schedule VI, Table VI-A – Stop Intersections, 

Chapter 300 Traffic Code, of the University City Municipal Code, to revise traffic 
regulation as provided herein. 
 

2. BILL 9268 – An ordinance amending Chapter 400 of the Municipal Code of the City of 
University City, Missouri, relating to zoning districts established pursuant to Section 
400.070 thereof, and enacting in lieu thereof a new official zoning map, thereby 
amending said map so as to change the classification of properties located within the City 
Limits of University City at 1052, 1056, 1060, 1064, 1068, 1072, 1076, 1080, 1084, 1086, 
1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 1106, 1110, 1114, 1118, 1122, 1126, 1130, 1134, 1138, 
1142, 1146, 1150, and 1158 Wilson Avenue from “SR” – Single Family Residential 
District to “PA” Public Activity District; and establishing permitted land uses and 
developments therein; containing a savings clause and providing a penalty. 

 
M. NEW BUSINESS 

RESOLUTIONS 
1. RESOLUTION 2015 – 18  A resolution for Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant voluntary 

buyout policy for FY2014, FMA/SRL buyout for three (3) properties in University City. 
 

2. RESOLUTION 2015 – 19  A resolution to adopt the St. Louis Regional All-Hazard 
Mitigation Plan 2015 – 2020. 

 
3. RESOLUTION 2015 – 20 – A resolution for Fiscal Year 2014 – 15 budget amendment #2 

 
BILLS 
4. BILL 9269 - An ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract between 

the City of University City and the Missouri Highway and Transportation Commission 
providing for the improvements on Forsyth Boulevard. 
 

N. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 
 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

• Status of Council Rule 24 requested by councilmembers Carr and Crow. 
DISCUSSION & VOTE 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
Q. ADJOURNMENT 

 



 
MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd. 

University City, Missouri 63130 
June 22, 2015 

6:30 p.m. 
 
 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER  
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on the fifth floor of City Hall, 
on Monday, June 22, 2015, Mayor Shelley Welsch called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.   

 
B. ROLL CALL  

  In addition to the Mayor the following members of Council were present: 
 
     Councilmember Rod Jennings 
     Councilmember Paulette Carr  
     Councilmember Stephen Kraft   
     Councilmember Terry Crow 
     Councilmember Michael Glickert                                                
      Councilmember Arthur Sharpe, Jr. 
 
 Also in attendance was the City Manager Lehman Walker.  

 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 Mr. Walker requested that Resolutions 2015-14 and 2015-15 be removed from the agenda. 
 
 Councilmember Glickert moved to approve the agenda as amended, was seconded by 

Councilmember Carr and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
D. PROCLAMATIONS 

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

1. June 8, 2015, Regular Session minutes were moved for approval by Councilmember 
Sharpe, seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 
Councilmember Carr stated that portions of Ms. Adams' statement were excluded and other 
portions were transcribed as facts, rather than opinions.  She asked Mr. Walker if he provided 
anyone with a copy of her deposition, including Ms. Adams.  Mr. Walker said he had not.  
Councilmember Carr asked if Ms. Pumm or any agent of the City provided a copy of her 
deposition.  Mr. Walker said to his knowledge no one had done so.  She asked Mr. Walker to 
provide her with a copy of her deposition. 
     Councilmember Carr stated that she has no way to determine whether the excerpts 
incorporated into the body of the minutes are accurate since she was never provided with an 
opportunity to review her deposition prior to it being filed.  She then moved to amend the 
June 8, 2015 minutes and provided a list of her requested changes, which are attached to 
these minutes.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Crow.  Voice vote to amend 
the minutes as presented by Councilmember Carr carried by a majority with a Nay vote from 
Councilmember Glickert. 
 

August 3, 2105 E-1-1



Councilmember Glickert moved to approve the minutes as amended and was seconded by 
Councilmember Jennings. 
Councilmember Crow stated that his questions stated in the minutes have not been 
answered and he would like a response.   
 
Councilmember Glickert's motion to approve carried unanimously.   
 

F. APPOINTMENTS  
 

G. SWEARING IN  
1. Elaine Henton was sworn in to the Senior Commission in the City Clerk’s office. 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Bobette Patton,  7901 Glenside Place, University City, MO 
Ms. Patton stated that she would like to see Council take a stand on something other than the 
predictable amount of money expended for overtime pay to the City's firefighters and concern 
of use on social media.  She noted that sometimes realities are different from a staffing 
model.  Ms. Patton also noted that there should be wise use of what is said on social media. 
 
Jen Stuhlman, 1499 Urbandale, Florissant, MO 
Ms. Stuhlman informed Mayor Welsch that she had requested to speak during the Other 
Discussions/Business portion of the meeting.  Mayor Welsch stated that citizens are not 
allowed to make comments during that portion of the agenda.  
     Ms. Stuhlman provided Ms. Pumm with informational packets for Council, the City 
Manager and the public record.  She stated that on behalf of the Professional Firefighters of 
U City, Local 2665, she thanked Council and members of this community for their interest in 
the staffing issues.  Ms. Stuhlman provided a brief overview of the information in the packet, 
since April 1, 2015, detailing her estimate of the number of mutual aid assists provided; the 
average number of overtime hours worked per shift; and the number of overtime hours that 
could not be covered.  She then provided her explanation of what happened at Firehouse #1 
on June 14.:  Ms. Stuhlman stated that firefighters could not continue to provide the number 
of overtime hours needed and urged Council to provide the additional staffing resources as 
needed.   
     The full packet of information provided is included with these minutes. 
 
Point of Information:  Councilmember Carr asked the Mayor under what section Ms. 
Stuhlman had requested to speak.  Mayor Welsch stated Council Reports and Business.  
Councilmember Carr questioned whether anyone had ever been allowed to speak during that 
section?  Mayor Welsch stated that that portion of the agenda was strictly for Council 
business. 
 
Catherine Lockett, 1009 Glenside Place, University City, MO 
Ms. Lockett stated that her home sits at the bottom of a hill and the water drainage from the 
Nob Hill properties has exacerbated since the condos on 81st Street were constructed in 
2005.  The April rains have destroyed the hill, vegetation, her 8-foot fence, in-ground pool and 
ultimately broke through the retaining walls in front of her house and destroyed her basement.  
Ms. Lockett stated that neither U City nor MSD will build a drain above the hill and since she 
does not live in a flood plain she does not have flood insurance.  Her only recourse is to ask 
the City for help.   
 
 
 
August 3, 2105 E-1-2



Sarah Davoli, 7378 Milan Avenue, University City, MO 
Ms. Davoli stated that Councilmember Carr does her research and informs all citizens of the 
good, the bad and the ugly with respect to U City.  Ms. Davoli stated that good 
Councilmembers do not deserve the Mayor's bad attitude and the City Manager's ugly 
treatment.  She presented a bucket of fingernail items for Councilmember Carr’s pleasure. 

 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
J. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

1. Liquor license for DePalm Tree Jamaican Restaurant, 8631 Olive, adding Sunday sales. 
 

Councilmember Sharpe moved to approve, was seconded by Councilmember Glickert and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

BILLS 
1. BILL 9263 - An ordinance amending Chapter 400 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

University City, Missouri, relating to zoning districts established pursuant to Section 
400.070 thereof, and enacting in lieu thereof a new official zoning map, thereby 
amending said map so as to change the classification of property that is located within 
the City limits of University City at 7511 Pershing Avenue from “SR” – Single Family 
Residential District to “MR” Medium Density Residential District; and establishing 
permitted land uses and developments therein; containing a savings clause and 
providing a penalty.  Bill 9263 had its second and third reading. 
 

Councilmember Glickert moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 
Roll Call vote was:   
AYES: Councilmembers Carr, Crow, Glickert, Sharpe, Jennings, Kraft and Mayor Welsch    
NAYS:   
 
Bill 9263 became Ordinance 6993. 
 
2. BILL 9264 – An ordinance amending Chapter 400 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

University City, Missouri, relating to zoning districts established pursuant to Section 
400.070 thereof, and enacting in lieu thereof a new official zoning map, thereby 
amending said map the City limits of University City at 7505 Pershing Avenue and 415 N. 
Hanley Road from “SR” – Single Family Residential District to “MR” Medium Density 
Residential District; and establishing permitted land uses and developments therein; 
containing a savings clause and providing a penalty  Bill 9264 was read for the second 
and third time. 
 

Councilmember Carr moved to approved and was seconded by Councilmember Glickert. 
 
Roll Call vote was:   
AYES: Councilmember Carr, Crow, Glickert, Sharpe, Jennings, Kraft and Mayor Welsch    
NAYS:   
 
Councilmember Glickert stated that as the liaison to the Plan Commission, he has watched this 
bill come to fruition and would like to congratulate the City, as well as the members of the Plan 

August 3, 2105 E-1-3



Commission for their insight to bring this proposal forward.  He said that he has seen other 
structures developed by the Mehlman Brothers and looks forward to seeing this project upon its 
completion. 
 

M. NEW BUSINESS 
RESOLUTIONS 
1. Resolution 2015 – 13  Requested by Councilmember Jennings and Mayor Welsch 

A resolution on the elimination of all forms of discrimination against women.  Introduced 
by Councilmember Sharpe and seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 

Citizen's Comments 
Patricia McQueen, 1132 George Street, University City, MO 
Ms. McQueen requested that the resolution be tabled until the language can be revised to 
ensure that it contains specific actionable solutions rather than symbolic procedures. 
 
Council's Comments 
Councilmember Crow questioned whether anyone had conducted research to determine if 
such a resolution already existed?  He stated that while the resolution is admirable, the only 
thing it really does is encourage the City's Commission on Human Relations to follow the 
tenants of a Convention that was written 26 years ago.  Councilmember Crow said the 
comments made towards fellow colleagues like "Privileged White princess," and "Your nails 
cut like claws," seem somewhat contradictory for someone who is attempting to bring forth an 
anti-discrimination proposal. 
 
Councilmember Kraft stated that it is his belief that U City will be the second city in the State of 
Missouri to pass such a resolution.  He stated that the resolution is symbolic and while another 
resolution could be passed with stronger symbolism, essentially all of them would be saying is 
that the viewpoints held by Phyllis Schlafly and her opposition to the equal rights amendment, 
does not represent the State of Missouri or University City. 
 
Councilmember Carr questioned whether Councilmember Kraft was speaking on behalf of 
Councilmember Jennings and Mayor Welsch.  Councilmember Kraft stated that was his own 
editorial comment and the reason this resolution is needed is because the Equal Rights 
Amendment was never passed.  Councilmember Carr agreed that everyone has a degree of 
empathy and there is a need to start with little steps but you cannot rehabilitate yourself on the 
back of a resolution that has no teeth.  She stated that she would like to work with Ms. 
McQueen and anyone else who was interested in creating a more substantive resolution for 
women.   
 
Mayor Welsch stated that when the Human Rights Commission was reestablished, the City 
ensured that gender, sexual orientation, race and religious orientation were included.  In fact, 
U City is very advanced in the way that it treats its employees, all our staff including women.  
She stated that last year she spoke at the United Nation sat an event related to this 
Convention, detailing what U City has done in this area.  Mayor Welsch stated that while 
passing this resolution is symbolic, it is an important piece of symbolism.  As Councilmember 
Kraft stated, Kansas City is the only other city in the State of Missouri that has passed a 
similar resolution.  Mayor Welsch stated that there is a movement nationwide to get more 
cities to pass resolutions in support of this Convention in hopes that as the momentum builds 
and the Federal Government will look at it once again, and pass it on a national basis.   
     She stated that to the point about making the resolution stronger, since Council should not 
direct the work of the Human Relations Commission, she has asked them to look at this 
Convention and ensure that there are no loopholes in the City related to these protections, 
August 3, 2105 E-1-4



and that nothing has been missed.  She encouraged Councilmember Carr and others to draft 
a stronger resolution if they would like to do so in the future.  The passage of this resolution 
tonight will put U City on the map and hopefully encourage other municipalities within the 
region to do the same. 
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Sharpe's motion to approve carried unanimously.   

 
2. Resolution 2015 – 14  Requested by Councilmembers Sharpe, Glickert and Jennings.                    

A resolution amending approved motion to changed seven million dollars ($7,000,000) 
fund commitment.  (REMOVED) 
 

3. Resolution 2015 – 15 –  A resolution approving the Committed Fund Reserves.  
(REMOVED) 

 
BILLS 
       Introduced by Councilmember Glickert 
3. BILL 9265 – An ordinance amending schedule III, Table III-E of the traffic code, to revise 

traffic regulation as provided herein.  Bill 9265 was read for the first time. 
 
Introduced by Councilmember Sharpe 

4. BILL 9266 – An ordinance fixing the compensation to be paid to City Officials and 
employees as enumerated herein from and after its passage, and repealing ordinance 
No. 6988.  Bill 9266 was read for the first time. 

 
N. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
 Mayor Welsch read the appointments that were needed. 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

• Fire Department staffing requested by Councilmembers Crow and Carr. 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that she would like to remind all members of Council that the City of U 
City is currently being sued by the firefighters’ union in three separate lawsuits.  She stated 
that Mr. Becker regularly threatens additional lawsuits, and in a recent letter to the City's 
administration, he has threatened to sue the City over staffing of the Fire Department.  
Therefore she would like to go on record as stating that she does not believe this discussion 
should occur in a public forum, since the interest of U City, which each member of this Council 
has sworn to serve, could be threatened.  She stated that every member of Council has 
adequate opportunity to speak with staff privately regarding any issues that are, or could be, 
topics of lawsuits against the City.   
 
Councilmember Carr read Council's Oath of Office into the record and asked that it be 
attached to the minutes.  She stated that her loyalty is to the Charter of U City and not to any 
one given person, and since everyone is concerned about what is perceived to be a crisis in 
public safety her belief is that it is appropriate to discuss these concerns publically.   
 Councilmember Carr distributed pages from the MAG Report and provided an overview of its 
contents. 

• Page 20 of the MAG states, "The MAG recommends the following staffing:  after a one 
 year trial with current staffing, but using part-time firefighters instead of overtime 

August 3, 2105 E-1-5



 whenever possible, and paying for the upgrades with cash, not owed time."  It then goes 
 on to state that, "The City has the correct staffing of 31 line employees, but suggests that 
 after a one year trial the City puts certified part-time personnel in place as substitutes at a 
 minimum, eight part-time positions for seven full-time positions."   
• Page 21 of the MAG states, "This strategy," (part-time hiring strategy), "relies on the use 
 of part-time firefighter paramedics and firefighters who have achieved the 
 appropriate level of certifications to serve in these capacities".  It then goes on to state 
 that, "Assuming approximately 20,384 hours per year for the difference of the current 31 
 paramedic firefighter positions versus the recommended full-time 24 paramedic firefighter 
 positions".   

Councilmember Carr stated that the report suggests that the City substitute part-time for full-
time, not reduce the number of positions.  It presents a recommendation for how the City 
might address its overtime problem which was a direct result of the six suspensions.  She also 
noted that she has yet to receive a communication about what happened at the Fire 
Department on June 14th.   
     Councilmember Carr asked Mr. Walker if he would provide her with the legal opinion on 
whether or not the City was in violation of the CBA, since her interpretation is that the Fire 
Department should have 44 to 45 paramedic/firefighter positions. 
 
Councilmember Crow stated that it is clear that the events of June the 14th have created a 
concern for a number of citizens.  At the June the 8th Council Meeting the City Manager 
brought the Fire Chief in to address public safety; his comments consisted of two sentences.  
He was not allowed to answer any questions and everyone was led to believe that everything 
was fine.  Councilmember Crow noted that the issues are: 

1. Why did the events that occurred on June 14th happen? 
2. Why was there no response provided to Council and the media? 
3. What city would really want to follow U City's lead when its fire station is shut down due 

to lack of staffing? 
Councilmember Crow stated that Council's core function is to protect the public and not the 
City Manager.  The City of Clayton provided mutual aid assists to U City 62 times during this 
time period and could say this is not a fair mutual aid bargain.  He stated that the City, this 
Council and this administration have credibility, competency and PR problems. Therefore, he 
would join Councilmember Jennings in requesting that a full investigation of the events of June 
14th and the management decisions that led up to the events be conducted by an 
independent agency and not someone hired by the City Manager.     
 
Councilmember Kraft stated that the current 2015 budget indicates that staffing should be 45 
paramedics/firefighters and the 2016 budgets calls for 39 staff members, including the Chief 
and Assistant Chief.  He stated that this discussion is about who makes the management 
decisions related to the Fire Department, and whether they should continue to do things the 
same way just because it has always been done that way or start to explore more cost-
efficient, effective options to arrive at a solution.  Councilmember Kraft acknowledged that the 
City does have well trained firefighters who do an excellent job, so their input and experience 
are important.  He said the Charter clearly states that U City's management team is 
responsible for making decisions based on their own knowledge, experience and the City's 
financial constraints.  Recently the City augmented their knowledge by obtaining a 
management review from an outside consultant.  These consultants have studied dozens of 
fire departments across the country and were able to provide this administration with a wider 
range of experience than is available from U City's firefighters and management team who 
have spent their working lives only in the St. Louis area.  
     Councilmember Kraft stated that currently there are some vacant positions within the 
department that have resulted in scheduling issues, and his understanding is that two of those 
August 3, 2105 E-1-6



positions will be filled within the week.  So while he does not expect operational problems 
once staffing is brought up to the budgeted levels, if that turns out not to be the case, then he 
would expect the City's management team to reevaluate the situation and make changes.  U 
City is under financial stress and needs to adapt.  Change can be difficult, but everyone needs 
to work together as this administration goes through this process.   
 
Councilmember Carr stated that although the City Manager and his team manage the City, 
that management is based on the policies put forth by Council.  Ultimately Council must 
decide whether residents are going to get the kind of public service they need.  With regard to 
the 39 current positions, Councilmember Carr read an email from Chief Long to Jen Stuhlman, 
which she asked to be attached to the minutes.   She stated that while the Fire Department 
may have these positions on the books, they are not being filled and that's what caused the 
circumstance where a Fire Station is closed down.   
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilmember Carr stated that some allegations were made that her deposition was 
provided voluntarily.  She noted that the front page of the Mayor's deposition reads exactly 
like the front page of her deposition; "Taken on behalf of the Plaintiff," which means that the 
Plaintiff requested that their depositions be taken and not that they were testifying on behalf 
of the Plaintiff. 
 
Councilmember Crow thanked everyone for coming out to the meeting and the Director of 
Public Works for his time spent addressing residents' concerns regarding the work being 
performed on the sidewalk and ramps for Kingsbury, Maryland and West Moreland.   
     Councilmember Crow stated that while there may be some concerns related to social 
media, his belief is that the greatest concerns are based on why there is so much silence 
from the dais whenever the issues of public safety is brought up.   
     Councilmember Crow stated that one of his colleagues, through his Facebook postings, 
has brought race into the conversation.  So the first question he would like to ask is what is 
meant by the term "My people"?  As an elected official his assumption is that it should mean 
every resident of U City.  He stated that his concern was about competency and agreed with 
Councilmember Kraft that the firefighters do not manage the Fire Department.  That means 
that any questions about leadership, capacity, competence and history, would fall on the Fire 
Chief and City Manager.   
     Councilmember Crow stated that he never really understood the comment made by one of 
his colleagues that he should meet with the City Manager privately but he noted has done so 
in the past.  Councilmember Crow referenced the City Manager's interview with Channel 4 
which discussed the one-million dollar savings in the Fire Department, you have to ask 
yourself why he does not want to answer questions in public?  
     Councilmember Crow’s response to the Facebook post, "You should ask Councilmember 
Crow what he has done for you lately," he stated; 

• A proposal to save summer camp 
• A proposal to maintain public safety at current staffing levels 
• A proposal to allocate additional money to fix the streets 
• Defeating Propositions S and P for $25 million dollars 

     Councilmember Crow stated that while he appreciated the citizen's letter to the editor that 
suggests that Council have a dialogue about a five year plan. He said it is probably fair to say 
that this community is not concerned about a five year plan, rather they are concerned about 
public safety staffing levels.   
     Councilmember Crow stated that he appreciated his former colleague, Mary Schuman, 
taking the time to write such an eloquent letter to Council, but in his opinion, the reply she 
received was totally inappropriate and unprofessional.  He urged everyone to keep holding 
August 3, 2105 E-1-7



Council accountable because at some point in time they will have to address the fact that it 
might be time for a change of leadership. 
 
Mayor Welsch asked that her colleagues not speak on her behalf without permission.  She 
stated that she has never refused to be part of a\a deposition since she feels that being 
deposed is a part of the process. 
      She noted that Mr. Walker had spoken to the broadcast and radio media multiple times in 
last week in reference to the closure of a fire station. 
 
Mayor Welsch made the following announcements: 
• The Police Department Focus Group Meeting will be held tomorrow evening at 6 p.m. at 

the Heman Park Community Center. 
• The Arts and Letters Commission will be sponsoring two concerts, one on Saturday from 

3 p.m. to 8 p.m. at Heman Park, and the second next Monday at 6 p.m. in Heman Park. 
• The next U City summer band concert series will be held tomorrow at 7 p.m. in the Loop. 
• There will be an electronics recycling event on Saturday, starting at 9 a.m. at the Heman 

Park Community Center. 
• City Hall and the Library will be closed on Friday, July 3rd. 

 
Mayor Welsch stated that typically Council only conducts one meeting during the months of 
July and August, however it is understood that should a second meeting become necessary 
due to workload, Council would be agreeable to doing so.  As such, she wished to put 
Council on notice that there is a possibility that a second meeting will be scheduled in July.   
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Shelley Welsch adjourned the meeting at 7:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Joyce Pumm 
City Clerk, MRCC/CMC 

August 3, 2105 E-1-8



August 3, 2105 E-1-9



August 3, 2105 E-1-10



August 3, 2105 E-1-11



August 3, 2105 E-1-12



August 3, 2105 E-1-13



August 3, 2105 E-1-14



August 3, 2105 E-1-15



August 3, 2105 E-1-16



August 3, 2105 E-1-17



August 3, 2105 E-1-18



August 3, 2105 E-1-19



August 3, 2105 E-1-20



August 3, 2105 E-1-21



August 3, 2105 E-1-22



August 3, 2105 E-1-23



August 3, 2105 E-1-24



August 3, 2105 E-1-25



August 3, 2105 E-1-26



August 3, 2105 E-1-27



August 3, 2105 E-1-28



August 3, 2105 E-1-29



August 3, 2105 E-1-30



August 3, 2105 E-1-31



August 3, 2105 E-1-32



August 3, 2105 E-1-33



August 3, 2105 E-1-34



August 3, 2105 E-1-35



August 3, 2105 E-1-36



August 3, 2105 E-1-37



August 3, 2105 E-1-38



August 3, 2105 E-1-39



August 3, 2105 E-1-40



August 3, 2105 E-1-41



August 3, 2105 E-1-42



August 3, 2105 E-1-43



August 3, 2105 E-1-44



August 3, 2105 E-1-45



August 3, 2105 E-1-46



August 3, 2105 E-1-47



August 3, 2105 E-1-48



August 3, 2105 E-1-49



August 3, 2105 E-1-50



August 3, 2105 E-1-51



August 3, 2105 E-1-52



August 3, 2105 E-1-53



August 3, 2105 E-1-54



August 3, 2105 E-1-55



August 3, 2105 E-1-56



August 3, 2105 E-1-57



August 3, 2105 E-1-58



August 3, 2105 E-1-59



August 3, 2105 E-1-60



August 3, 2105 E-1-61



August 3, 2105 E-1-62



August 3, 2105 E-1-63



August 3, 2105 E-1-64



August 3, 2105 E-1-65



August 3, 2105 E-1-66



August 3, 2105 E-1-67



August 3, 2105 E-1-68



August 3, 2105 E-1-69



August 3, 2105 E-1-70



August 3, 2105 E-1-71



August 3, 2105 E-1-72



August 3, 2105 E-1-73



August 3, 2105 E-1-74



August 3, 2105 E-1-75



August 3, 2105 E-1-76



August 3, 2105 E-1-77



August 3, 2105 E-1-78



August 3, 2105 E-1-79



August 3, 2105 E-1-80



August 3, 2105 E-1-81



August 3, 2105 E-1-82



 

August 3, 2105 E-1-83



UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 

5th Floor of City Hall 
6801 Delmar Blvd 

July 13, 2015 
5:30 p.m.  

 
The City Council Study Session was held in the Council Chamber, 5th floor of City Hall, on 
Monday, July 13, 2015.  Mayor Shelley Welsch called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m.  In 
addition to the Mayor the following members of the Council were present: 
 

 Councilmember Paulette Carr 
 Councilmember Arthur Sharpe, Jr. 
 Councilmember Rod Jennings 
 Councilmember Michael Glickert 
 Councilmember Terry Crow 
 Councilmember Stephen Kraft     Arrived 5:45 

 
Also in attendance were the Acting City Manager Police Chief Charles Adams and Finance 
Director Tina Charumilind. 
   
Mayor Welsch called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m.  She asked if there were any changes 
to the upcoming meeting’s agenda. 
 
Councilmember Crow asked to add a third reappointment to the Library Board, Rosalind 
Turner. 
 
Mayor Welsch turned the meeting over to Councilmember Glickert, Sharpe and Jennings. 
 
Councilmember Glickert stated that on June 8th, a majority of Council accepted the motion to 
amend a resolution that committed $7 million dollars in the Fund Reserve for a new police 
station. This amendment removed the $7 from the community reserves to allow Council to 
receive additional information and to have a study session to discuss the police facility The 
request for additional information was for clarification of auditing terminology provided by the 
Director of Finance.   
 
Councilmember Sharpe noted that the $7 million dollars has already been committed and are 
recommitting the funds to the various areas listed.   
 
Councilmember Jennings stated that setting money aside is like protecting money so it will be 
available when needed to build a needed new police station. 
 
Councilmember Sharpe noted that even though he is asking that money be set aside, Council 
will have meetings for public input on a new police or renovated station.   
 
Councilmember Crow stated he did not recall Council committing $7 million dollars for a 
police station.   
 
Mayor Welsch stated that under the City’s accrual method of accounting, once a cost is 
knowable and measureable, that money can be assigned.  Mr. Walker assigned the funds in 

1 

 
August 3, 2015 E-2-1



previous years after he  received an estimate for the renovation or construction of a new 
building.   
 
Finance Director Tina Charumilind noted that in the Capital Improvement Plans starting in FY 
2014, the $1.4 million dollars had been allocated for five years for a total of $7 million dollars.  
.  Ms. Charumilind noted this was accepted when Council adopted the budget that includes 
Capital Improvement Plan.   
 
Councilmember Crow stated that the City has streets that need work but the majority of 
Council wants to set aside money to build a new police station.  He noted that Council is 
being asked to set aside money for something they don’t know when, where or how much it 
will cost.   
 
Mayor Welsch noted that a more recent estimate for a new police station was between $15 
and $25 million dollars.  She noted it was appropriate to set aside the funds knowing that it 
will cost at least $7 million dollars.   
 
Councilmember Crow stated that there will be a wave of concern of whether the City needs a 
new police station or making what the existing station work.  He noted that allocating $7 
million dollars for a new police station instead of putting money into the City’s streets did not 
fit with the reality of what was proposed in the spring. 
 
Councilmember Sharpe stated that the Council’s tour of the police station showed the 
deplorable condition is of the present station.  He noted that at this point a new police station 
is a priority. 
 
Councilmember Jennings stated that there are two separate issues, the streets and a need 
for a new police station.  He compared setting aside money for a police station is like setting 
aside money ahead of time for your child’s education, even though you do not know where 
your child will go to school, how much it will cost or when the funds will be needed.  
 
Councilmember Carr spoke on assigned balances, referencing auditor’s CAFR report.  
“Assigned Fund balances include contractual obligations encumbrances and amounts 
accounted for in non-major special revenue” and noted $7 million dollars for a new police 
station would be considered major.  Councilmember Carr agreed that the police station 
condition is unacceptable and something needed to be done.  She was okay with the five year 
plan but was uncomfortable with a large portion of the reserves being tied up.  
Councilmember Carr stated that if there is a bond issue for this, she would work for it and she 
guaranteed that it would go over better than the last bond campaign.  She said this resolution 
is a commitment to tie up funds so no other options would be available. 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that committing funds for a new police station is not a pay back as some 
members of Council have alleged.  The City Council has many areas to consider:  police 
department, fire department, pension plans, and streets.  She noted that it is Council’s 
responsibility to make sure the emergency personnel are properly housed.  To put money 
aside is responsible budgeting.   
 
Ms. Charumilind explained that a Committed Fund balance needs to be done before fiscal 
year end.  She proposed that $7 million dollars be set aside as it is probable and 
measureable. 

2 

 
August 3, 2015 E-2-2



 
Councilmember Carr asked why Ms. Charumilind did not set aside money for streets.  Ms. 
Charumilind said the conditions of the City streets would require more money that what could 
be found in reserves. 
 
Councilmember Kraft agreed that citizens need to be informed on any proposed tax increase.  
He stated that something needs to be done with the police station, as it is bad.  
Councilmember Kraft said he did not see any rush in setting aside money at this time.  He 
noted the City’s pension plan for its employees are in need of additional funding and that 
issue needs to be studied. 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that no money is being assigned or spent; money is just being set aside.   
 
Councilmember Sharpe state that streets and police station are separate entities.  Council 
had toured the police station prior to discussion on how to best fix streets.  He noted the City’s 
police need to be working in a suitable surrounding and needs to be done as soon as 
possible.   
 
Councilmember Crow questioned why his packet included everything about the pension plan 
but was not mentioned in the resolution.   
 
Councilmember Glickert noted that there also was an attachment from the Public Works 
department on funds that have been spent on streets.  He noted the pension plan information 
was attached to note the importance of the pension fund funding.  Streets were also included 
but are also not part of the resolution.   
 
Councilmember Crow noted he supported every bond issue except one but it could be two if 
they get off on the wrong foot.  Councilmember Crow said money was put in the pension plan 
last year because the Pension Board asked Council to increase its funding.  He asked how 
many communities of similar size to University City are funded at the City’s level, above or 
below.  Councilmember Crow questioned Ms. Charumilind stating that the City can set aside 
the money because it is big and the number is known but you can’t set aside money for 
streets because the number is too big.  He asked where the just right number is.  
Councilmember Crow asked Ms. Charumilind for the City’s present reserve total.  Ms. 
Charumilind stated that at the end of Fiscal Year 2014, the City had $16 million in reserves.  
She noted that a couple million dollars of this reserve was used for pension funding and the 
uncommitted funds of $461,000 and the $39,000 would also need to come out of the $16 
million dollar Fund Balance.  Fiscal Year 2015 Revenues have been lower than projected and 
additional expenditures as approved by Council will also have an effect on the $16 million 
dollar Fund Balance.  Ms. Charumilind projected the 2015 Fund Balance to be approximately 
$12 million dollars.  Councilmember Crow pointed out that the resolution being proposed 
called for committing 80 to 90 percent of the reserves. 
 
Councilmember Carr stated that the $461,000, the $250,000 and the $39,000 have been 
committed and do not need to be recommitted.  Ms. Charumilind stated that in consulting with 
the auditor, the $250,000 and the $90,000 had been committed through resolutions.  The 
$461,000 was uncommitted as the resolution then stated to set aside the money not commit 
the money.  Councilmember Carr stated that the $90,000 was assigned in a previous budget 
but not committed and would like to know when it was committed.  She noted the only item 
that is being committed with this resolution is the $7 million dollars for the fire station.   

3 

 
August 3, 2015 E-2-3



 
Councilmember Crow questioned the difference between “set aside” and “committed”. 
 
Councilmember Carr questioned the terminology use in Resolution 2015 – 17 stating “That 
this resolution shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage, adoption, and 
approval by the Mayor”, when previous resolutions did not say by approval of the Mayor.   
 
Mayor Welsch noted that City Attorney Ms. Forster wrote the resolution and turned it over to 
Councilmember Glickert and stated there would be no problem with amending that.  
 
Mr. Glickert stated he would amend that statement during the upcoming Council meeting.   
 
Mayor Welsch asked to be on record as saying comments that have been made that Council 
has not set aside money for streets are utterly incorrect.  A detail of the money spent on 
streets since 2011 has been supplied in Council’s packet.  She stated that the present 
Council took $5 million dollars out of the reserves for streets so the constant repetition that 
Council is not putting aside money to fix streets is absolutely untrue and asked that this be in 
the minutes. 
 
Councilmember Carr stated that no one has said Council has not put money aside for the 
streets.  She was speaking on the $20 million proposed bond issue that failed and then 
Council allocates only $140,000 for streets in FY16 budget.  Ms. Carr noted that in 2011 and 
2012 money for streets was removed from the budget and put into reserves, therefore this 
money should now be used for streets.  Councilmember Carr asked that this be in the 
minutes of the Mayor’s editorial lambasting her for asking for $800,000 out of reserves for 
street work. 
 
Mayor Welsch in moving to adjourn the meeting told those in attendance that the amount of 
money actually spent on streets is detailed in the note from the Public Works Director Rich 
Wilson;. That note is in the study session packet. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 5:22 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Joyce Pumm, City Clerk, MRCC/CMC 

4 

 
August 3, 2015 E-2-4



MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

6801 Delmar Blvd. 
University City, Missouri 63130 

July 13, 2015 
6:30 p.m. 

 
 
A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER  
 At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on the fifth floor of City Hall, on 

Monday, July 13, 2015, Mayor Shelley Welsch called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.   
 
B. ROLL CALL  

    In addition to the Mayor the following members of Council were present: 
 
      Councilmember Rod Jennings 
      Councilmember Paulette Carr  
      Councilmember Stephen Kraft   
      Councilmember Terry Crow 
      Councilmember Michael Glickert                                                
       Councilmember Arthur Sharpe, Jr. 
 

 Also in attendance was Acting City Manager, Police Chief Charles Adams. 
 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 Councilmember Crow asked that the agenda be amended to include the reappointment of Rosalyn 

Turner along with Luise Hoffman and Deborah Arbogast to the Library Board.  His motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Kraft. 

  
 Point of Order:  Councilmember Carr stated that Resolution 2015-17 had been removed from the 

agenda by motion of Councilmember Glickert at the June 8, 2015 meeting.  Councilmember Carr 
had copies of Council Rules distributed to Council and requested that Resolution 2015-17 be 
removed from agenda pursuant to Rule 24; "An Ordinance or Resolution will be placed on the 
Agenda at the request of two members.  Any Resolution that has been finally disposed of at a 
meeting may not be brought back or renewed at a subsequent meeting for twelve months, and any 
Resolution that is the same or essentially the same, will be considered out of order during that time 
period".   

 
 Councilmember Kraft suggested that Councilmember Carr's Point of Order be made at the 

appropriate time in the agenda.  Councilmember Carr stated that the Point of Order related to her 
objection to Resolution 2015-17 being on the agenda. 

 
 Mayor Welsch noted that the City Attorney did review this and did not agree with Councilmember 

Carr’s interpretation of this resolution. 
 
 Voice vote on Councilmember Crow's reappointments to the Library Board carried unanimously. 
 
 Mayor Welsch asked if there was a second to Councilmember Carr's motion.  Councilmember Crow 

seconded the motion, and noted that his understanding was that she had asked for a Point of 
Order, which should be ruled on by the Chair.  He then questioned how some members of Council 
had been made privy to the City Attorney's opinion, and other members had not.  Mayor Welsch 
stated that any member of Council who has a question or would like additional information about an 
item contained in the packet is encouraged to contact staff.   

 

August 3, 2015 E-3-1



 Councilmember Carr made a request to see a copy of the City Attorney's opinion.  She then noted 
for the record that she had been told that she must go through the City Manager to request 
information. 

 
 Mayor Welsch stated that she would not accept the Point of Order and that Resolution 2015-17 

should remain on the agenda.   
 
 Councilmembers Carr and Crow requested an appeal from the ruling of the Chair. 
 
 Mayor Welsch then asked Ms. Pumm to conduct a poll of Council; a vote of Aye indicates support 

for the Mayor's recommendation. 
 

 Roll Call vote on the Mayor's ruling of Councilmember Carr's Point of Order was:   
 AYES: Councilmembers Kraft, Glickert, Sharpe, Jennings and Mayor Welsch 
 NAYS:  Councilmembers Carr and Crow   
 
 Voice vote to approve the agenda as amended carried by a majority, with a Nay vote by 

Councilmembers Carr and Crow. 
   
C. PROCLAMATIONS 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

1. June 22, 2015, Regular Session minutes were moved by Councilmember Sharpe, seconded by 
Councilmember Jennings. 

 
Councilmember Carr asked Ms. Pumm when she would be completing the amendments to the 
June 8, 2015 minutes that she had submitted.  Ms. Pumm informed Councilmember Carr that 
she had already completed the amendments, which are designated in italics.   Councilmember 
Carr stated that she had also requested that specific language be stricken from the minutes.  
Ms. Pumm stated that she was only aware of Councilmember Carr's amendments requesting 
that additions be made to the minutes.  Councilmember Carr stated that she would like the 
minutes to be honored as voted on by Council.   

     Councilmember Carr stated that she had listened to the audio numerous times, noting 
conversations that had been taken out of the minutes, and portions that needed to be moved to 
a different location.  Ms. Pumm advised Councilmember Carr that she had also listened to the 
audio and determined that some of her requests were not accurate. 

 
Mayor Welsch suggested that a member of Council make a motion to delay consideration of the 
minutes until the next meeting so that these issues could be resolved.   Councilmember 
Jennings made a motion to delay consideration of the minutes until the next meeting and was 
seconded by Councilmember Sharpe. 
 
Councilmember Kraft called for the question. 
 
Point of Order:  Councilmember Glickert stated that the motion to delay needed to come from a 
member of Council.  Mayor Welsch stated that Councilmember Jennings made the motion and 
Councilmember Sharpe had made the second.   
 
Voice vote on the motion to delay consideration of the June 22, 2015 minutes until the next 
Council meeting carried by a majority, with a Nay vote from Councilmember Carr. 

 
E. APPOINTMENTS  

1. Luise Hoffman, Rosalyn Turner and Deborah Arbogast were nominated for reappointment to the 
Library Commission by Councilmember Crow, seconded by Councilmember Glickert and the 
motion carried unanimously.   August 3, 2015 E-3-2



 
F. SWEARING IN  

 
G. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Jan Adams, 7150 Cambridge Avenue, University City, MO 
 Ms. Adams stated that she wished to make several corrections to the statements and 
 amendments to Council minutes made by Paulette Carr during the June 22nd Council meeting. 

• Ms. Carr said that she has never seen her deposition and that she has not verified it.  
Paulette Carr's time to review and/or object to her transcript has now passed. 

 
Point of Order:  Councilmember Crow stated that on numerous occasions the Mayor has asked that 
citizens refer to members of Council by their title and Ms. Adams has been allowed to disregard that 
request for six months.  Therefore he would ask that Ms. Adams be instructed to adhere to this rule. 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that while she has encouraged members of the public to address members of 
Council by their title, Council cannot impose such a rule on members of the public.   
 
Ms. Adams stated that she is expressing her right of free speech and is not required to follow the 
same protocol as a member of Council.  She then resumed making her initial comments. 

• Ms. Carr purported to quote Ms. Adam's statements from the official audio of the June 8th 
meeting and provided the time in which it could be heard on the audio recording.  Ms. Adams 
stated the times provided by Ms. Carr are totally inaccurate.  She also noted that Ms. Carr 
misquoted some of her statements when amending the June 8, 2015 minutes.  Ms. Adams 
requested that any vote to approve future amendments submitted by Ms. Carr be postponed 
until they have been verified by the City Clerk.   

• Ms. Carr read from the Oath of Office and stated, "My loyalty is to the Charter; to the laws of 
U City, and not to any one given person".  Yet the State of Missouri imposes duties on all 
elected officials, therefore Ms. Carr's oath is to uphold the laws of the State of Missouri and 
those laws mandate her duties.   

 
Neal Gilb, 940 Charter Commons Drive, St. Louis, MO 
Mr. Gilb, Government Affairs Manager for Charter Communications, provided a brief overview of the 
Charter's footprint in the community in light of the recent TOD Broadband Collaborative Study; their 
fiber feasibility and connectivity along the Olive Boulevard corridor; and the many options that 
Charter can provide to both commercial and residential customers.  Mr. Gilb stated that he would be 
available after the meeting to answer any questions.   
 
Joe Adams, 924 Wild Cherry, St. Louis, MO 
Missouri State Representative Adams invited everyone to come out and learn about everything that 
is going on In Jefferson City by attending the two town hall meetings he will be hosting the last week 
of July.   

• July 27th at the Community Center located on Pennsylvania from 6:30 p.m. to 8 p.m.   
• July 30th in the City of Pagedale, from 6:30 p.m. to 8 p.m.   

 
Leif Johnson, 836 Barkley Square, University City, MO 
Mr. Johnson expressed his opposition to reductions in the recreational budgets for Centennial 
Commons, aquatic programs and the Community Center.  He then asked Council to eliminate 
portions of the recreation management policies that discriminate against those who cannot pay.  Mr. 
Johnson full comments can be viewed at the end of these minutes. 

 
H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Zoning Map amendment.  Changing classification of 1052, 1056, 1060, 1064, 1068, 1072 1076, 
1080, 1084, 1086, 1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 1106, 1110, 1114, 1118, 1122, 
1126, 1130, 1134, 1138, 1142, 1146, 1150, and 1158 Wilson Avenue from “SR” Single Family 
Residential District to “PA” Public Activity District. August 3, 2015 E-3-3



 
Mayor Welsch opened the public hearing at 7:08 p.m. 
 
Citizen's Comments 
Arthur Carter, 1127 Birch Lane, University City, MO 
Mr. Carter stated that since there is already an agenda to construct more buildings, which will 
necessitate the need for additional concrete at the Northwest Plaza site and increase the flow of 
water into the flood zone that affects the area at Midland and Olive, he would highly suggest that that 
the City enlarge the water retention capabilities in the 1100 block of Wilson and surrounding areas. 
     Mr. Carter stated that new sewers had been installed two years ago which slightly improved the 
flow of storm water, but heavy rains still cause the sewers to back up and run across Wilson, up to 
Birch Lane.  Mr. Carter stated that he is all for improving the appearance of this area, but does not 
believe that the utilization of this land as a green space is going to solve the problems encountered 
by residents located within the floodplain.   
 
Carol Mitchell, 7330 Olive, University City, MO 
Pastor Carol Mitchell stated that although she would concur with the comments made by Mr. Carter, 
as the owner of a church and daycare located in the Wilson area it would be fantastic to walk out of 
their backyard and into a revitalized area along Wilson Avenue.   
 
Hearing no other requests to speak Mayor Welsch closed the public hearing at 7:13 p.m.  

 
J. CONSENT AGENDA  
 
K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

1. Lewis Park – Phase 1 Improvements – Change Order 1 in the amount of $30,221.40. 
 

Councilmember Carr moved to approve was seconded by Councilmember Glickert and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
2. Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant application. 

 
Councilmember Carr moved to approve was seconded by Councilmember Sharpe and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
3. Liquor License for Meshuggah, 6269 Delmar Blvd., to include Sunday sales. 

 
Councilmember Jennings moved to approve, was seconded by Councilmember Carr and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
4. Liquor License for Private Kitchen, 8106 Olive Blvd.  

 
Councilmember Sharpe moved to approve, was seconded by Councilmember Jennings and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
5. Website redesign and development to be awarded to CivicPlus for a total cost of $25,300. 

 
Councilmember Carr moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 
Councilmember Glickert asked if Council was being asked to approve $25,300 for the first year and 
$9100 for each year thereafter.  
 
Finance Director, Tina Charumilind stated that Councilmember Glickert was correct, in that the 
$9100 annual cost referred to maintenance agreement during the second and third years of the 
contract which included an update of the city’s website every four years... August 3, 2015 E-3-4



 
Councilmember Crow questioned whether this item had already been included in the budget, and if 
so, under what line item?  Ms. Charumilind stated it was included in the IT Department's budget 
under Technology Services. 
 
Councilmember Jennings questioned whether the $9100 was for the second or and third years?  Ms. 
Charumilind stated that was correct. 
 
Councilmember Crow asked if Council was only being asked to approve the first year, which is 
$25,300?  Ms. Charumilind stated that that was correct.   
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Carr's motion to approve carried unanimously. 

 
6. Network Disaster Recovery for offsite data recovery to be awarded to Alliance Technology for 

$66,497. 
 

Councilmember Glickert moved to approve, was seconded by Councilmember Jennings and the 
motion carried unanimously.   
 

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
BILLS 

1. BILL 9265 – An ordinance amending Schedule III, Table III-E of the traffic code, to revise traffic 
regulation as provided herein.  Bill 9265 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember Glickert moved to approve Bill 9265, and was seconded by Councilmember Sharpe. 
 

 Roll Call vote was:   
 AYES: Councilmembers Kraft, Glickert, Sharpe, Carr, Crow, Jennings and Mayor Welsch.  
 NAYS:   
 
 BILL 9265 carried unanimously and became Ordinance Number 6993. 

 
2. BILL 9266 – An ordinance fixing the compensation to be paid to City Officials and employees 

as enumerated herein from and after its passage, and repealing Ordinance No. 6988.  Bill 9266 
was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember Glickert moved to approve Bill 9266 and was seconded by Councilmember Sharpe. 
 
Councilmember Carr asked Ms. Charumilind if she knew why paramedic firefighters and paramedic 
firefighter captains had been excluded from the list of employees.  Ms. Charumilind stated that they 
were included in the ordinance.  Councilmember Carr stated that she would like to be provided with a 
copy of the last ordinance in which the City specifically delineated that paramedics be included 
among the list of employees, because right now they are not included.  Ms. Charumilind stated that 
they were separated by grade levels, so sections 11(a), 11(m) and 16(m) would represent the grades 
for firefighters and paramedic firefighters.   
 

(The meeting was recessed at 7:15 p.m. for a medical emergency.) 
 
Mayor Welsch reconvened the meeting at 7:36 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Carr asked why they were not listed in Schedule B.  Ms. Charumilind stated that they 
could be added in the future.  Councilmember Carr questioned whether she could make an 
amendment to include this class of employee in Schedule B?   
 

August 3, 2015 E-3-5



Mayor Welsch stated that Council is working to pass the ordinance tonight, and wondered whether 
the employees could just be added to Schedule B?  Ms. Charumilind stated that they could.  Mayor 
Welsch stated that she would confer with the City Manager to see if this constituted a substantial 
change, requiring another vote or whether the employees could be added after the ordinance was 
passed.  Ms. Charumilind stated that since the firefighters/paramedics were included in the ordinance 
but not detailed in Schedule B, the addition would be informational only. 
 

 Roll Call vote was:   
 AYES: Councilmembers Kraft, Glickert, Sharpe, Carr, Crow, Jennings and Mayor Welsch.  
 NAYS:   
 
 BILL 9266 carried unanimously and became Ordinance Number 6994. 
 
M. NEW BUSINESS 
RESOLUTIONS 

1. RESOLUTION 2015 - 16  A resolution for commercial recycling and waste reduction grant.  
Introduced by Councilmember Glickert and seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 

 Roll Call vote was:   
 AYES: Councilmembers Kraft, Glickert, Sharpe, Carr, Crow, Jennings and Mayor Welsch.  
 NAYS:   

 
 
2. RESOLUTION - 2015 – 17  A resolution directing funds from the City of University City’s 

Unassigned Fund Balance within the General Fund to the Committed Fund Balance.  
Requested by Councilmember Glickert, Sharpe and Jennings.  Introduced by Councilmember 
Sharpe, seconded by Councilmember Glickert. 
 

Councilmember Carr stated that by not taking this resolution off the table tonight, it has nullified 
Council Rule 24.  She reminded Council that Councilmember Glickert was the one who had asked 
that public input be ascertained before these funds were set aside.  
 
Councilmember Kraft stated that this is a different resolution generated by the fact that these funds 
were misplaced in the budget, so that portion of the resolution is necessary bookkeeping that needs 
to be addressed for clarity.  However since he does believe that it would be premature to set the 
funds aside for the police station, he would like to make the following motion; that the resolution be 
kept intact and that the $7 million dollars be removed, with the understanding that Council will 
discuss how it should be designated at a future time.  
 
Councilmember Crow second Councilmember’s Kraft motion.  He stated that he also believed that 
Rule 24 has been violated and appreciated Councilmember Kraft's motion to remove the $7 million 
dollars out of the resolution.  He stated that he does not believe it would be appropriate to commit 90 
percent of the City's cash reserves for the police station at this time.   
 
Councilmember Jennings stated that a resolution had been removed from a previous agenda and 
was never considered.  He stated that the City's Police Department is one of the first municipalities 
to be internationally accredited.  They have been recognized by the U.S. Justice Department for their 
work, and they are one of the finest departments St. Louis County.  Councilmember Jennings stated 
the City’s police deserve a decent work environment and that the City needs to start preparing to 
build a facility that is worthy of the service they provide to this community.  He noted that the public 
would be engaged in this process at the appropriate time.   
 
Councilmember Crow stated that the impetus behind the construction of a new Fire Station was the 
Obama stimulus funds.  He stated that there seems to be a wide disparity amongst Council and staff 
as to how much money is in the reserves, therefore until this process is thoroughly thought out, the August 3, 2015 E-3-6



issue should not even have been brought up.  
 
Councilmember Jennings stated that in his opinion, it is simply being a good steward to start setting 
aside money for this project.  If there is wide disparity about the numbers, then why not just ask staff 
to give Council the answer? 
 
Councilmember Carr stated that she would respectfully disagree with Councilmember Jennings' 
statement that this resolution had not been disposed of, and would like to mention that a large 
portion of the City's reserves was obtained by a settlement with AT&T.  She stated that there is no 
lack of commitment by this Council, but to sequester this money at this point in time, without a 
definite plan or public engagement, would demonstrate a lack of fiduciary responsibility.   
 
Councilmember Kraft informed Councilmember Carr that roughly only $2.4 million dollars in reserves 
was derived from the various cell phone settlements.  He stated that he would agree that the bond 
issue was not handled very well.  If this City is going to ask citizens for more taxes, their input should 
be encouraged.  He would also agree that a better facility for the Police Department is absolutely 
necessary, but he is not sure whether this issue fits 100 percent in the same category as the bond 
issues.   Councilmember Kraft stated that there should be some public engagement, but there is a 
need to do the simple accounting first and look at the City's fiscal needs before committing the $7 
million dollars. 
     Last year the City found out that it needed to spend an extra $2 million dollars to get two pension 
plans up to the 80 percent threshold.  Today they are sitting at about 79.5 and 80.3 percent, so his 
guess is that once the Pension Board looks at the numbers the City will have to come up with 
another couple of million dollars within the next six months.   
 
Mayor Welsch called for a roll call vote on Councilmember Kraft's motion to remove the $7 million 
dollars from Resolution 2015-17; a yes vote is for removal; a no vote is for retention. 
 

 Roll Call vote was:   
 AYES: Councilmembers Kraft, Carr and Crow. 
 NAYS:  Councilmembers Glickert, Sharpe, Jennings and Mayor Welsch. 
 

Citizen's Comments 
Rick Salamon, 8342 Delcrest, University City, MO 
Mr. Salamon stated that a budget is a working document.  It can be changed from meeting to 
meeting and items can be moved whether committed or non-committed.  So if there is going to be a 
work session held concerning auditing questions, then the auditor should be present. 
     He stated that whether to set the money aside or not, is really putting the cart before the horse 
since there are so many questions that need to be resolved first as need, where to build or renovate, 
how much will it cost and how will the City pay for it.   
 
Jeff Cooper, 7187 Washington Avenue, University City, MO 
Mr. Cooper concurred with Mr. Salamon's comments and stated that he does not feel as though his 
voice is being heard. 
 
Council's Comments 
Councilmember Glickert made a motion that Resolution 2015-17 be amended to read, "This 
Resolution shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage, adoption and signed by the 
Mayor," thereby striking the words, "and approval by the Mayor".  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Sharpe. 
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Glickert's motion to amend carried unanimously. 
 

August 3, 2015 E-3-7



Councilmember Crow thanked Mr. Salamon and Mr. Cooper for their comments.  He stated that no 
member of the public had come here tonight to say this resolution was a good idea, so he would 
suggest that Council acknowledge that they want to be engaged. 
 
Councilmember Kraft made a motion that Resolution 2015-17 be postponed to a date certain; the 
second meeting in September and was seconded by Councilmember Carr. 
 
Mayor Welsch called for a roll call vote on the motion to postpone; a yes vote would delay 
consideration, a no vote would keep the Resolution on the agenda. 
 

 Roll Call vote was:   
 AYES: Councilmembers Kraft, Carr and Crow. 
 NAYS:  Councilmembers Sharpe, Jennings, Glickert and Mayor Welsch. 
 

Councilmember Carr stated that Councilmember Glickert has been steadfast in terms of protecting 
this resolution, asking that the funds be moved back into the unassigned balance until Council and 
this administration has had an opportunity to elicit public engagement.  She stated that she would 
hope that Councilmember Glickert would take some time to think about how this change in course 
will play out later on, because people do not have short memories. 
 
Councilmember Jennings stated that in his opinion the set aside equates to engagement and public 
participation equates to completion.  He stated that Council is not voting to spend $7 million dollars, 
they are making a commitment to the officers and residents of U City. 
     Councilmember Jennings stated that everyone has an opinion and when members of this Council 
disagree with that opinion no one should be attacked because of their differences.  So to say that 
certain members of Council don't care about residents simply because we disagree, is not accurate.    
     Councilmember Jennings stated that he wanted to go on record acknowledging that the bond 
issue was rushed, but it was what the majority of Council believed to be a good plan.  The opposition 
worked hard to defeat it and they won, end of story.  There is no retribution or revenge, it's just 
politics.  Councilmember Jennings stated that certain members of Council communicate with one 
another, ask questions and try to negotiate, and he would encourage every member of Council to do 
the same.   
   
Councilmember Crow stated that the fact that his colleague believes that the bond issue was a good 
plan, should tell you something.  He stated that he has never attacked anyone, but believes that 
there have been inappropriate comments made. 
 
Point of Order:  Councilmember Carr stated that the screaming panic button utilized by 
Councilmember Jennings was inappropriate.  Mayor Welsch stated that her hope is that he did not 
push it intentionally. 
 
Councilmember Kraft stated that the City has set aside three-quarters of a million dollars for a flood 
buyout, but there is no plan for that, so setting aside money for something that does not exist is 
hardly unprecedented.  But in the spirit of cooperation, he would like to make a motion to postpone 
this resolution until the first meeting in September to allow Council an opportunity to sit down and 
talk and was seconded by Councilmember Carr.  Councilmember Kraft stated that his intent was to 
ask for a postponement until the first meeting in October. 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that she thinks putting aside this money shows the City's commitment to the 
Police Department, and she believes that is important.  She stated that in 2012 staff asked an 
architectural firm to provide rough estimates of what it would cost to renovate the current police 
station or to build a new facility.  As a member of Council she has known since 2012 where those 
estimates stood and no checks have been written.   
     Mayor Welsch stated that there was a public meeting held in March or April at the Heman Park 
Community Center and approximately 120 residents were in attendance.  Her belief is that it is the August 3, 2015 E-3-8



responsibility of Council and staff to make decisions on whether or not a new facility needs to be 
built or renovated.  She stated that this City has hired qualified staff to provide professional opinions.  
So they will render their opinions to Council; Council will do more work; at some point public 
meetings will be conducted, and Council and this administration will make the decision to renovate 
or build a new facility.  Mayor Welsch stated that she strongly agreed with Councilmembers Glickert, 
Sharpe and Jennings that it is appropriate to put aside the money now to show Council's 
commitment and the commitment of this community to the police Department. 
 
Councilmember Crow thanked Councilmember Kraft for his motion, but for the Mayor to say that the 
four members who voted to commit the funds are committed to the Police Department and those 
who voted against it are not, is the height of hyperbole.   
 
Councilmember Jennings called for the question. 
 
Mayor Welsch called for a roll call vote on the motion to postpone the resolution until the first 
meeting in October; a yes vote would delay consideration, a no vote would keep the Resolution on 
the agenda. 
 

 Roll Call vote was:   
 AYES: Councilmembers Kraft, Carr and Crow. 
 NAYS:  Councilmembers Sharpe, Jennings, Glickert and Mayor Welsch. 

 
Councilmember Jennings stated that no one is saying that Councilmembers Carr and Crow don't 
support the police because they voted not to allocate the money, so he is just amazed at how they 
exert so much effort to get people riled up because other members of Council have a difference of 
opinion.   
 
Councilmember Carr stated that she and Councilmember Crow actually talk to their constituents and 
listen to what they have to say.  So if they are standing up and coming to these meetings, it's 
because they know that the majority of Council has taken away their voice. 
 
Mayor Welsch called for a roll call vote on the original motion to approve Resolution 2015-17; a yes 
vote supports the Resolution, a no vote does not support.    
 
Roll Call vote was:   

 AYES: Councilmembers Sharpe, Jennings, Glickert and Mayor Welsch. 
 NAYS:  Councilmembers Kraft, Carr and Crow. 

 
BILLS 
        Introduced by Councilmember Glickert 

3. BILL 9267 An ordinance amending schedule VI, Table VI-A – Stop Intersections, Chapter 300 
Traffic Code, of the University City Municipal Code, to revise traffic regulation as provided 
herein.  Bill 9267 was read for the first time. 

 
        Introduced by Councilmember Jennings 
4. BILL 9268 – An ordinance amending Chapter 400 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

University City, Missouri, relating to zoning districts established pursuant to Section 400.070 
thereof, and enacting in lieu thereof a new official zoning map, thereby amending said map so 
as to change the classification of properties located within the City Limits of University City at 
1052, 1056, 1060, 1064, 1068, 1072, 1076, 1080, 1084, 1086, 1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 
1106, 1110, 1114, 1118, 1122, 1126, 1130, 1134, 1138, 1142, 1146, 1150, and 1158 Wilson 
Avenue from “SR” – Single Family Residential District to “PA” Public Activity District; and 
establishing permitted land uses and developments therein; containing a savings clause and 
providing a penalty.  Bill 9268 was read for the first time.   

 August 3, 2015 E-3-9



N. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 
Elizabeth Norton, 734 Trinity, University City, MO 

  Ms. Norton stated that she cannot stand coming to these meetings and listening to the mind reading 
skills of Councilmembers Carr and Crow.  She stated that out of 100 of her friends in the 2nd Ward 
she does not know a single person that has spoken to either one of them.  So simply because they 
have 35 people show applaud at these meetings does not mean they know anything about the 
public.   

   Ms. Norton expressed numerous protests regarding the inappropriate and unprofessional actions 
demonstrated by both these members of Council and concluded by stating that she would rather 
hear one minute of honesty from Councilmember Jennings, than any amount of dishonest 
eloquence or pontification by Councilmembers Carr and Crow. 

 
 Patricia McQueen, 1132 George Street, University City, MO 
 Ms. McQueen agreed that there was a public meeting about the police station, which was an 

overview of the consultant's initial report.  However at the end of that meeting residents were 
informed that there would be another public meeting once the final report was completed, and that 
has never taken place.  She stated that she is very much in support of a new police station since 
she knows on a firsthand basis how horrible it is. 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
 Mayor Welsch reported the appointments that were needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 

Councilmember Kraft stated that the Green Practices Committee is working on two programs. 
1. The Pace Program.  This program offers loans for the implementation of energy savings 

projects for residential, commercial and governmental agencies.  The loan amount is added 
to an individual's tax bill and paid along with their annual taxes.  The program offers three 
separate plans.   

2. Yard Waste Stickers.  GPC is working on a program that would eliminate these stickers.  The 
idea is to get people to recycle and mulch as much as possible.   

 
Point of Order:  Councilmember Carr stated that in response to the Mayor's statement at the last 
meeting that, "Portions of the agenda were strictly for Council business," she would like the record 
to reflect that there were twelve meetings from July 9, 2012 through May 26, 2014 where citizen's 
comments were made during Council business.  So there is a precedent for such comments and 
Council should allow residents to engage with them during this portion of the agenda.   
 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 
 Change August 10, 2015, Council meeting date to August 3, 2015.  Requested by Mayor 

Welsch and Councilmember Sharpe. 
CONSENSUS 

 
 Mayor Welsch stated that she and Councilmember Sharpe would like to ask Council's 

consideration of their request to move the August 10th meeting to Monday, August 3rd.  
Consensus was reached. The next Council meeting will be on August 3rd..   

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
  Councilmember Crow commended Chief Adams for his leadership during tonight's meeting and 

thanked Mr. Gilb for the interesting information he provided.  
      Councilmember Crow stated that he and Councilmember Kraft had received a letter from John 

Rava, a citizen in the 1st Ward, about the ADA ramps on Maryland and hoped that his s letter can 
be provided to every member of Council.   

     Councilmember Crow stated that Councilmember Jennings alluded to an independent 
investigation of the Fire Department surrounding the incidents of June 14th, which the Mayor August 3, 2015 E-3-10



claimed in her newsletter was a planned action that should cause all members of Council to be 
concerned.  The Mayor also states, "Disgracefully, two members of Council shared a picture of this 
unauthorized notice, a picture which was taken by one of those members before the Fire Chief even 
knew it had been posted".   He stated that if anyone could prove that any photo he has taken was 
shared with the public, they should let him know.   
     Councilmember Crow stated that when 200 people show up at a meeting and it is suggested that 
he and not thinking it is because these residents are engaged and suggested that Councilmember 
Carr have gotten them all riled up, not that these people are engaged.  He stated that it was his 
belief is that the vote taken tonight will get them reengaged. 
 
Councilmember Carr stated that she would also like to thank Mr. Glib for his presentation, since she 
does not believe Council was aware that this is a gigabyte city.  She requests a copy of the 
broadband study recently done by the City.   
     Councilmember Carr stated that there is a plan for the money that has been set aside for 
flooding.  The Army Corps of Engineers are engaged and they have requested that Congressman 
Clay seek out remediation monies for buyouts and/or elevations.  She stated that she also attempted 
to develop a Storm Water Master Plan, which Council neglected.      
     Councilmember Carr asked Chief Adams if it would be possible for him to make a presentation to 
Council with respect to his department's action plan associated with accreditation.  Chief Adams 
stated that the new law that was passed provided for a six year window in which to achieve.  He 
noted that the department had been accredited from 1995 to 2008.  Councilmember Carr thanked 
Councilmember Kraft for trying to inject common sense into the issues surrounding Resolution 2015-
17.   
 
Councilmember Jennings thanked Mr. Gilb for attending tonight's meeting.  He stated that he wanted 
everyone to know that while he respects every member of this Council, this is a democracy so there 
will be disagreements.  Councilmember Jennings stated that a smart minority would try to leverage 
and negotiate to get the things they wanted done, rather than denigrating everything that others are 
trying to do.  He noted a Council whose members spoke to each other could be a viable and 
progressive Council that tries to make the right decisions.   
 
Mayor Welsch made the following announcements: 

• There will be another Starlight Concert  this Saturday in Heman Park 
• Health Protection and Education Services will conduct a free health screening this Saturday 

morning at the U City Public Library. 
• The National Night Out and the Back to School Rally will be held on Tuesday, August 4th, 

from 5 p.m. to 8 p.m. at Brittany Woods Middle School 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that she does not recall any member of Council making a request to consider 
again a matter that had been removed from the agenda. 
     She stated that she would like to go on record as saying that the City Manager, Lehman Walker, 
also contributed to the increase in the City's reserves by saving money through a very difficult 
reorganization.  So our reserves should not be solely attributed to the monies received from the 
AT&T settlement.    
     Mayor Welsch reminded everyone that the next Council meeting would be held on Monday, 
August 3, 2015. 

 
Q. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Shelley Welsch adjourned the meeting at 8:51 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Joyce Pumm, City Clerk, MRCC/CMC

August 3, 2015 E-3-11



August 3, 2015 E-3-12



August 3, 2015 E-3-13



August 3, 2015 E-3-14



August 3, 2015 E-3-15



August 3, 2015 E-3-16



August 3, 2015 E-3-17



 

August 3, 2015 E-3-18



 
 
 
 
 
 Council Agenda Item Cover  

 
 
MEETING DATE:  August 3, 2015          
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Bicycle Facilities Improvements Project – Construction award to Traffic 

Control Company 
 
AGENDA SECTION:   City Manager’s Report   
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 
 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:    
 
The Bicycle Facilities Improvements Project "Bicycle Facilities Improvements on Canton Ave, Jackson 
Ave, and Old Bonhomme Rd”. The proposed work includes: Striping removal and pavement striping 
and signage for on street bicycle facilities on Canton Ave, Jackson Ave, and Old Bonhome Rd. 
 
This project was advertised on June 18, 2015 in the St. Louis American and on the Missouri 
Department of Transportation’s website on June 22, 2015. On July 15, 2015 the City opened bids for 
the above referenced project and received and reviewed two (2) bids. The contract is proposed to be 
awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, subject to MoDOT concurrence and confirmation by the City 
Council. A 5% security bid bond was submitted from both companies.  The lowest bidder is Traffic 
Control Company.  The bid amount is $122,123.93.00.  The bid results are as follows: 
 

Contractor Bid Amount 
Traffic Control Company $122,123.93 
Tramar Contracting, Inc. $155,866.05 

 
 
This Project is funded by a grant administered by East-West Gateway Council of Governments to cover 
eighty percent (80%) or $97,699.14. The City’s match is twenty percent (20%) or $24,424.79.  The City 
has budgeted a total of $162,900.00 for both the construction and the construction inspection of this 
project.   
 
The Disadvantage Business Enterprise participation requirement for this project is ten percent (10%).  
The firm committed to achieve 11% and has been submitted for approval to the MoDOT’s External Civil 
Rights.  Traffic Control Company is a company with great experience in striping and signing projects, 
and has great reputation in the St. Louis region.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that the contract be awarded to Traffic Control Company in the amount of 
$122,123.93.  

August 3, 2015 K-1-1



August 3, 2015 K-1-2



August 3, 2015 K-1-3



August 3, 2015 K-1-4



August 3, 2015 K-1-5



August 3, 2015 K-1-6



August 3, 2015 K-1-7



August 3, 2015 K-1-8



August 3, 2015 K-1-9



August 3, 2015 K-1-10



August 3, 2015 K-1-11



August 3, 2015 K-1-12



August 3, 2015 K-1-13



August 3, 2015 K-1-14



August 3, 2015 K-1-15



August 3, 2015 K-1-16



August 3, 2015 K-1-17



August 3, 2015 K-1-18



  
 
 
     Council Agenda Item Cover 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 3, 2015 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Heman Park – South Drainage Improvements - Design 
 
          AGENDA SECTION: City Manager’s Report 
 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:      Yes 
 

 
BACKGROUND:  In 2014, the City completed a master plan for Heman Park. The Heman 
Park Master Plan was adopted by City Council on October 27, 2014. This plan called for 
many improvements to the park, including improvements to the River des Peres and the 
South Drainage Area.  
 
In FY 2015, City staff applied for a grant through the Department of Conservation to 
complete a pilot project on the South Drainage Area. This project would lay back the banks 
of a section of the drainage area. The grant funding amount was for $50,000 and the City 
indicated that $40,000 would be spent as match. Unfortunately, the City did not receive the 
grant. City staff was told that the project submitted was much smaller than others, so the 
other applicants were selected.  
 
With the $40,000 budgeted for improvements to the River des Peres in FY 15 and an 
additional $80,000 in the current budget, City staff anticipates moving forward with the 
design of the pilot project area. Staff contacted SWT Design requesting a proposal to 
complete design and construction engineering services for the Heman Park - South 
Drainage Improvements Project. This project would lay back the banks of the South 
Drainage area beginning at the mouth of the River des Peres back approximately 100 feet 
to the west. The proposal received from SWT Design provides a maximum compensation 
of $47,500.00.  The City will be responsible for the full balance of the design and 
construction engineering services.  This contract will be paid with budgeted funds from 
account number 14-40-90_8010. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the above information, it is recommended that the City 
Council gives authority to the City Manager to contract with SWT Design to complete the 
design and construction engineering services for the Heman Park – South Drainage 
Improvements Project. 
 
ATTACHMENT:  SWT Design Proposal for Professional Design Services 

  
 

August 3, 2015 K-2-1



 
Proposal for Professional Design Services 
July 13, 2015 
 
TO: Megan Fuhler | Project Manager II FROM: Jay Wohlschlaeger 

COMPANY NAME: Department of Public Works and Parks PROJECT: Heman Park – South Drainage Improvements 

ADDRESS 1: 6801 Delmar Blvd PROJECT NUMBER: 20122.02 

ADDRESS 2: University City, MO 63130  

PHONE NUMBER: 314.505.8560  

 
 
 
Dear Mrs. Fuhler: 
 
Thank you for giving SWT Design, Inc. the opportunity to submit this proposal for professional design services 
regarding site improvements for Heman Park.  Upon your signature hereto, this letter shall act as a contract for 
professional landscape architectural services (“Agreement”) between SWT Design, Inc., hereinafter referred to as 
SWT, and University City Department of Public Works and Parks hereinafter referred to as Client, for the 
following scope of services as outlined herein.  
 
Article 1: Scope of Work 

 
 
The following is our proposed scope of work and approach for the production of implementation documents and 
permitting for the South Drainage Improvements:  
 
Task 1 - Schematic Design Phase 
 

Schematic Design phase requirements include the refinement and definition of site plan components and 
materials to be used based on the master plan concept approved October 2014. 

 
This task includes: 

 
a) Project kick-off meeting with Client and Design Team to review project schedule, project goals, and 

coordination of base information and Client coordination for permitting applications. 
b) SWT will conduct a visual survey of the South Drainage project area with client provided survey (see 

attached area of work). Tree of significance will be identified by the SWT arborist in order to prepare 
recommendations for tree protection. Trees of significance will be identified on planting plans and 
preservation recommendations will be documented. 

 
c) Prepare coordinated Schematic Design drawings to include: 

 
• Site Layout 
• Site Hydrology 
• Trees & Vegetation 
• Materials Selection 
• Bank stabilization & Enhancement Concepts 
• Channel Improvements 

 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  1  O F 14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-2



d) After schematic design review with Client, if needed, implement the necessary design changes to 
maintain the project character. 

 
Products of Task 1 

• Schematic  Site Plan Documents 
• Project Schedule  
• Define Construction Budget 

 
Task 1 Meetings 

• One (1) Kickoff/Site Walk Meeting 
• One (1) Concept Review Meeting 

 
 
Task 2 - Design Development Phase  
 

Design Development requirements include the development of drawings and documents that further define 
the schematic drawings and fix and describe the size and character of the entire project.  This phase will also 
include permit submittals, documentation, and cost opinion.  Design Development documents will be based 
on approved Schematic Design documents and budget.  
 
Design Development tasks include: 

 
a)  Prepare coordinated Design Development documents to include: 

• Demolition and General Conditions 
• Site Layout – site grading, boulder placement, landscape zones, etc. 
• Site Hydrology – channel flow geometry, channel sections, structures, etc. 
• Trees & Vegetation 
• Materials Selection 
• University City Self Performed Scope of Work 

 
b) Prepare hydrologic data including delineation of watershed, develop flow rates, and prepare HEC-

RAS model of the proposed channel.   
 
c) Identify self-performed work by City of University City for delineation and inclusion in cost opinion. 
 
d) Initiate permitting process.  Anticipated permitting submittals include, but are not limited to: 

• US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) 404  
• Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) 401 
• FEMA No-Rise 
• St. Louis County Land Disturbance 
• MSD 
• City of University City 

 
e) Review Design Development documents and coordinate permit submittals with Client.  If needed, 

implement the necessary design changes to the documents to maintain the project character and 
budget. 

 
c)  Produce order-of-magnitude cost opinion.  If needed, revise concept plan to meet budget 

requirements. 
 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  2  O F 14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-3



 
Products of Task 2 

• Design Development Documents (including outline specifications) 
• Permit submittal documentation 
• Order-of-Magnitude Cost Opinion 

 
Task 2 Meetings 

• One (1) Permitting and Design Development Progress Meeting 
• One (1) Design Development & Costing Review Meeting 

 
 
Task 3 - Construction Documents Phase 
 

The construction document phase requirements include the development of documents, reflecting approved 
Design Development drawings and budget that will provide written and graphic information necessary to 
construct the project.  Final permit submittals and responses to permit review comments will also occur in 
this phase.  
 
Construction Document phase tasks include: 

 
a) Prepare construction drawings and specifications of the approved Design Development landscape 

architecture.  Construction Documents will include elements as outlined in Task 2.a. SWT to 
coordinate design elements with Client and design team members. 

 
b) Document the workmanship and materials to be used for the construction of site work components 

and minimize the effects of construction related activities.   
 
c) Review Order-of-Magnitude Cost Opinion with Client. Implement the necessary design changes in 

the hardscape and landscape documents to maintain the project cost budget. 
 
d) Prepare SWPPP plan based on final design and submit. 
  
e) Prepare final permit submittals and revisions based on review agency comments.  Coordination of 

permit approvals necessary to proceed with project bidding and construction. 
 

Products of Task 3 
• Construction Documents (drawings and specifications) bid package 
• Final permit submittals and approvals 

 
Task 3 Meetings 

• Two (2) Progress Review (50% and 75%) Meetings with Client 
• One (1) Order-of-Magnitude Cost Estimate Meeting 
• One (1) (95%) Project Review Meeting with Client 
• 100% Bid Set Review (SWT to submit digital copy for owner review) 

  
 

 
 
 
 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  3  O F 14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-4



Task 4 - Bidding and Award Phase 
 

The Bidding and Award Phase requirements include assisting Client in receiving complete and accurate bids 
from contractors.  This phase tasks include: 

 
a) Assist Client with distribution of bid package (no print sets by SWT. Issue digital PDF) 

 
b) Attend Pre-bid Meeting. 

 
c) Assist Client staff in responding to bidders’ questions, bid analysis and recommendations to Client 

regarding award of contract. 
 

d) Assist Client staff during the evaluation of construction bids.   
 

e) Attend pre-construction meeting. 
 

Task 4 Meetings 
• Attend Pre-bid Meeting 
• Bid Opening/Bid Review 

 
 
Task 5 - Construction Administration Phase  
 
Task 5a.1  As part of the Basic Design Services, SWT shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of 
construction, or as otherwise agreed upon in writing by the Client and SWT, in order to observe the progress and 
quality of the work (“Work”) completed by the contractor or contractors for this Project.  Such visits and 
observation are not intended to be an exhaustive check or a detailed inspection of the Work, but rather are to 
allow SWT, as an experienced professional, to become generally familiar with the Work in progress and to 
determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Construction Documents. 
 
Based on this general observation, SWT shall keep the Client informed about the progress of the Work and shall 
endeavor to guard the Client against deficiencies in the Work. 
 
SWT shall not supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor have any responsibility for the construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures selected by the Contractor, nor for the Contractor’s 
safety precautions or programs in connection with the Work.  These rights and responsibilities are solely those of 
the Contractor in accordance with the Construction Documents. 
 
SWT shall not be responsible for any acts or omissions of the Contractor, subcontractor, any entity performing 
any portions of the Work, or any agents or employees of any of them.  SWT does not guarantee the performance 
of the Contractor and shall not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perfume Work in accordance with 
the Construction Documents or any applicable laws, codes, rules, or regulations. 
 
Task 5a.2:  Conduct pre-construction meeting with the selected Contractor prior to beginning of construction.  
Meeting intended to review project schedule, submittal process, Client requirements, etc. 
 
Task 5a.3:  SWT shall review and approve or take other appropriate action on the Contractor submittals, such as 
shop drawings, product data, samples, and other data which the Contractor is required to submit, but only for 
the limited purpose of checking for conformance with the design concept and the information shown in the 
Construction Documents.  This review shall not include review of the accuracy or completeness of details, such 
as quantities, dimensions, weights or gauges, fabrication processes, construction means or methods, 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  4  O F 14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-5



coordination of the Work with other trades, or construction safety precautions, all of which are the sole 
responsibility of the Contractor.  SWT’s review shall be conducted with reasonable promptness, while allowing 
sufficient time in SWT’s judgment to permit adequate review and SWT shall report to the Client as soon as 
possible any deficiencies it discovers in such review.  Review of a specific item shall not indicate that SWT has 
reviewed the entire assembly of which the item is a component.  SWT shall not be responsible for any deviations 
from the Construction Documents not brought to the attention of SWT in writing by the Contractor.  SWT shall 
not be required to review partial submissions or those for which submissions of correlated items have not been 
received. 
 
Task 5a.4:  Review of mock-up of materials for approval regarding workmanship and quality. 
 
Task 5a.5:  SWT shall assist Client with coordination of surfacing installation. 
 
Task 5a.6:  SWT shall maintain throughout the term of the Project copies of all shop drawings, mock-ups, and 
revised Construction Documents. 
 
Task 5a.7:  Provide field review of site construction, answer questions, and respond to Requests for Information 
(RFI), attend construction meetings, and prepare punch lists and final closeout. 
 
Task 5a.8:  SWT shall review Contractor’s payment requests to confirm invoiced work has been completed or 
purchased.  Following review, SWT will notify contractor of required changes or submit approved pay application 
to Client for payment. 
 
Meetings for Task 5: 

• Pre-construction Kick-off Meeting with Selected Contractor 
• On-site Observation Meetings (as needed, not to exceed 4) 
• One (1) Punch List Site Visit 
• One (1) Final Punch List Meeting with Client. 

 
 
Article 2:  Work Not Included in Basic Services 

 
        

a) Soils/Geotechnical Investigations 
b) Environmental Impact Statements 
c) Production of As-Built Drawings 
d) Project Survey and Base Mapping 
e) Planning and Zoning / Agency Exhibits 
f) 3-dimensional graphics / models 
g) Signage 
h) Fountains  
i) Resident meetings or presentations 

 
 
Article 3:  Standards  

 
            

a) SWT agrees to provide its professional services in accordance to the standards of its profession. 
SWT agrees to put forth its best efforts to comply with codes, laws and regulations in effect. 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  5  O F 14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-6



Article 4:  Extent of Site and Landscape Work  

 
            
The scope of services specified above will be completed within the site boundaries shown below. His boundary 
extends 30’ beyond the southern top of bank, north to the edge of pavement of the existing basketball courts and 
shall include the existing bridge: 

 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  6  O F 14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-7



Article 5:  Compensation and Payments 

 
 
Base Design and Permitting Services 
       

a) SWT agrees to perform the services outlined in this Agreement for a lump sum fee of $47,500.00 
not including expenses.  

 
• Schematic Design Phase       $  5,750.00 

• Design Development Design Phase      $  13,800.00 

• Construction Document Phase      $  16,850.00 

• Bidding and Award Phase       $  3,600.00 

• Construction Administration Phase      $  7,500.00 

 

Total Design and Permitting Fee:      $47,500.00 

 
Supporting Services 
 
The items listed below are services that may be necessary to prepare construction or permitting documents.  
These services can be contracted by SWT or Client if needed.  The costs identified below are maximum 
anticipated costs for the services.  SWT will not proceed with this work without first informing Client in writing 
that these services are needed, and receiving approval of a scope of services from the Client. 

 
a) Geotechnical Report - Prepare Geotechnical report as necessary to determine soil conditions and 

slope stability. 
 
Geotechnical Report -        $5,000.00 

 
This fee will be billed on no more than once every 30 days, and invoice will be based on a percent complete at the 
time of billing. 

 
b) Direct expenses, i.e., report materials, personal car mileage, long-distance phone, computer 

printing, photo copies, photography, blueprinting, delivery service, etc., are not included in the 
above fees, and will be billed to the Client at cost.  Personal car mileage will be billed at the 
prevailing rate established by the IRS.  If sub-consultants are needed for additional work items, they 
will be mutually agreed upon by SWT and the Client. Billing for SWT fees and reimbursable 
expenses will be submitted monthly.  Payment is due within 30 days from date of invoice.  Our 
Reimbursable Expense Estimate is $1,500.00.   

 
c) Additional Services will be billed on an hourly basis. See Attachment A for rates.  

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  7  O F 14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-8



Article 6:  Project Schedule  

 
       
Project schedule will be defined with SWT Design & Client: 

 
Article 7:  Client’s Responsibilities 

 
       

a) Client agrees to provide SWT with all necessary approved information, surveys, reports and 
professional recommendations requested by SWT to provide its professional services.  SWT may 
reasonably rely on the accuracy and completeness of these items, however, SWT shall review such 
information in its capacity as an Client prior to such reliance and shall provide prompt written 
notice to the Client if SWT discovers as a result of its review or subsequently becomes aware of any 
errors, omissions or inconsistencies in such services or information. 

b) Client agrees to advise SWT of any known or suspected contaminants at the Project site.  Client 
shall be solely responsible for all subsurface soil conditions unless otherwise agreed to in writing.  
However, if SWT is informed of the presence of such material by the Contractor or any other person 
or entity, SWT shall promptly notify the Client of same.  Nothing in this paragraph is a waiver of that 
obligation or of any liability of Client arising from its negligence or willful misconduct in failing to 
inform the Client of the presence of such materials of which the SWT has been so informed. 

c) Client will be responsible for all necessary permits from authorities having jurisdiction over the 
Project.   

d) Client agrees to provide the items described in Article 7a and to render decisions in a timely manner 
so as not to delay the orderly and sequential progress of SWT’s services. 

 
Article 8:  Cost Opinions  

 
 

a) As the Landscape Architect, SWT, has no control over construction methodologies, costs or 
Contractor’s prices, any construction cost opinions are made on the basis of SWT’s experience and 
judgment as a design professional; but it cannot and does not warrant or guarantee that 
Contractor’s proposals, bids or costs will not vary from its estimates. 

 
 
Article 9:  Termination 

 
 

a) Client may terminate this Agreement upon seven days written notice. 

b) If terminated, Client agrees to pay SWT for all Basic and Additional Services rendered and 
authorized Reimbursable Direct Expenses incurred up to the date of termination.   

c) Subject to Article 5 hereof, upon not less than seven days’ written notice, SWT may suspend the 
performance of its services if Client fails to pay SWT in full for services rendered or expenses 
incurred.  SWT shall have no liability because of such suspension of service or termination due to 
nonpayment. 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  8  O F 14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-9



Article 10:  Dispute Resolution 

 
       

a) Client and SWT agree to mediate claims or disputes arising out of or relation to this Agreement as a 
condition precedent to litigation provided a demand for mediation shall be made within a 
reasonable time after a claim or dispute arises.  The parties agree to participate in mediation in 
good faith.  The mediation shall be in accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules 
of the American Arbitration Association or any other mediation service acceptable to the parties.  
Mediation fees shall be shared equally.  In no event shall any demand for mediation be made after 
such claim or dispute would be barred by the applicable law. 

 
Article 11:  Ownership and Use of Documents  

 
      

a) Plans, Drawings, Schedules and other documents, including those in electronic form, prepared by 
SWT or SWT’s consultants, if any, are Instruments of Service.  Nevertheless, upon execution of this 
Agreement, SWT grants to the Client a nonexclusive license to use and reproduce SWT’s 
Instruments of Service prepared under this Agreement for the purposes of constructing, using and 
maintaining the Project, including any additions thereto or extensions thereof; provided that the 
Client shall comply with all obligations, including payment of all sums when due, under this 
Agreement.  Client shall not use such Instruments of Services for any unrelated project nor make 
modifications to documents without SWT’s written authorization.  If this Agreement terminates for 
any reason prior to the completion of the Project, the Client shall have the right to authorize 
similarly credentialed design professionals to reproduce, and where permitted by law, to make 
changes, corrections or additions to the Instruments of Service solely for the purpose of 
completing, using and maintaining the Project.  Should any of the Instruments of Service be used 
by any party subsequent to termination of this Agreement, which are incomplete or unfinished, or 
which are subsequently materially changed, corrected or amended, SWT disclaims any warranty, 
representation or standard concerning such Instruments of Service, and any subsequent use of 
incomplete or unfinished or materially changed Instruments of Service is at the risk of Client, and 
for which SWT assumes no responsibility.  Upon the earlier termination of this Agreement, and 
upon payment for all services performed by SWT as provided by this Agreement, SWT shall deliver 
to the Client reproductions of all Instruments of Service for the Project which are then in progress 
and which have not been previously delivered to the Client.  If a dispute exists between the Client 
and SWT regarding any amount claimed due to SWT, SWT shall deliver to the Client the documents 
referenced above, and upon resolution of such dispute, Client shall promptly pay SWT the amount 
determined due to SWT, if any. 

b) SWT reserves the right to include representations of the Project in its promotional and professional 
materials.  

Article 12:  Governing Law  

 
         

a) This Agreement is governed by the law of the State of Missouri.  

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  9  O F 14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-10



Article 13:  Entire Agreement and Severability  

 
       

a) This Agreement is the entire and integrated agreement between the Client and SWT and supersedes 
all prior negotiations, statements or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both the Client and SWT.  

 
b) In the event that any term or provision of this agreement is found to be void, invalid or 

unenforceable for any reason, that term or provision shall be deemed to be stricken from this 
agreement, and the balance of this agreement shall survive and remain enforceable.  

 
 

Article 14:  Miscellaneous  

 
         

a) Neither party can assign this Agreement without the other party’s written permission.   
 
b) SWT‘s designated and authorized representative is Jim Wolterman, Co-Founding Principal of SWT 

Design.  SWT shall not replace such representative throughout the term of this Project unless such 
personnel leaves the employ of SWT or is otherwise unable to perform the services required 
hereunder.  In the event the Client agrees to the replacement of such personnel, or such personnel 
leave the employ of SWT or are otherwise unable to perform the services required, SWT shall 
propose substitute personnel with substantially similar qualifications and experience within 
fourteen (14) days.  Such personnel shall be subject to the Client’s approval.  In the event the Client 
does not approve such substitute personnel, Client may terminate this Agreement. 

 
 
Article 15:  Indemnification  

 
         

a) SWT agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Client harmless from and against any and all claims, 
liabilities, suits, demands, losses, costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and all legal expenses and fees incurred, and all interest thereon, accruing or 
resulting to any and all persons, firms or any other legal entities on account of any damages or 
losses to property or persons, including injury or death, arising out of the Project and/or the 
performance or non-performance of obligations under this Agreement, except where such damages 
or losses are found by a court or forum of competent jurisdiction to be caused solely by Client’s 
negligent errors or omissions.   

 
b) To the extent the above described damages or losses are found to be caused solely by Client’s 

negligent errors or omissions, Client agrees to indemnify SWT for such damages and losses. 
 
 

 
Article 16:  Attorneys’ Fees  

 
         

a) Should any legal proceeding be commenced between the parties to this Agreement seeking to 
enforce any of its provisions, including, but not limited to, fee provisions, the prevailing party in 
such proceeding shall be entitled, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to a reasonable 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  10 OF  14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-11



sum for attorneys’ and expert witnesses’ fees, which shall be determined by the court or forum in 
such a proceeding or in a separate action brought for that purpose.  

 
 

Article 17:  Waivers of Consequential Damages and Subrogation 

 
    

a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
neither the Client nor SWT nor their respective officers, directors, trustees, employees, contractors 
or sub-consultants shall be liable to the other or shall make any claim for any incidental, indirect or 
consequential damages arising out of or connected in any way to the Project or to this Agreement.  
This mutual waiver of consequential damages shall include, but is not limited to, loss of use, loss of 
profit, loss of business, loss of income, loss of reputation or any other consequential damages that 
either party may have incurred from any cause of action including negligence, strict liability, breach 
of contract and breach of strict or implied warranty.  Both the Client and SWT shall require similar 
waivers of consequential damages protecting all the entities or persons named herein in all 
contracts and subcontracts with others involved in this Project. 
 

b) In addition, the Client and SWT waive all claims against each other to the extent covered by any 
applicable insurance during design or construction, including but not limited to claims for 
subrogation.  
 

c) SWT shall provide and maintain throughout the term of the Agreement the insurance coverage set 
forth on Attachment B attached hereto to this Agreement and incorporated herein.  SWT represents 
that in determining its compensation for services rendered hereunder, it is has had the opportunity 
to incorporate the costs of such insurance coverage in its fee. 

 
 
Article 18:  No Third Party Beneficiaries 

 
        

a) Nothing in this agreement is intended to create a contractual relationship for the benefit of any 
third party. There are no intended beneficiaries of this agreement except SWT and the Client. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  11 OF  14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-12



If the foregoing meets with your approval, please indicate this approval by signing the appropriate line 
below and returning one original for our files.  If this agreement is not accepted within 30 days, the 
offer to perform the described services is withdrawn and shall be null and void. 

Sincerely, 

SWT Design, Inc. 

 
 
 
 
 
Jay Wohlschlaeger, PLA, ASLA 
Partner 
 
 
Accepted: 
 
              
Signature  Date 

       
Title 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  12 OF  14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-13



Attachment A: Hourly Rate Schedule 
 
SWT Design  
 
Co-Founding Partner ………………………………………………………………………………….. $165.00 

Partner ….………………………………………………………………………………………………….. $145.00 

Sr. Associate ……………………………………………………………………………………………... $105.00 

Sr. Designer I …………………………………………………………………………………..………… $120.00 

Sr. Designer II ………………………………………………………………………………….……….. $105.00 

Associate …………………………………………………………………………………….……..…….. $90.00 

Staff ……………………………………………………………………………………………….………… $75.00 

Staff II ………………………………………………………………………………………….…………… $75.00 

Administrative …………………………………………………………………………………............ $65.00 

 

 

Intuition and Logic 

 
Principal …………………………………………………………………………………...............….… $150.00 

Project Manager …………………………………………………………………………………......... $125.00 

Engineer …………………………………………………………………………………...............……. $95.00 

Engineer in Training………………………………………………………………………………….... $75.00 

Administration…………………………………………………………………………………............ $45.00 

   
 
 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  13 OF  14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-14



Attachment B: Insurance Coverage 
 
Upon request and receipt of written acceptance of this contract, SWT will contact their insurance providers 
and authorize that Certificates of Insurance be sent to: 
 
Megan Fuhler 
Project Manager II 
Department of Public Works and Parks 
6801 Delmar Blvd 
University City, MO 63130 
 
RE: Site Improvements – Heman Park – South Drainage, University City, MO  
 
 
Regarding the proposed project verifying the following coverages: 
 

• General Liability 
     Occurrence   $1,000,000 
     Aggregate   $2,000,000 
 

• Umbrella Liability   
     Occurrence   $2,000,000 
     Aggregate   $2,000,000 
 

• Workers Compensation   $500,000 
 

• Professional Liability    
     Each Claim   $2,000,000 
     Aggregate   $2,000,000 
 
  
 
Certificates of Insurance shall be provided upon request within two (2) weeks of acceptance of this contract  
 
 
 
 
 
 

t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  14 OF  14  

 

 

August 3, 2015 K-2-15



 
                               Council Agenda Item Cover  
________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                            
 
 

 
 
MEETING DATE:  August 3, 2015                                       
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Audit Services Contract 
 
AGENDA SECTION:   City Manager Report 
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:    
The City used the auditing services of Rubin Brown LLP for FY 2014.  The Firm signed a three year 
contract (FY 2014, FY 2015 and FY 2016) with the City.  The estimated cost for the three years was 
$40,500, $41,700 and $42,900, respectively.  At the completion of the FY 2014 audit, the City paid 
Rubin Brown a total of $56,500 which represents $16,000 over the contracted amount.  The 
additional costs were billed due to the additional hours of work that were underestimated by the 
auditors.  Rubin Brown LLP and the City agree that the relationship of independent auditing firm and 
client should be ended. 
 
Normally the City would put this service up for bid, however due to the extensive changes involved 
in implementing the “Payroll/Time Attendance” software; we recommended using a firm that is more 
familiar with the City’s financial system, policies and procedures.  We contacted Schowalter & 
Jabouri, who have provided this service to the City for the past three years, FY 2011, FY 2012 and 
FY 2013.  Their experience and expertise are best shown by the previous year’s audit records.  
 
Schowalter & Jabouri have submitted a proposal for auditing services for the next three years 
through June 30, 2017.  The estimated cost per year is: 
 
    FY 2015  $41,500 
    FY 2016  $42,700 
    FY 2017  $43,900 
    
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approving a 3-year auditing services contract with 
Schowalter & Jabouri, P. C. for the audit years of FY 2015, FY 2016 and FY 2017, for $41,500, 
$42,700 and $43,900, respectively.    
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Rubin Brown LLP Disengagement Letter 
   Schowalter & Jabouri, P.C. Auditing Services Proposal  
 
 
  
 

 
 

August 3, 2015 K-3-1



August 3, 2015 K-3-2



August 3, 2015 K-3-3



August 3, 2015 K-3-4



August 3, 2015 K-3-5



Council Agenda Item Cover 

________________________________________________________________   

MEETING DATE:  August 3, 2015        

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Outsourcing Emergency and Non-Emergency Ambulance 
Transportation Services  

AGENDA SECTION:  City Manager’s Report 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW: 

In July, 2014 the City solicited proposals via a RFP for Emergency and Non-Emergency 
Ambulance Transportation Services. 

Two submissions were received, (Abbott and Gateway).  A study session was held with City 
Council in September 2014.  Over the past several months, staff has reviewed the submissions 
and negotiated with both Abbott and Gateway.  Staff has concluded that Gateway will provide the 
most efficient and effective service to University City residents.   

The advantages and benefits of outsourcing emergency and non-emergency services are: 

1. The qualifications of the paramedics to provide ambulance services are the same for
Gateway and University City.

2. The cost savings for the City and its’ residents will exceed $500,000 annually (in staff and
vehicles) following a full year of implementation of the agreement.

3. Overtime for U City Firefighters will be eliminated for the most part (currently about
$200,000 per year).

4. No U City firefighters will lose their jobs.

5. U City will continue to dispatch a fire truck when life is threatened which will bring 3 or 4
additional paramedics to the scene.

6. The City will no longer be responsible for billing which will allow the Finance Department 
staff to attend to other duties.  There are uncollected accounts for approximately $800,000.

7. Response time for ambulance service will be decreased.  Gateway paramedics will
already be stationed in their vehicles to be dispatched immediately.   U City staff will have
to get to their vehicles to leave the firehouse.

August 3, 2015 K-4-1



 
 
 

8. The U City fire chief will be involved in the selection of Gateway staff to serve in the City. 
 

9. Gateway will provide continuous ambulance service (at the present time if U City’s two 
ambulances are in service, the City must rely on mutual aid). 
 

10. There is provision to terminate the contract for non-performance.   
 
 
For the reasons cited above, service to residents will be improved by outsourcing emergency and 
non-emergency ambulance transportation services. 
 
The city attorney has reviewed the agreement. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Manager to enter into 
the attached agreement for emergency and non-emergency ambulance transportation services. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
  Agreement for Emergency and Non-Emergency Ambulance Transportation Services 
  Request for Proposals – Emergency Medical Services 
  Financial Information – Ambulance Services 
      
 
 

August 3, 2015 K-4-2



August 3, 2015 K-4-3



August 3, 2015 K-4-4



August 3, 2015 K-4-5



August 3, 2015 K-4-6



August 3, 2015 K-4-7



August 3, 2015 K-4-8



August 3, 2015 K-4-9



August 3, 2015 K-4-10



August 3, 2015 K-4-11



August 3, 2015 K-4-12



August 3, 2015 K-4-13



August 3, 2015 K-4-14



August 3, 2015 K-4-15



August 3, 2015 K-4-16



August 3, 2015 K-4-17



August 3, 2015 K-4-18



August 3, 2015 K-4-19



August 3, 2015 K-4-20



August 3, 2015 K-4-21



August 3, 2015 K-4-22



August 3, 2015 K-4-23



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE: August 3, 2015 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Stop for Pedestrians - The Lofts of Washington University 

AGENDA SECTION:   Unfinished Business 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:  

The Traffic Commission reviewed a the request from Andrew McCready to install a “Stop 
Here for Pedestrians” sign on the alley located behind 6241/6263 Delmar Blvd building at 
the pedestrian walkway recently built at The Lofts of Washington University in St. Louis.   

Due to the increased amount of pedestrian and bicycle traffic using the walkway connecting 
Enright and Delmar and the increased amount of complaints from pedestrians, regarding 
vehicular traffic not yielding to pedestrians and bicycles on walkway, the stop for 
pedestrians sign is recommended to be installed as requested.  See attached Staff Report. 

At the April 2015 Traffic Commission meeting, the Traffic Commissioners reviewed the 
request to create the new location as a stop for pedestrians and recommended approval by 
the City Council. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of this request; amending the University City Traffic Code, 
Schedule VI, Vehicles required to Stop. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

- Staff Report 
- Bill amending the Schedule VI of the Traffic Code. 
- Draft Traffic Commission minutes April 8, 2015.  

JAugust 3, 2015 L-1-1



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE: April 8, 2015 
APPLICANT:   Andrew McCready – Washington University in St. Louis 
Location:  Alley behind 6241/6263 Delmar Blvd building   
Request:  Approve a “Stop Here for Pedestrians” sign on the alley at the pedestrian 

walkway  
Attachments:  Traffic Request Form 
 
Existing Conditions: 
 

6241/6263 Delmar Blvd – Washington University in St. Louis - Site Plan  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed 
Stop for 
Pedestrians 
location 

 
 
 
N 

6241/6263 
Delmar Blvd 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-1-2

http://www.ucitymo.org/


6241/6263 Delmar Blvd – Washington University in St. Louis – Proposed Stop for Pedestrian   
 
 

 
 
Currently there are “Yield to Pedestrian” signs at this location.  These signs were installed 
when the phase 1 of the project was completed.   
 
Facts: 

- Increased amount of pedestrian and bicycle traffic using the walkway connecting Enright 
and Delmar  

- Increased amount of complaints from pedestrians, regarding vehicular traffic not yielding 
to pedestrians and bicycles on walkway 

 
The safety concerns have increased as more pedestrians are walking on the area and will 
continue to increase with nicer weather. 
 
 
Request: 
Approve a “Stop Here for Pedestrians” sign on the alley at the pedestrian walkway. 
 
 Conclusion/Recommendation: 
 
Based on the facts listed above, it is recommended to install the Stop for Pedestrians at the 
proposed location.  The University City Traffic Code, Schedule VI, Vehicles required to Stop 
will need to change.   
 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-1-3

http://www.ucitymo.org/


Traffic Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8560, Fax: (314) 862-0694 

Traffic Commission Minutes – April 8, 2015 Page 1 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY MINUTES OF THE TRAFFIC COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 

 
At the Traffic Commission meeting of University City held in the Heman Park 
Community Center, on Wednesday, April 8, 2015, Chairwoman Carol Wofsey called 
the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  In addition to Chairwoman Wofsey, the following 
members of the commission were present: 
 

• Curtis Tunstall  
• Robert Warbin 
• Jeff Hales 
• Jackie Womack 
• Eva Creer 
• Mark Barnes 

 
Also in attendance: 

• Councilmember Stephen Kraft 
• City Engineer, Sinan Alpaslan P.E. 
• Police Department Representative P.O. Shaun Margul 
• Public Works and Parks Liaison, Angelica Gutierrez 

 
 
1. Approval of Agenda 
 
Mr. Hales moved to approve the meeting agenda. The motion was seconded by Mr. Barnes 
and unanimously approved.  
 
2. Approval of Minutes  
 
Mr. Warbin moved to postpone the approval of the February 2015 minutes to next meeting, 
seconded by Mr. Barnes and unanimously approved. 
 
3. Agenda items 
 

A. 7300 block of Forsyth Boulevard parking regulations  
 

Ms. Gutierrez presented the request from residents of the south side of the 7300 block of 
Forsyth Blvd. to review parking restrictions along this block of Forsyth Blvd.  The recent 
changes were explained along the 7000, 7100 and 7200 blocks of Forsyth Blvd such as 
residential parking permits implemented on the north side, and removal of peak hour 
restriction on the south side.  The zoning along Forsyth Blvd. corridor within University City 
is different in nature, varying from Institutional, single home, multi-unit residential and 
limited commercial.  
 
Hal Colton and Jim Marchbank, both Presidents from the Condominium Associations from 
7310 and 7320 Forsyth Blvd respectively, presented the safety issues they experience 
JAugust 3, 2015 L-1-4



Traffic Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8560, Fax: (314) 862-0694 

Traffic Commission Minutes – April 8, 2015 Page 2 

while exiting their parking garage.  Pictures were presented to illustrate the sightline 
obstructions.   
 
The opinion of the majority of the property owners of both condominiums was unanimous, 
to implement a parking restriction on each side of the driveways, for a distance of 60 feet or 
3 parking spaces.  The first preference is to have the parking restriction for 15-minutes and 
the second preference was to restrict parking at all times. 
 
The first preference is to have a 15-minute parking to allow the delivery trucks to park or 
any other short term parking need.   
 
Police Officer Margul explained that enforcement is more effective for parking restrictions at 
all times, instead of 15-minute restrictions.  
 
Mr. Barnes moved to request a petition (or two) from the affected properties (7310, 7318, 
7320 Forsyth Blvd) to restrict parking for 15-minute OR to restrict parking at all times.  Mr. 
Tunstall seconded the motioned and votes were: 
 
AYES: Mr. Wabin, Ms. Creer, Mr. Womack, Mr. Tunstall 
NAYS: Mr. Barnes, Mr. Hales, Ms. Wofsey. 
 
Motion passed.  
 
Requestors were instructed to solicit responses to their petition and submit it to City Staff. 
 

B. The Lofts proposed Stop for Pedestrians Sign 
 

Ms. Gutierrez presented the request from Andrew McCready to install a “Stop Here for 
Pedestrians” sign on the alley located behind 6241/6263 Delmar Blvd building at the 
pedestrian walkway recently built at The Lofts of Washington University in St. Louis.  City 
Staff recommended approval of the request. 
 
Ms. Cheryl Adelstein said that The Lofts was a very successful project.  The crossing is 
used by walkers as well as bicyclist and WUSTL is in the process of developing an Enright 
connector to Ackert Walkway for cyclists. 
  
Mr. Hales moved to approve the installation of the Signs as requested.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Barnes and unanimously approved. 

 

C. Gateway Bike Plan 
 

A presentation was provided to the Commission to learn about The Gateway Bike Plan. 
This plan is a result of a collaborative effort between the Great Rivers Greenway District, 
Missouri Department of Transportation, East-West Gateway Council of Governments, 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-1-5



Traffic Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8560, Fax: (314) 862-0694 

Traffic Commission Minutes – April 8, 2015 Page 3 

Metro, numerous municipalities, St. Louis and St. Charles counties, City of St. Louis and 
Trailnet.  

The Plan provides both a coordinated vision for accommodating and encouraging bicycling 
as a viable transportation mode, and practical action strategies for how to achieve this 
vision over the next 20 years. By working as a unified region across political boundaries, 
citizens will have access to one of the larger bicycle networks in the United States. The 
Plan includes detailed maps as well as strategic actions to achieve the recommended 
facilities along with education, enforcement and encouragement programs. 

The Gateway Bike Plan is available online at http://stlbikeplan.com/plan-documents. 

4. Council Liaison Report 
 
None 

5. Miscellaneous Business  
 
None 

6. Adjournment. 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:45 pm 
Minutes prepared by Angelica Gutierrez, Public Works and Parks Department  
 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-1-6

http://stlbikeplan.com/plan-documents


INTRODUCED BY: DATE:   July 13, 2015 

BILL NO.    9267 ORDINANCE NO.___________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SCHEDULE VI, TABLE VI-A 
– STOP INTERSECTIONS, CHAPTER 300 TRAFFIC
CODE, OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, TO 
REVISE TRAFFIC REGULATION AS PROVIDED HEREIN. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Schedule VI, Table VI-A. Schools and Playgrounds Designated of Chapter 
300 of the Traffic Code, of the University City Municipal Code is amended as provided 
herein. Language to be added to the Code is emphasized. This Ordinance 
contemplates no revisions to the Code other than those so designated; any language or 
provisions from the Code omitted from this Ordinance is represented by an ellipsis and 
remains in full force and effect.  

Section 2. Chapter 300 of the University City Municipal Code is hereby amended to add 
a new location where the City has designated as a stop intersection, to be added to the 
Traffic Code – Schedule VII, Table VII-A, as follows: 

Schedule VI: Vehicles Required to Stop 

Table VI-A. School and Playground Stops Designated. 

Intersection or Street Crossing  

Alley behind 6241/6263 Delmar Blvd at the raised pedestrian walkway (Mews). 

* * * 

Section 3. This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or 
corporation from any penalty heretofore incurred by the violation of the sections revised 
by this amendment nor bar the prosecution for any such violation. 

Section 4. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be punished in accordance with the provisions of the University City 
Municipal Code. 

Section 5.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 
as provided by law. 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-1-7



 
 

PASSED THIS________day of____________2015 
 
 

___________________________________  
    MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
 CITY CLERK 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-1-8



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE: August 3, 2015 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Map Amendment – rezone 1052, 1056, 1060, 1064, 1068, 
1072, 1076, 1080, 1084, 1086, 1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 
1100, 1106, 1110, 1114, 1118, 1122, 1126, 1130, 1134, 
1138, 1142, 1146, 1150, and 1158 Wilson Avenue from “SR” 
– Single Family Residential District to “PA” – Public Activity
District 

AGENDA SECTION: Unfinished Business 

COUNCIL ACTION: Passage of Ordinance required for Approval 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? : No 

BACKGROUND REVIEW: Both the Park Commission and the Plan Commission 
recommended approval of the proposed Map Amendment at their May 19 and May 27, 
2015 meetings respectively.  This agenda item requires a public hearing at the City 
Council level and consideration for the passage of an ordinance.  The first reading and 
public hearing should take place on July 13, 2015.  The second and third readings and 
passage of the ordinance could occur at the subsequent August 10, 2015 meeting. 

Attachments: 
1: Transmittal Letter from Plan Commission  
2: Staff Report and Park Commission 5/19/2015 meeting minutes excerpt 
3. Draft Ordinance and Exhibits

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1: 
Transmittal letter from Plan Commission 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-2



  

 
 
 
Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

 
 
July 1, 2015 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Joyce Pumm, City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
RE: Zoning Map Amendment – 1052, 1056, 1060, 1064, 1068, 1072, 1076, 1080, 

1084, 1086, 1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 1106, 1110, 1114, 1118, 1122, 1126, 
1130, 1134, 1138, 1142, 1146, 1150, and 1158 Wilson Avenue 

 
Dear Ms. Pumm, 
 
At its regular meeting on May 27, 2015 at 6:30 pm in the Heman Park Community 
Center, 975 Pennsylvania Avenue, University City, Missouri, 63130, the City Plan 
Commission considered the proposal to rezone the above-referenced properties on 
Wilson Avenue from “SR” – Single Family Residential District to “PA” – Public Activity 
District. 
 
By a vote of 6 to 0, the Plan Commission recommended approval of said Map 
Amendment to the University City Official Zoning Map. 
 

 
 
Linda Locke, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2: 
Staff Report and Park Commission 5/19/2015 

meeting minutes excerpt 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-4



 
Page 1 of 2 

  

 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:   May 27, 2015 
 
FILE NUMBER:   PC 15-06 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  2 
 
Applicant: City of University City 
 
Location: 1052, 1056, 1060, 1064, 1068, 1072, 1076, 1080, 1084, 

1086, 1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 1106, 1110, 1114, 
1118, 1122, 1126, 1130, 1134, 1138, 1142, 1146, 1150, and 
1158 Wilson Avenue 

 
Proposal: Zoning Map Amendment (rezoning) from “SR” – Single 

Family Residential District to “PA” – Public Activity District 
 
Existing Land Use: Vacant except for one single-family dwelling 
Proposed Land Use: Public park space / trail 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use 
North:  GC-General Commercial District  Commercial 
East:  SR-Single Family Residential District River Des Peres / Single-family residential 
South:  PA-Public Activity District   High School 
West:  SR-Single Family Residential District Single-family residential 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[ x ] Approval  [  ] Approval with Conditions [  ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Departmental Comments 
B. Maps   
 
Existing Property and Background 
The subject property consists of a band of 28 contiguous parcels approximately 4.16 acres in 
total area, located on the east side of Wilson Avenue, south of Olive Boulevard and north of 
Shaftesbury Avenue.  There is an existing single-family dwelling at 1052 Wilson Avenue, the 
southernmost parcel. 
 
The subject parcels are all in the FEMA 100-year flood plain of the River Des Peres. A majority 
of the parcels are also in the floodway.  With the exception of two parcels (1052 and 1138 
Wilson Avenue), the properties were acquired by the City of University City and single-family 
dwellings were demolished through a federal flood buyout program as a result of the severe 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-5



 
Page 2 of 2 

flood in 2008.  As conditioned by the federal grant, the properties must remain green space in 
perpetuity and park/trail is permitted. The properties are planned to be incorporated into a trail 
from Heman Park to Groby Road as part of the Centennial Greenway system being developed 
by Great Rivers Greenway.  To bring this planned land use into conformity with the City’s 
Zoning Code, the Department of Community Development is proposing that the buyout 
properties and the two other parcels be rezoned from the current “SR” – Single Family 
Residential District to “PA” – Public Activity District. 
 
The owner of the property at 1052 Wilson Ave. opted out of the federal buyout program and a 
single-family dwelling continues to occupy the site. This property is included should the owner 
be willing to sell or convert the property someday for green space/trail use.   
 
The vacant, tax delinquent property at 1138 Wilson Ave. is not owned by the City, but is 
included in the proposal due to its location in the middle of the proposed rezoning and its flood 
plain/floodway status.  The former dwelling was demolished through a property abatement 
process. 
 
As required in the Municipal Code, this rezoning proposal was considered by the Park 
Commission at their May 19, 2015 meeting at which time the Park Commission unanimously 
recommended approval. 
 
Analysis 
At issue is the appropriateness of changing the zoning of the subject property from “SR” – 
Single Family Residential District to “PA” – Public Activity District. 
 
The proposed land use map in the 2005 Comprehensive Plan Update depicts the properties as 
single-family residential.  However, this was prepared prior to the federal flood buyout program 
was utilized for the majority of these properties.  Based on the planned use for trail purposes 
and their location in the floodplain and floodway, it is staff’s opinion that the “SR” District is no 
longer appropriate for all these properties. 
 
The purpose of the “PA” – Public Activity District is to accommodate “uses which have a 
distinctly public character and to encourage the retention of certain properties in a relatively 
undeveloped state, such as public recreation uses.”  It is staff’s opinion that the “PA” District is 
an appropriate zoning classification for all these properties given its current flood 
plain/floodway status and the planned land use as a permitted use in the “PA” District. 
 
If this rezoning proposal is approved, the dwelling at 1052 Wilson Avenue may remain as a 
permitted use in the “PA” – Public Activity District, subject to the floodplain and “SR” – Single 
Family Residential District regulations.  
 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
Based on the preceding considerations, staff is of the opinion that the proposed rezoning is 
appropriate and reasonable and would not create a detrimental impact on the surrounding 
area.  Thus, staff recommends approval of the Zoning Map Amendment from “SR” – Single 
Family Residential District to “PA” – Public Activity District. 
 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-6



 

www.ucitymo.org 
 

  Public Works and Parks  
   6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8560, Fax: (314) 862-0694   
 

 
 
 
May 22, 2015 
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
Attn: Mr. Zach Greatens, Planner 
 
RE: Wilson Avenue Rezoning 
 
 
Dear Mr. Greatens; 
 
We have reviewed the request to rezone the properties as shown on the Wilson Avenue map 
from SR – Single Family Residential District to PA – Public Activity District and have no major 
comments and strongly support the change.  The Park Commission has also voted to support the 
change. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Richard L. Wilson PE 
Director 
 
 

 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-7

zgreatens
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT "A"



 
UNIVERSITY CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT 

6801 DELMAR BLVD.  
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 63130 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

www.ucitymo.org 

 
 
   May 22, 2015 

 
   
To:  Zachariah Greatens  
 

Reference: 28 parcels on Wilson Avenue.   
The proposal is to rezone the properties from SR – Single Family Residential District to PA – Public Activity 
District.  These are the properties that were part of the flood buyout.  The proposed use of the property is park / 
trail use. 
 
 
The Police Department understands that the land is vacant and a useful purpose is being sought.  There are 
certain considerations that we would like to be considered: 
 

1. Since this is residential area with limited traffic there should be proper lighting for any trail or park to 
provide added security.  The park should not have any obstructions such as landscaping or hills to 
hamper visibility from passerby such as police patrols. 

2. With this being so close to the high school, the natural usage by students going to and from school 
should be taken into consideration. 

3. Residential impact should be solicited from the remaining household in the immediate area adjacent to 
this project.   

 
 
Charles Adams 
Chief of Police 
 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-8



JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-9



OLIVE BLVD

N 
HA

NL
EY

 R
D

WILSON AVE

SHAFTESBURY AVE

MIDLAND BLVD

CHAMBERLAIN AVE

DREXEL DR

PU
RD

UE
 AV

E

BU
RC

H 
LN

AHERN CT

AHERN AVE

ANROSE DR

E PARKEDGE LN

W 
PA

RK
ED

GE
 LN

N 
JA

CK
SO

N A
VE

SALEEN CT

WA
LD

RO
N 

AV
E

MA
RI

LY
N 

LN

AHERN AVE
DREXEL DR

AHERN AVE

MIDLAND BLVD

N JACKSON AVE

7570

7401

7460

7400

1121

7430

1100

7270

997

7368

7318
7350

1019

7340
7290

1149

7380

1155

1021

7287

1111

7330

1152

7371

1166

1119

1143

1135

1110

1208
7301

7405

1125

1101

1131

1127

7530

75237529

1137

7499

7459

7401

1123

7232

1119

1115

7400

1112

1058

1129

1146

970

7500

7293

7411

7281

1065

7418

7404

1158

1122

7430

1156

7424

1134

1118

7425

1140

7529

7415

1157

1123

7442

1128

7409

1035

1100

7297

7315

7345 7341 7337

1116

1102

1064

1059

7421

7448
7460

7420

1101

1085

7536

7459

7421

7423
7419 7417

7455

7456

7225

7439
7451

1152

7425

7330

1153

7452

7495

7515

7465

7445

7444

7319

7359

1144

7515

11247515

7445

1148

7353 7347

1118

1060

1131

7441

7414
7434 7428

74207424
7438

1060

7435

7444
1130

7431

7441 7435

7438 7434

7425

7350

1122

7447

1149

7421

7443

7335

1150

1114

1081

1140

1163

1040

1146

1039

1068

1072

1069

1050

7423

7401

7466

1143

7408

1131

1169

7469

7467

7431

1094

7366

1076

7344

1067

1100

1110

7365

7322

7306

1065

1136

7427 1066

7428

1106

7350
7334 7330 7324

7362 7354

7304
7326

7308

7228

1087

1142

1149

1139

1159

1145

1163

1155

1139

1087
7350

1083

1130

1079

1134

1138

1075

1109

1079

1083

1053

1088

1135

7419

73141069

1092

7324

7323

7320

1126

7354

1091

1080

7335

7309

7405

1135

1090

1073

7345

7310

73377333

7327

1065

1062

1084

1070

7301
7233

1077

1077

1216

7334 7332

7321

1105

1101

1073

1059

1076

7339

1083

1095

73477365 73617401

751275207524

1056

7311

1052

741574097405

7343
7323

7335
7319

7245

73317327
7315 7307

73477353
7339

7516

7301
7239

7523

7526
7514

7530

753575317527 7519

74947498

7532

7235

7528

7471

7533

73757373

7519
1063

7342
7358

7490
7474

7483

7482

7491
7475

7486

74797487

7478 7470

7366

7475

7523

747774817485

1055

7489

1079

7315

1059

74267422 7414
7418

7247

7355
7359

7271

7342

7315

74087412

1051

7336

7341

7316

7510

7318

7514

7337 7335

7300

75247520
7518

75377535

1086
7512

7273

7311

7326

7400

7319

7334

7520
7518

7522

7323

7361

7312

7338
7404

7316
7320

7358

7300

7331

7311

7315

7346

7319

7340

7329

7346

7339 73277343

7316

7342 7338

7327

7331

7357 73477351

7355

7354

7360
7356

7343

7306

7307

1075

7353

1101

1081

7357

1089

7365

1219

7358 7350

1089

7354

1223

7200

7405

7346

1071

7409 1227

7336

1219

7220

7421

7330

7319

1067

N
0 400 800200

Feet

WILS
ON

  A
VE

SHAFTESBURY  AVE

Zoning Map Amendment  PC 15-06
Wilson Avenue properties

Plan Commission - May 27, 2015
Current Zoning

Prepared by: University City Dept. of Community
Development Staff - May, 2015;
Data Source: St. Louis County Department of
Planning, GIS Datasets 2014

ATTACHMENT "B"University City Parcels

Zoning District

SR - Single Family Residential District

MR - Medium Density Residential
District
HRO - High Density Residential/Office
District
GC - General Commercial District

PA - Public Activity District

Proposed Rezoning to PA-Public
Activity District

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-10



Zoning Map Amendment  PC 15-06 

Wilson Avenue 

Plan Commission - May 27, 2015 

Existing Conditions 

NOT TO SCALE 

Source: St. Louis County Property Viewer -maps.stlouisco.com/propertyview/  

Aerial Photography - 2014 N N 

Single - Family   Residential 

Single - Family   Residential 

Multi - Family  

Residential 

Commercial 

High  School 

Subject Property 

Si
ng

le
 - 

Fa
m

ily
   

Res
id

en
tial

 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-11



MINUTES OF THE PARK COMMISSION 
Centennial Commons, 7210 Olive Boulevard 

Tuesday, May 19, 2015 
 

President Ed Mass called the meeting to order at 6:35 pm.  Members present were: 
 
William Field     Megan Fuhler II, Project Manager & Park Commission Liaison 
Steve Goldstein    Lynda Euell-Taylor, Deputy Director of Recreation  
Kathy Standley    Richard Wilson, Director of Public Works and Parks  
Luther Baker     Ewald Winker, Park Operations Superintendent 
Nancy McClain    Steven Kraft, City Council Liaison    
Kimberly Jones  
 
Deposition of Minutes from April 21, 2015 
Mr. Goldstein asked for one (1) change to be made to the minutes as drafted. This change was to 
the time that the lights currently stay on at the Golf Course Driving range. The drafted minutes 
showed 10:00 pm, when the lights actually turn off at 9:30 pm. The minutes will be revised to show 
9:30 instead of 10:00 pm. Mr. Goldstein moved to approve the minutes of the April 21, 2015 Park 
Commission meeting with the changed discussed, Mr. Field seconded – vote taken, all approved.  
 
Citizens’ Comments 
None 
 
Wilson Avenue Buyout Area Rezoning 
Raymond Lai, Deputy Director of Community Development indicated that Community Development 
was seeking a recommendation from the Park Commission to rezone the Southeast side of the 
1000 and 1100 blocks of Wilson. These 28 properties are currently zoned “SR”- Single Family 
Residential District. 26 of the properties were acquired by the City using federal funds due to their 
location in the floodway and history of flooding. Community Development is proposing that the entire 
area be rezoned as “PA”- Public Activity District. Mr. Goldstein asked questions regarding the two 
homes that are not owned by the City, particularly the property that still had an occupied residential 
home. Mr. Lai indicated that the dwelling may remain as a permitted use, whether in the “SR” or 
“PA” District, subject to the floodplain regulations. Commissioners and City staff discussed the 
proposed projects for the area and the benefits of the rezoning. Mr. Mass moved to recommend 
rezoning of the Wilson properties to “PA” District, Ms. Standley seconded – vote taken, all approved. 
 
Department Reports 
Public Works and Parks Operations – Mr. Winker discussed projects that he and his crews have 
been working on this past month: 
      Parks Crews 

• Mowing number one activity – perfect growing conditions 
• Full spring mode, readying the pool for opening, providing assistance for several special 

events (Memorial Day Run, Fair U. City, School picnics, etc.), leaving little time for new 
projects 

• Found out on Tuesday, May 19 that the motors on the baby pool pumps needed replaced; 
otherwise the main pool looks great 
 

Forestry Crews 
• Hazard tree removals, pruning and planting continue 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 3: 
Draft Ordinance and Exhibits 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-13



INTRODUCED BY:________________    DATE:  July 13, 2015 
 
 
BILL NO.   9268      ORDINANCE NO. 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 400 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO ZONING DISTRICTS 
ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 400.070 THEREOF, AND ENACTING IN 
LIEU THEREOF A NEW OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, THEREBY AMENDING SAID MAP 
SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTIES LOCATED WITHIN 
THE CITY LIMITS OF UNIVERSITY CITY AT 1052, 1056, 1060, 1064, 1068, 1072, 
1076, 1080, 1084, 1086, 1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 1106, 1110, 1114, 1118, 1122, 
1126, 1130, 1134, 1138, 1142, 1146, 1150, AND 1158 WILSON AVENUE FROM “SR” 
– SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO “PA” PUBLIC ACTIVITY DISTRICT; 
AND ESTABLISHING PERMITTED LAND USES AND DEVELOPMENTS THEREIN; 
CONTAINING A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND PROVIDING A PENALTY. 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 400 of the University City Municipal Code divides the City 
into several zoning districts, and regulates the character of buildings which may be 
erected in each of said districts, and the uses to which the buildings and premises 
located therein may be put; and 
 

WHEREAS, both the Park Commission and the City Plan Commission examined 
a request for an amendment of the Official Zoning Map of the City to change the 
classification of properties located within the city limits of University City at 1052, 1056, 
1060, 1064, 1068, 1072, 1076, 1080, 1084, 1086, 1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 1106, 
1110, 1114, 1118, 1122, 1126, 1130, 1134, 1138, 1142, 1146, 1150, and 1158 Wilson 
Avenue from Single Family Residential District (“SR”) to Public Activity District (“PA”); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, both the Park Commission and the City Plan Commission, in their 
meetings at the Heman Park Community Center, 975 Pennsylvania Avenue, University 
City, Missouri, 63130 on May 19 and May 27, 2015 respectively, considered said 
request for map amendment and recommended to the City Council that it be enacted 
into an ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the 
City Council Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 p.m., on July 13, 2015, was duly published in 
the St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within said City on June 26, 
2015; and 
 

WHEREAS, said public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said 
notice, and all suggestions or objections concerning said amendment of the Official 
Zoning Map of the City were duly heard and considered by the City Council. 
 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-14



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 400 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to zoning, 
is hereby amended by repealing the Official Zoning Map illustrating the zoning districts 
established pursuant to Section 400.070 thereof, and enacting in lieu thereof a new 
Official Zoning Map, thereby amending the Official Zoning Map so as to change the 
classification of properties located within the city limits of University City at 1052, 1056, 
1060, 1064, 1068, 1072, 1076, 1080, 1084, 1086, 1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 1106, 
1110, 1114, 1118, 1122, 1126, 1130, 1134, 1138, 1142, 1146, 1150, and 1158 Wilson 
Avenue from Single Family Residential District (“SR”) to Public Activity District (“PA”). 
 

Section 2. Said properties at 1052, 1056, 1060, 1064, 1068, 1072, 1076, 1080, 
1084, 1086, 1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 1106, 1110, 1114, 1118, 1122, 1126, 1130, 
1134, 1138, 1142, 1146, 1150, and 1158 Wilson Avenue, totaling 4.2 acres, are more 
fully described with legal descriptions, attached hereto, marked Exhibit “A” and made a 
part hereof. 

 
The above described tracts having St. Louis County locator numbers of: 
1052 Wilson Avenue  17J130070 
1056 Wilson Avenue  17J130092 
1060 Wilson Avenue  17J130124 
1064 Wilson Avenue  17J130180 
1068 Wilson Avenue  17J130191 
1072 Wilson Avenue  17J130212 
1076 Wilson Avenue  17J130311 
1080 Wilson Avenue  17J130377 
1084 Wilson Avenue  17J141014 
1086 Wilson Avenue  17J141070 
1088 Wilson Avenue  17J141157 
1090 Wilson Avenue  17J141256 
1092 Wilson Avenue  17J141300 
1094 Wilson Avenue  17J141311 
1100 Wilson Avenue  17J141399 
1106 Wilson Avenue  17J141432 
1110 Wilson Avenue  17J141465 
1114 Wilson Avenue  17J141511 
1118 Wilson Avenue  17J141542 
1122 Wilson Avenue  17J141612 
1126 Wilson Avenue  17J420029 
1130 Wilson Avenue  17J420063 
1134 Wilson Avenue  17J420106 
1138 Wilson Avenue  17J420140 
1142 Wilson Avenue  17J420184 
1146 Wilson Avenue  17J420227 
1150 Wilson Avenue  17J420283 
1158 Wilson Avenue  17J420326 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-15



 
Section 3. The new Official Zoning Map of the City is attached hereto, marked 

Exhibit “B”, and incorporated herein by this reference thereto. 
 

Section 4. This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm 
or corporation from any penalty incurred by the violation of Chapter 400, nor bar the 
prosecution of any such violation. 
 

Section 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties provided in Chapter 
400, Article 9, Division 5 of the University City Municipal Code. 
 

Section 6. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 
passage as provided by law. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2015. 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-16



EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR REZONING – 1052, 1056, 1060, 1064, 
1068, 1072, 1076, 1080, 1084, 1086, 1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 1106, 1110, 1114, 
1118, 1122, 1126, 1130, 1134, 1138, 1142, 1146, 1150, AND 1158 WILSON AVENUE 
 
1052, 1056, 1060, 1064, 1068, 1072, 1076, 1080, 1084, and 1086 Wilson Avenue – 
Part of Lot 22 of Central Suburbs, a subdivision in St. Louis County, Missouri, according 
to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 7, Page 23 of the St. Louis County Records. 
 
1088, 1090, 1092, 1094, 1100, 1106, 1110, 1114, 1118, 1122, 1126, 1130, 1134, 1138, 
1142, 1146, 1150, and 1158 Wilson Avenue – Lots 1 through 17A of Wilson Square 
Subdivision Amended Plat, a subdivision in St. Louis County, Missouri, according to the 
plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 61, Page 44 of the St. Louis County Records. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-17



EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 

JAugust 3, 2015 L-2-18



  
 
 
     Council Agenda Item Cover 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 3, 2015 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant – Voluntary Buyout 
 
          AGENDA SECTION: New Business 
 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:      Yes 
 

 
BACKGROUND:  The City of University City received grant funds through the Department 
of Homeland Security and Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) Flood 
Mitigation Assistance (FMA) Program for the acquisition and demolition of three (3) severe 
repetitive loss (SRL) residential properties located on Wilson Avenue.  Specifically, 
$486,017.60 in Federal funds is granted for the completion of the FY 2014 FMA/SRL 
Voluntary Flood Buyout Project, which is 100% of the project cost estimate. The City is not 
responsible for any funding on this project unless the project exceeds the award amount.   
The City has executed FEMA’s Flood Mitigation Assistance Program Funding Approval 
and Grant Agreement forms.  The City has agreed to accept responsibility for adherence 
to all grant requirements.  
 
The City is required as part of the Flood Mitigation Assistance Program to adopt a 
Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy, in order to proceed with the buyout process.  The City’s FY 
2014 FMA/SRL Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy is attached in Exhibit A.  A Resolution 
adopting the FY 2014 FMA/SRL Buyout Policy is also attached. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopts the Resolution 
establishing a Voluntary Buyout Policy for the FY 2014 FMA/SRL Buyout. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
• A Resolution Establishing a Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy for the FY 2014 FMA/SRL 

Buyout 
• Exhibit A: FY 2014 FMA/SRL Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy 

August 3, 2015 M-1-1



City of University City Voluntary Buyout Policy 
 

 
The City of University City Council hereby adopts the City of University City Voluntary Flood 
Buyout Policy as follows: 
       
Priorities of Buyout Program 
 
1. Residential properties on the original application will be prioritized based on the 

Benefit Cost Ratio. Those with a higher value will be given first priority: 
 1. 1139 Wilson Avenue – Benefit Cost Analysis 1.98 
 2. 1135 Wilson Avenue – Benefit Cost Analysis 1.74 
 3. 1143 Wilson Avenue – Benefit Cost Analysis 1.51 
2. Residential properties added to the buyout will be given consideration based on: 

1. Frequency of inundation; 
2. Proximity to the creek; and  
3. Elevation 

 
Open Space Assurance Statement 
 
1.   The City of University City, through adoption of this Policy does hereby provide the 
necessary assurance that all property acquired through the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program will 
be deed restricted, dedicated and maintained in perpetuity for uses outlined below in 44 CFR 
206.434(e).  
 
2.    (e) Property acquisitions and relocation requirements. Property acquisitions and relocation 
projects for open space proposed for funding pursuant to a major disaster declared on or after 
December 3, 2007 must be implemented in accordance with part 80 of this chapter. For major 
disasters declared before December 3, 2007, a project involving property acquisition or the 
relocation of structures and individuals is eligible for assistance only if the applicant enters into 
an agreement with the FEMA Regional Administrator that provides assurances that: 
(1) The following restrictive covenants shall be conveyed in the deed to any property acquired, 
accepted, or from which structures are removed (hereafter called in section (d) the property): (i) 
The property shall be dedicated and maintained in perpetuity for uses compatible with open 
space, recreational, or wetlands management practices; and (ii) No new structure(s) will be built 
on the property except as indicated below: 
(A) A public facility that is open on all sides and functionally related to a designated open space 
or recreational use; 
(B) A rest room; or 
(C) A structure that is compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management usage 
and proper floodplain management policies and practices, which the Administrator approves in 
writing before the construction of the structure begins. 
(iii) After completion of the project, no application for additional disaster assistance will be made 
for any purpose with respect to the property to any Federal entity or source, and no Federal entity 
or source will provide such assistance. 
(2) In general, allowable open space, recreational, and wetland management uses include parks 
for outdoor recreational activities, nature reserves, cultivation, grazing, camping (except where 

August 3, 2015 M-1-2



adequate warning time is not available to allow evacuation), temporary storage in the open of 
wheeled vehicles which are easily movable (except mobile homes), unimproved, previous 
parking lots, and buffer zones. 
(3) Any structures built on the property according to paragraph (d)(1) of this section, shall be 
floodproofed or elevated to the Base Flood Elevation plus one foot of freeboard. 
 
General Eligibility Requirements  
 
In general, to be eligible to participate in the City of University City flood buyout program, all 
conditions listed below must be met: 
 
1. Property must be listed in the original buyout application submitted to the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency. 
 
2. The property must be a primary residential home (no vacation homes, clubhouses or 

businesses). 
 
General Buyout Policy 
 
1. A residential buyout package must encompass no more than one (1) acre or less.  Any 

survey fees will be paid for by the City with grant funds. 
 
2. Garages and outbuildings must be located on the same property and be considered as a 

part of the residential package. 
 
3. The City will conduct a title search to determine the rightful owner(s) of the property 

prior to making an offer to buy.  The cost for the title search will be paid for by the City 
with grant funds. 

 
4. If a title search is not conclusive regarding true ownership, it will be the sole 

responsibility of the reported property owner to prove ownership.  The City will not pay 
for any legal costs necessary to prove ownership or provide clear title. 

 
5. The title to the property must be clear of all liens before the city will take title to the 

property.  If the lien amounts cannot be satisfied prior to the closing, all lien amounts due 
will be deducted from the buyout proceeds at the time of closing.  If clear title cannot be 
provided by the property owner, the property will be withdrawn from the project.  

 
6. All properties will be appraised by a State of Missouri board certified, licensed appraiser.  

This process is outlined in more detail on page 3.  The cost for the appraisal will be paid 
for with grant funds. 

 
7. All property owners must sign a statement recognizing that this program is voluntary and 

therefore are not entitled to any relocation assistance under the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance Act.  By signing the statement, the property owners also indicate their 
understanding that the City will not invoke any power of eminent domain to take the 
property as part of the grant program, if the property owner chooses to withdraw from the 
project. 

 

August 3, 2015 M-1-3



8. Property owners will be given two (2) weeks from the date of offer to decide if they will 
accept or reject the City’s offer to purchase. 

 
9. Property owners will be required to vacate the premises entirely prior to closing.  All 

personal property remaining on or in the structure(s) will be considered public property 
after closing. 

 
10. Property owners are not allowed to remove structural items from the home or any 

outbuildings after the appraisal is completed.  If a property owner wishes to remove an 
item that would normally remain in a real estate transaction (for example, light fixtures, 
windows, doors, hot water heaters, furnace etc.) the appraisal must be reduced by the 
current market value of the removed item.   

 
11. Once a property has been acquired by the City, any items within the structure must be 

disposed of in a public manner.  The City may choose to remove usable items and store 
them until a public auction can be held or bids received by all interested citizens.  Or, 
salvage rights may be granted to the demolition contractor, in which case, citizens 
then would contact the demolition contractor if interested in select items.  Any 
Program Income generated by the project will be documented. 

 
12. Current property owners are responsible for the property taxes on the structure from the 

first of the year through the date of the closing on a pro-rated basis. 
 
13.  Demolition costs and liability expenses for the buyout structure will be the responsibility 

of the City upon transfer of title.  Until the title is transferred, the property owner remains 
solely responsible for the property. 

 
14. No structure may be demolished until the Missouri State Office of Historic Preservation 

and the Federal Emergency Management Agency have determined that the property is not 
historically significant or that historically significant properties have been recorded and 
documented sufficiently to enable the city to demolish the structure. 

 
15. The Date of Negotiations for the City of University City is the day the City provides 

written notification to potential buyout participants that grant funding has been provided 
to the City for a voluntary buyout program. 

 
 
Fair Market Value Determination 
 
1. All offers to property owners will be based on the current fair market value established 

by a State of Missouri board certified, licensed appraiser minus any Duplication of 
Benefits. 

 
2. The City, in compliance with local procurement procedures, will hire a State of Missouri 

board certified, licensed appraiser to complete the appraisals.  The cost for the appraisal 
will be paid for by the grant funds. 

 
3. The City’s grant administrator will coordinate when the property will be appraised with 

each owner.  The City encourages each property owner to be present during the site 

August 3, 2015 M-1-4



inspection by the appraiser to aid the appraiser in properly identifying property boundary 
lines and outbuildings etc. 

 
4. If the property owner has an appraisal that was completed within the last twelve (12) 

months by a State of Missouri board certified, licensed appraiser, he/she may submit that 
appraisal to the City for review.  (NOTE: property owners are not required to submit the 
appraisal.)  If the City determines that the appraisal was completed in accordance with 
the City’s buyout program guidelines, this appraisal may be used to establish the fair 
market value of the property.  The City will not reimburse property owners for appraisal 
costs they incurred when this appraisal was completed. 

 
5. The appraisal completed by the City is the official fair market value.  If a property owner 

is in disagreement with the value indicated, he/she may hire a State of Missouri board 
certified, licensed appraiser, at his/her own expense, and provide an original appraisal to 
the City for review.  The City will then forward both the City of University City and 
owner appraisal to the Missouri State Emergency Management Agency (SEMA).  The 
State’s independent licensed appraiser will review both appraisals and determine the final 
fair market value.  The State’s decision is final. 

 
6. All property appraisals will be completed with the following special buyout provisions: 
 

• The current appraisal must clearly indicate the value of the entire buyout package and 
  1) the value of the residential structure only 
  2) the value of the underlying real property and outbuildings only 
  

• Appraisals will be based on comparable sales for properties located in a flood hazard 
area.  If properties not located in a flood hazard area are used as comparable sales, a 
location adjustment must be reflected in the appraisal. 
 

• Property previously purchased by the City of University City as part of the flood buyout 
program may not be used as comparable sales for other buyout appraisals. 

 
• Rental property will be appraised on the sales comparison approach.  In no event may 

rental property be acquired based on a market value established through the rental income 
approach. 

 
7. All property appraisals (whether completed by the City’s appraiser or submitted by a 

property owner) will be forwarded to the Missouri State Emergency Management 
Agency prior to an offer being made. 

 
 
Duplication of Benefits (DOBs) 
 
Financial payments paid to homeowners for structural repairs to the flooded property will be 
deducted from the current appraisal if not used for the intended purpose.  Each property owner 
participating in a FEMA flood buyout must sign an affidavit disclosing any benefits received 
from any sources in conjunction with the event leading to the buyout project. 
 
 

August 3, 2015 M-1-5



Some examples when a DOB may occur include the following: 
 
1. The property owner has received insurance, loans, repair grants, compensation in 

compliance with a court order, or other assistance available to them to help address 
damages to the structure regardless of whether such benefits were sought or received.  
This is because payment of full current fair market value (FMV) compensates the owner 
for the loss of value that has occurred; 

 
2.  Legal claims are appropriate or legal obligations arise in connection to the property that 

may provide a benefit to the property owner.  Parties involved in pending legal disputes 
must take reasonable steps to recover benefits available to them; 

 
3.  Relocated tenants receive relocation assistance and rental assistance but have received 

payments for the same purpose as part of the disaster assistance provided by any agency 
or payments from any other source.  Any buyout-related assistance provided to tenants 
must be reduced accordingly.  However, tenant-related DOB deductions do not affect 
amounts available to the property owner. 

 
Property owners who have an SBA loan will have to repay the loan or roll it over to a new 
property at closing as part of the settlement.  Note, premiums paid for up to five years prior to the 
disaster event to the National Flood Insurance Program as reported by FEMA will be reimbursed 
where applicable. 
 
When property owners retain receipts for any repairs made, the property owner may submit them 
through the City to SEMA.  SEMA then submits the receipts to FEMA for review and approval to 
offset some or all of the DOBs.  (Note: Receipts must be from bonafide businesses recognized 
by local governments.  The labor of property owners, friends, family, or volunteers for clean 
up and repair is not eligible to offset the DOBs.) 
 
If a property owner carried insurance through the National Flood Insurance Program 
(NFIP) at the time of the event, a payment equal to the amount paid for insurance 
premiums for up to five years prior to the event will be refunded to the policy holder as part 
of the Duplication of Benefits calculation. 
 
 
Buyout Categories 
 
The appraised value of a property and the occupancy status (owner occupied or renter occupied) 
will determine what type of buyout offer a participant will receive.  The criteria for each type of 
offer is as follows: 
 
General Buyout 

 
Criteria: 
 
 1. Home and underlying real property is owned by the same owner 

August 3, 2015 M-1-6



 2. Property is occupied by the owner of the property (at time of event) or a tenant/renter* 
 
A property and property owner meeting the criteria listed above will be acquired at the current 
fair market value established by a qualified appraisal less any Duplication of Benefits. 
 
 Example: Property currently appraised at $40,000 
   Duplication of Benefits total $5,000 
   Property owner will be offered $35,000 
 
 *tenant may qualify for a tenant relocation assistance grant minus any Duplication of Benefits; 
(see page 8)  
 
Land Plus Owner Relocation Payment 
 
Criteria: 
 

1. Home and underlying real property is owned by the same owner as a primary 
 residence 

2. Property is occupied by the owner of the property (i.e., owner-occupied) 
3. Meet all requirements as outlined below per the Hazard Mitigation Assistance 

 Unified Guidance 
 
For a property owner to receive a supplemental payment for Owner Relocation, 
the City must demonstrate that all of the following circumstances exist:  

 
• Decent, safe, and sanitary housing of comparable size and capacity is not available in 

non-hazard prone sites within the community at the anticipated acquisition price of the 
property being vacated; and/or 
 

• The project would otherwise have a disproportionately high adverse effect on low-
income or minority populations because project participants within those populations 
would not be able to secure comparable decent, safe, and sanitary housing; and 

 
• Funds cannot be secured from other more appropriate sources, such as housing agencies 

or voluntary groups. 
 
 

Relocation Assistance Categories 
 
Based on the buyout categories listed above, two (2) types of “relocation” payments may be 
available: 
 
1. Replacement Housing Payment a.k.a. Owner Relocation (maximum $31,000) 
2. Renter Relocation Assistance payment (maximum $7,200 plus moving costs) 
 
Replacement Housing (aka Owner Relocation) Payment 
 
1. Maximum owner relocation payment a buyout participant may receive is $31,000. 
 
2. Individuals and families entitled to a replacement housing payment are those that: 

1. Own and occupy the dwelling participating in the buyout program as a primary 
residence, and 

2. Owned and occupied the dwelling participating during the incident period for the 
disaster, and 

3. Meets all other requirements as listed under the Buyout Categories section of this 

August 3, 2015 M-1-7



document: 
  

• The property owner must purchase a replacement dwelling outside the 
Special Flood Hazard Area.  Rental, lease, or other occupancy of a 
replacement dwelling does not qualify for a replacement housing payment. 
 

• The replacement housing payment is determined by the purchase price of the 
replacement dwelling minus the Fair Market Value of the flood damaged 
dwelling.   
 

• It is the responsibility of the homeowner to locate a new replacement home 
and provide all required documentation to the City’s grant administrator.   
 

• Mobile homes are eligible replacement dwelling units provided that the 
mobile home has been purchased and transported to a dwelling site outside 
the Special Flood Hazard Area prior to any replacement housing payment 
being made. 
 

• The City will not make a replacement housing payment until the buyout site 
is vacated and the new dwelling purchased and occupied.  The City’s grant 
administrator will coordinate property closings to ensure that the property 
owner is provided with the replacement housing payment in the most 
expedient manner possible. 
 

• The owner may choose between a straight buyout or a replacement housing 
payment offer, whichever creates a better financial assistance payment to the 
property owner.  

 
Example: 

 
  Fair Market Value of Replacement Home  $35,000 

 Fair Market Value of Flood-Damaged Home  $21,000 
 
 Cost of new home:    $35,000 
 Less: value of flood-damaged home:  ($21,000) 
 Replacement Housing Payment:   $14,000 CANNOT EXCEED $31,000 
 
 Homeowner receives  $21,000 
 Plus:    $14,000 
 Total Buyout Offer:  $35,000* 
 
*This amount is subject to a deduction for Duplication of Benefits as outlined previously in this 
document, if applicable. 
 
Renter Relocation Assistance Payment 
 
1. Due to the involuntary nature of the impact of a buyout project on tenants/renters, they 

MAY be eligible for relocation assistance should a property they reside in be acquired by 
the City through the flood buyout program. 

 
2. The maximum renter relocation assistance grant may not exceed $7,200 plus the cost to 

move personal property located inside the property based on a standard table of costs. 
 
3. It is the responsibility of the property owner or renter to contact the City to determine if a 

renter is eligible for a grant. 
 

August 3, 2015 M-1-8



4. A Relocation Assistance to Tenants/Renters Worksheet must be completed and certain 
documentation provided by the renter/landlord to determine the level of assistance, if any. 

 
5. The payment for moving personal property consists of household furniture and is 

determined by pre-established government charts based on the number of furnished rooms 
in the property. 

 
6. No renter relocation assistance payment will be provided until the property in the buyout 

program has been acquired with completed closing procedures. 
 
7. If a tenant/renter has received funds from other primary funding sources (FEMA, other 

grants, and/or funds from any other sources) such as insurance and other funds to address 
the same purpose or loss, Duplication of Benefits may apply.  This includes any funds 
received by the tenant/renter provided through the FEMA disaster assistance programs 
including temporary housing and rental assistance.  Any acquisition-related assistance 
provided to tenants/renters must be reduced accordingly.  Tenant/renter-related Duplication 
of Benefits deductions do not affect amounts available to the property owner. 

 
8. Tenants/renters must also certify that they are a U.S. citizen or are lawfully present in the 

United States to be considered eligible for this assistance. 
 
 
Environmental Considerations 
 
Participants in the buyout program must sign a Sales Contract plus all Exhibits (A, B, and C) 
which, by signing, represents and warrants to the City that: 
 
1. There are no abandoned wells, agricultural drainage wells, solid waste disposal areas or 

underground storage tanks (as defined in Revised Statutes of Missouri) located in, on or 
about the property; 

 
2. There is and has been no hazardous waste stored, generated, treated, transported, installed, 

dumped, handled or placed in, on or about the property; 
 
3. At no time have any federal or state hazardous waste cleanup funds been expended with 

respect to any of the property; 
 
4. There has never been any solid waste disposal site or underground storage tank located in, 

on or about the property, nor has there been any release from any underground storage tank 
on real property contiguous to the property which has resulted in any hazardous substance 
coming in contact with the property; 

 
5. The seller has not received any directive, citation, notice, letter or other communication, 

whether written or oral, from the Environmental Protection Agency, the Missouri 
Department of Natural Resources, any other governmental agency with authority under any 
Environmental Laws, or any other person or entity regarding the release, disposal, 
discharge or presence of any hazardous waste on the property, or any violation of any 
Environmental laws; and 

 
6. To the best of property owner’s knowledge, neither the property nor any real property 

contiguous to the property nor any predecessors in title to the property are in violation of or 
subject to any existing, pending or threatened investigation or inquiry by any governmental 
authority or to any removal or remedial obligations under Environmental Laws. 

 
 

August 3, 2015 M-1-9



 
Special Considerations 
 
Any scenarios that have not been covered by the approved City of University City Buyout Policy 
will be reviewed by an advisory council consisting of representatives from SEMA and the City of                   
City Council.  In the event of disputes, differences of interpretation, or disagreements over these 
guidelines, the decision of the City, acting by and through the City Council shall be final and in 
all cases shall be the determining factor, after consultation with the State of Missouri. 
 
 
Approved and read by the City Council on                                            . 
 
 
 
 
 
Mayor 
City of University City 

August 3, 2015 M-1-10



RESOLUTION  2015 - 18 
RESOULTION ESTABLISHING A VOLUNTARY FLOOD BUYOUT POLICY 

FOR THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI  
FY 2014 FMA/SRL VOLUNTARY FLOOD BUYOUT PROJECT 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOUR, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has approved grant funding through the Flood Mitigation 
Assistance (FMA) Program for the acquisition and demolition of three (3) flood-prone residential properties located on Wilson 
Avenue.  Specifically, $486,017.60 in Federal funds is granted for the completion of the FY 2014 FMA/SRL Voluntary Flood Buyout 
Project (the “2014 FMA/SRL Project).  The City has executed FEMA’s Flood Mitigation Assistance Program Funding Approval and 
Grant Agreement forms.  The City has agreed to accept responsibility for adherence to all grant requirements.  

Section 2.  The City is required by FEMA to adopt a Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy.  The City’s FY 2014 FMA/SRL 
Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy (the “2014 FMA/SRL Policy) is hereby approved in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
A. 

Section 3.  Representatives of the City are hereby authorized to use such policies in connection with the acquisition and 
demolition of the residential properties on Wilson Avenue.    

Section 4.  The City does hereby provide the necessary assurance that restrictive covenants shall be conveyed in the deed to 
any property the City acquires through FEMA’s Flood Mitigation Assistance Program, as follows: 1) The property shall be dedicated 
and maintained in perpetuity for uses compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management practices; 2)  No new 
structure(s) will be built on the property, except as approved under Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Section 206.434(d) 
(44CFR206.434(d)); and, 3) After completion of the project, no application for additional disaster assistance will be made for any 
purpose with respect to the property to any federal entity or source, and no federal entity or source will provide such assistance. 

Section 5.  Only properties meeting the following requirements are eligible to participate in the Wilson Buyout Project: 1) 
The property must be listed in the original buyout application submitted to FEMA or later officially amended to the buyout by both the 
Missouri State Emergency Management Agency (SEMA) and FEMA, and 2) The property must be a primary residential home.  
Vacation homes, clubhouses or businesses are not eligible for acquisition under this buyout program.  

Section 6.  As required by SEMA, any changes and additions to the 2014 FMA/SRL Policy will be reviewed by an advisory 
committee consisting of representatives from SEMA and the City Council.  In the event of disputes, differences of interpretation, or 
disagreements over the guidelines, the decision of the City, acting by and through the City Council, shall be final and in all cases shall 
be the determining factor, after consultation with SEMA. 

Section 7.  The Mayor, the City Manager and other officers and representatives of the City are hereby authorized and 
directed to take such other action as may be necessary to carry out the 2014 FMA/SRL Project. 

Section 8.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage by the City Council and signed by the 
Mayor. 

Passed by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of University City, Missouri on the 3rd day of August, 2015. 

(SEAL) _______________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
City Clerk            

August 3, 2015 M-1-11



  
 
 
     Council Agenda Item Cover 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 3, 2015 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: St. Louis Regional All-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2015-2020 
 
          AGENDA SECTION: New Business 
 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:      No 
 

 
BACKGROUND:  In order to be eligible for mitigation project grant funding through the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the City must adopt a Hazard 
Mitigation Plan pursuant to the requirements of 44 CFR Par 201 – Mitigation Planning and 
the Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Planning Guidance. The adopted plan must be updated 
every five years to comply with Federal rules. 
 
In 2004 and again in 2009, the East-West Gateway Council of Governments (EWG), with 
collaboration from five Missouri counties, developed the All-Hazard Mitigation plan for the 
St. Louis, Missouri Metropolitan Region. This plan covers five Missouri counties and the 
135 municipalities and 50 school districts, which are located within those counties. The 
plan is designed to help protect public safety and prevent loss of life or injury in the event 
of a natural disaster, as well as reduces risk to existing and future development and to 
prevent damage to each community’s unique economic, cultural and environmental 
assets. It will also help to improve the operational effectiveness of local governments and 
school districts following any natural disaster, by providing recommendations for advance 
preparation. 
 
Recently the East-West Gateway Council of Governments updated and submitted the St. 
Louis Regional All-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2015-2020. Since the City of University City is 
one of the municipalities covered by the St. Louis Regional All-Hazard Mitigation Plan, the 
City is able to adopt the EWG plan instead of creating its own plan. The adoption of this 
plan will allow City staff to move forward with the application for a Flood Mitigation 
Assistance Grant through FEMA that must be submitted by the end of August 2015. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council passes the Resolution 
adopting the St. Louis Regional All-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2015-2020. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
• A Resolution Adopting the St. Louis Regional All-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2015-2020 

(Updated 2015) 
 
Due to the length of the St. Louis Regional All-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2015-2020 (295 
pages without the appendices), the plan has not been attached, but can be accessed 
using the link below: 

 
http://www.ewgateway.org/download/AllHazMit/ 

August 3, 2015 M-2-1

http://www.ewgateway.org/download/AllHazMit/


RESOLUTION  2015 - 19 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
ADOPTING THE ST. LOUIS REGIONAL ALL-HAZARD 

MITIGATION PLAN 2015-2020 (UPDATED 2015) 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of University City recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to people 
and property within the City of University City. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of University City has participated in the preparation of a multi- hazard 
mitigation plan, hereby known as the St. Louis Regional All-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2015-2020 
(hereafter referred to as the Plan) in accordance with the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plan identifies mitigation goals and actions to reduce or eliminate long-term 
risk to people and property in the City of University City from the impacts of future hazards and 
disasters. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of University City recognizes that land use policies have a major impact on 
whether people and property are exposed to natural hazards, the City of University City will endeavor to 
integrate the Plan into the comprehensive planning process. 
 
 WHEREAS, adoption by the City of University City demonstrates their commitment to hazard 
mitigation and achieving the goals outlined in the Plan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOUR, AS FOLLOWS:  
 
The City of University City hereby adopts the St. Louis Regional All-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2015-2020 
in accordance with the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. 
 
This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage by the City Council and 
signature by the Mayor. 

 
Adopted this 3rd day of August, 2015. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)       _______________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk                                                            

August 3, 2015 M-2-2



                  
 
 
 
    Council Agenda Item Cover  

____________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                         
 
MEETING DATE:  August 3, 2015                                     
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Resolution for Fiscal Year 2014-2015- Budget Amendment # 2 
 
AGENDA SECTION:   New Business 
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    No, needs to be approved by end of August and this 
is the only meeting scheduled in August. 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: Attached is the final budget amendment for fiscal year 2015.  This 
amendment incorporates the adjustment of expenditures between divisions and departments 
that have significant variances to the adopted budget and previously approved transfers from 
the fund reserve for all funds including $400,000 from the General Fund. 
 
General Fund  
1) General Administration 

The professional services fees have increased as a result of  having the Lions Gate 
restoration work completed.  A transfer of $30,000 from Salaries – Part-time and Temporary 
help is needed to cover this overage. 
 

2) Police 
A transfer of $127,300 from Salaries - Full-time to cover over time, Part-time employees and 
related benefits.  
 

3) Fire 
A transfer of $128,000 from Salaries - Full-time and Part-time to cover over time. 
 

4) Public Works and Parks 
      Project 1213-Sidewalk and Curb Replacement was approved by City Council on May 26,       

2015.  The budget for sidewalk-curb replacement for FY 2015 had already been spent       
making timely repairs on severely deteriorated/damaged sidewalks.  The transfer of       
$400,000 from General Fund reserve is needed. 

 
Other Funds 
 
5)  Sewer Lateral Fund 

The sewer lateral repair expenses exceeded the original budget.  To cover the current cost        
of the sewer lateral projects that are already contracted or approved, and to avoid any        
interruption of program services needed by the residents and per the County tax regulations, 
a transfer of $100,000 from the fund reserve is requested. 

 
6)    Economic Development Sales Tax 

Increase sales tax revenue by $30,000, due to the sales tax received thru July 2015 was  
higher than the budget. 

August 3, 2015 M-3-1



 
The effect on the General Fund from these amendments is as follows: 
 

    
 
The changes in budget amendment # 2 will reduce the General Fund unassigned fund reserve 
by $400,000 while the changes in the Sewer Lateral Fund will also reduce the fund reserve by 
$100,000. Economic Development Sales Tax will have an increase of $30,000 to the fund 
reserve. 
 
The resolution for approval of the amendment is attached, as well as details of the budget 
amendment.  The details of budget transfers for the amounts up to $25,000 that were delegated 
to the City Manager are also attached for information only.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval  

Original Adopted Budget Surplus 60,000$               
  Use of General Fund Reserve - Cost Study (126,015)             
  Use of General Fund Reserve - Millar Park (200,000)             
  Use of General Fund - Additional Contribution
          - Non-Uniformed (1,010,003)          
          - Police & Fire (659,437)             
  Balance after Budget Amendments # 1 (1,935,455)          
  Use of General Fund Reserve - Sidewalk and 
            Curb Replacement (400,000)             

  Balance after Budget Amendments # 2 (2,335,455)$        

August 3, 2015 M-3-2



Resolution 2015 - 20 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 (FY15) 
BUDGET – AMENDMENT # 2 AND APPROPRIATING SAID AMOUNTS 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

University City, Missouri, that the Annual Budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 

2014, was approved by the City Council and circumstances now warrant amendment to 

that original budget. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in accordance with the City Charter, the 

several amounts stated in the budget amendment as presented, are herewith 

appropriated to the several objects and purposes named. 

 
Adopted this 3rd day of August, 2015 

 
      

________________________________ 
     Mayor  
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
Certified to be Correct as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
 City Attorney 
 
 
 

August 3, 2015 M-3-3



 
 
 
 

GENERAL FUND
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) General Administration
6010 Professional Services 30,000               Lions Gate Restoration
5001 Salaries-Part-time (30,000)                

2) Police
5340 Salaries - Part-time 22,000               Increase Part-time dispatcher 
5380 Overtime 35,000               Increase overtime 
5420 Workers Comp. 4,300                  Workers Comp.
5460 Medical Insurance 35,000               Increase benefit
5740 Pension Contribution 31,000               Increase benefit
5001 Salaries-Full-time (127,300)             

3) Fire 
5380 Overtime 128,000             Overtime
5340 Salaries-Part-time (7,000)                  
5001 Salaries-Full-time (121,000)             

4) Public Works and Parks
8060 Curb, Sidewalks & Alleys 400,000             Sidewalk and Curb Replacement Project

Total Increase in Expenditures 685,300             (285,300)             

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 
REDUCTION IN FUND BALANCE ($400,000)

SEWER LATERAL FUND
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
7) Public Works

6450 Sewer Lateral Expense $100,000 Increase number of repairing project

TOTAL SEWER LATERAL FUND ($100,000)
REDUCTION IN FUND BALANCE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX
Revenue Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
8) Sale Tax Revenue $30,000 Actual Sales tax as of July 2015 

  was higher than anticipated amount.

TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX FUND 30,000$               
INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE

FY 15 Budget Amendment # 2
To be Approved by the City Council

 August 3, 2015

August 3, 2015 M-3-4



 
 
 
 
 

GENERAL FUND
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
1) Legislation

6720 Election Costs 10,000            Additional cost for GO Bonds
6010 Professional Services (10,000)            voting

2) General Administration
6090 Postage 3,000              Extra postages for mailing GO Bonds
6070 Temporary Labor (3,000)                 education
7850 Awards & Gifts 3,500              Appreciation dinner for Boards and 
7090 Office & Computer Equip. (3,500)                  Commissions

3) Human Resources
5001 Salaries Full-time 1,000              
5340 Salaries Part-time (1,000)             
6050 Maintenance Contract 1,200              Out source Benefit Administration
6010 Professional Services (1,200)             

4) Finance
5340 Salaries Part-time 8,000              Temporary part-time needed during vacancy
5001 Salaries Full-time (8,000)                of Admin. Asst. position
6001 Auditing Services 5,300              Additional extra hours for Auditors
6010 Professional Services (5,300)                auditing FY 2014
7001 Office Supplies 4,000              Increase demand from other depts.
7650 Parking Meter Parts (4,000)             
6170 Insurance Liaility 3,400              Was not originally budgeted
6610 Staff Training (3,400)             

5) Information Technology
5420 Workers Comp. 2,000              Workers comp. was not budgeted
5001 Salaries Full-time (2,000)                  adding new position 2nd half 
5460 Medical Insurance 8,000              Adjusting benefits for new position
5660 Social Security 2,200              
5900 Medicare 600                 
6560 Technical Services (10,800)          Reclassify  budget
6010 Professional Services 12,000            
6050 Maintenance Contracts 6,000              
8180 Office Furniture and Equipment (18,000)          Reclassify  budget
6400 Office Equipment Maintenance 2,800              
6320 Internet Service (2,800)             Reclassify  budget
7001 Office Supplies 1,300              
7090 Office & Computer Equip. (1,300)             Reclassify  budget

6) Court
6170 Insurance - Liability 3,000              Was not originally budgeted
7090 Office & Computer Equipment 3,600              
6010 Professional Service (6,600)             

FY 15 Budget Amendment # 2
To be Delegated to  City Manager

 August 3, 2015

August 3, 2015 M-3-5



 

7) Police
6010 Professional Service 2,800              Increase in Police & Liability Ins. Prem.
6170 Insurance-Liability 2,000                  due to number of claims.
6230 Insurance-Police 2,900              
6050 Maintenance Contract (7,700)             

8) Fire
6400 Office Equip. Maintenance 4,200              Adjusted budget to cover actual
6560 Technology Services 6,000                 expenditures
7090 Office & Comp. Equip. (10,200)          
7530 Medical Supplies 4,500              Reclass supplies 
7570 Hardware & Hand Tools (4,500)             

APPROVAL SECTION:

City Manager Date

 August 3, 2015

FY 15 Budget Amendment # 2 (Continued)
To be Delegated to  City Manager

August 3, 2015 M-3-6



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  August 3, 2015      

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Shared Lane Markings Project – Transportation Alternatives 
Program Agreement    

AGENDA SECTION:   New Business 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:    No 

BACKGROUND REVIEW: 

The City of University City applied for federal funds through the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission and administered by East West Gateway Council of 
Governments and the Missouri Department of Transportation, to install full-lane width 
enlarged shared lane markings along five different streets within University City, in 
accordance with the City of University City Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan.   

The Missouri Department of Transportation requires that the City execute the attached 
“Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission Program Agreement” between The 
Federal Highway Administration, Department of Transportation and the City of University 
City. 

The Grant amount is $159,780.00. Federal participation is 80% of the project cost, and 
City participation is 20% of the project cost, equivalent to $31,956.00.  The funding will be 
available for Federal fiscal year 2015 (October) through 2016. 

This cannot be rescheduled as the money has to be obligated before the end of August 
and City Council does not meet again until September. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

It is staff recommendation that the attached ordinance be approved by the City Council. 

Attachments: 

- Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission TAP- Program Agreement 
- City’s applicable enabling ordinance  

August 3, 2015 M-3-1



 
CCO Form: FS25       University City 
Approved: 04/95 (MGB)      Shared Lane Markings 
Revised: 01/15 (MWH) 
Modified:  
 
CFDA Number:           
CFDA Title:          Highway Planning and Construction 
Award name/number:       TAP - 5402(614) 
Award Year:          (2015) 
Federal Agency:  Federal Highway Administration, Department of Transportation
  
 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES FUNDS 

PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission (hereinafter, "Commission") and University City (hereinafter, “City”). 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
representations in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 
 

(1) PURPOSE:  The United States Congress has authorized, in 23 U.S.C. 
MAP-21 §1122, §101, §106 and §213, SAFETEA-LU §1404 funds to be used for 
transportation alternatives activities.  The purpose of this Agreement is to grant the use 
of such transportation enhancement funds to the City.   
 
 (2) LOCATION:  The transportation alternatives funds which are the subject of 
this Agreement are for the project at the following location:  Install full-lane width 
enlarged shared lane markings along five different streets within University City. 
 
Project Limits: 82nd Street from Olive Blvd. to Paramount Drive, Barbara Jordan School 
81st Street from Olive Blvd. to Groby Road, Brittany Woods Middle School 
Purdue Ave. from Olive Blvd. to Canton Ave. 
Jackson Ave. from Delmar Blvd. to University Drive 
Old Bonhomme Rd. from Centennial Greenway to 81st Street 
 
 The general location of the project is shown on attachment marked "Exhibit A" 
and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 (3) REASONABLE PROGRESS POLICY: The project as described in this 
agreement is subject to the reasonable progress policy set forth in the Local Public 
Agency (LPA) Manual and the final deadline specified in Exhibit B attached hereto and 

August 3, 2015 M-3-2



incorporated herein by reference.  In the event, the LPA Manual and the final deadline 
within Exhibit B conflict, the final deadline within Exhibit B controls.  If the project is 
within a Transportation Management Area that has a reasonable progress policy in 
place, the project is subject to that policy.  If the project is withdrawn for not meeting 
reasonable progress, the City agrees to repay the Commission for any progress 
payments made to the City for the project and agrees that the Commission may deduct 
progress payments made to the City from future payments to the City.  The City may not 
be eligible for future Transportation Alternatives Funds if the City does not meet the 
reasonable progress policy. 
   

 
(4) INDEMNIFICATION:   
 

(A) To the extent allowed or imposed by law, the City shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the Commission, including its members and the Missouri 
Department of Transportation (MoDOT or Department) employees, from any claim or 
liability whether based on a claim for damages to real or personal property or to a 
person for any matter relating to or arising out of the City’s wrongful or negligent 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
 (B) The City will require any contractor procured by the City to work 

under this Agreement: 
 
  1. To obtain a no cost permit from the Commission’s district 

engineer prior to working on the Commission’s right-of-way, which shall be signed by an 
authorized contractor representative (a permit from the Commission’s district engineer 
will not be required for work outside of the Commission’s right-of-way); and 

 
  2. To carry commercial general liability insurance and 

commercial automobile liability insurance from a company authorized to issue insurance 
in Missouri, and to name the Commission, and MoDOT and its employees, as additional 
named insureds in amounts sufficient to cover the sovereign immunity limits for Missouri 
public entities as calculated by the Missouri Department of Insurance, Financial 
Institutions and Professional Registration, and published annually in the Missouri 
Register pursuant to Section 537.610, RSMo. The City shall cause insurer to increase 
the insurance amounts in accordance with those published annually in the Missouri 
Register pursuant to Section 537.610, RSMo. 
 
  (C) In no event shall the language of this Agreement constitute or be 
construed as a waiver or limitation for either party’s rights or defenses with regard to 
each party’s applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections 
as provided by federal and state constitution or law. 
 
 (5) AMENDMENTS:  Any change in this Agreement, whether by modification 
or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment signed and 
approved by the duly authorized representatives of the City and the Commission. 

August 3, 2015 M-3-3



 
 (6) COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE:  The Commission's District Engineer 
is designated as the Commission's representative for the purpose of administering the 
provisions of this Agreement.  The Commission's representative may designate by 
written notice other persons having the authority to act on behalf of the Commission in 
furtherance of the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (7) NONDISCRIMINATION ASSURANCE:  With regard to work under this 
Agreement, the City agrees as follows: 
 
  (A) Civil Rights Statutes:  The City shall comply with all state and 
federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, including but not limited to Title VI and 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. §2000d and §2000e, et 
seq.), as well as any applicable titles of the "Americans with Disabilities Act" (42 U.S.C. 
§12101, et seq.).  In addition, if the City is providing services or operating programs on 
behalf of the Department or the Commission, it shall comply with all applicable 
provisions of Title II of the "Americans with Disabilities Act". 
 
  (B) Administrative Rules:  The City shall comply with the administrative 
rules of the United States Department of Transportation relative to nondiscrimination in 
federally-assisted programs of the United States Department of Transportation (49 
C.F.R. Part 21) which are herein incorporated by reference and made part of this 
Agreement. 
 
  (C) Nondiscrimination:  The City shall not discriminate on grounds of 
the race, color, religion, creed, sex, disability, national origin, age or ancestry of any 
individual in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of 
materials and leases of equipment.  The City shall not participate either directly or 
indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by 49 C.F.R. §21.5, including employment 
practices. 
 
  (D) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Material 
and Equipment:  These assurances concerning nondiscrimination also apply to 
subcontractors and suppliers of the City.  These apply to all solicitations either by 
competitive bidding or negotiation made by the City for work to be performed under a 
subcontract including procurement of materials or equipment.  Each potential 
subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the City of the requirements of this 
Agreement relative to nondiscrimination on grounds of the race, color, religion, creed, 
sex, disability or national origin, age or ancestry of any individual. 
 
  (E) Information and Reports:  The City shall provide all information and 
reports required by this Agreement, or orders and instructions issued pursuant thereto, 
and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and 
its facilities as may be determined by the Commission or the United States Department 
of Transportation to be necessary to ascertain compliance with other contracts, orders 
and instructions.  Where any information required of the City is in the exclusive 

August 3, 2015 M-3-4



possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the City shall so 
certify to the Commission or the United States Department of Transportation as 
appropriate and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 
 
  (F) Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event the City fails to comply 
with the nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, the Commission shall impose 
such contract sanctions as it or the United States Department of Transportation may 
determine to be appropriate, including but not limited to: 
 
   1. Withholding of payments under this Agreement until the City 
complies; and/or 
 
   2. Cancellation, termination or suspension of this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, or both. 
 
  (G) Incorporation of Provisions:  The City shall include the provisions of 
paragraph (7) of this Agreement in every subcontract, including procurements of 
materials and leases of equipment, unless exempted by the statutes, executive order, 
administrative rules or instructions issued by the Commission or the United States 
Department of Transportation.  The City will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or procurement as the Commission or the United States Department of 
Transportation may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions 
for noncompliance; provided that in the event the City becomes involved or is 
threatened with litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, 
the City may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the 
interests of the United States. 
 
 (8) ASSIGNMENT:  The City shall not assign, transfer or delegate any 
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Commission. 
 
 (9) LAW OF MISSOURI TO GOVERN:  This Agreement shall be construed 
according to the laws of the State of Missouri.  The City shall comply with all local, state 
and federal laws and regulations relating to the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (10) CANCELLATION:  The Commission may cancel this Agreement at any 
time for a material breach of contractual obligations by providing the City with written 
notice of cancellation.  Should the Commission exercise its right to cancel this 
Agreement for such reasons, cancellation will become effective upon the date specified 
in the notice of cancellation sent to the City. 
 
 (11) ACCESS TO RECORDS:  The City and its contractors must maintain all 
records relating to this Agreement, including but not limited to invoices, payrolls, etc.  
These records must be available at no charge to the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) and the Commission and/or their designees or representatives during the 
period of this Agreement and any extension, and for a period of three (3) years after the 
date on which the City receives reimbursement of their final invoice from the 

August 3, 2015 M-3-5



Commission. 
 
 (12) FEDERAL-AID PROVISIONS:  Because responsibility for the performance 
of all functions or work contemplated as part of this project is assumed by the City, and 
the City may elect to construct part of the improvement contemplated by this Agreement 
with its own forces, a copy of Section II and Section III, as contained in the United 
States Department of Transportation Form Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
1273 "Required Contract Provisions, Federal-Aid Construction Contracts," is attached 
and made a part of this Agreement as Exhibit C.  Wherever the term "the contractor" or 
words of similar import appear in these sections, the term “the City”is to be substituted.  
The City agrees to abide by and carry out the condition and obligations of "the 
contractor" as stated in Section II, Equal Opportunity, and Section III, Nonsegregated 
Facilities, as set out in Form FHWA 1273. 

 
  (13) ACQUISITION OF RIGHT OF WAY:  No acquisition of additional right of 
way is anticipated in connection with Project TAP 5402-614 or contemplated by this 
Agreement. 
 
 (14) MAINTENANCE OF DEVELOPMENT:  The City shall maintain the herein 
contemplated improvements without any cost or expense to the Commission.  All 
maintenance by the City shall be done for the safety of the general public and the 
esthetics of the area.  In addition, if any sidewalk or bike trails are constructed on the 
Commission's right-of-way pursuant to this Agreement, the City shall inspect and 
maintain the sidewalk or bike trails constructed by this project in a condition reasonably 
safe to the public and, to the extent allowed by law, shall indemnify and hold the 
Commission harmless from any claims arising from the construction and maintenance 
of said sidewalk or bike trails.  If the City fails to maintain the herein contemplated 
improvements, the Commission or its representatives, at the Commission's sole 
discretion shall notify the City in writing of the City’s failure to maintain the improvement.  
If the City continues to fail in maintaining the improvement, the Commission may 
remove the herein contemplated improvement whether or not the improvement is 
located on the Commission's right of way.  Any removal by the Commission shall be at 
the sole cost and expense of the City.  Maintenance includes but is not limited to 
mowing and trimming between shrubs and other plantings that are part of the 
improvement. 
 
 (15) PLANS:  The City shall prepare preliminary and final plans and 
specifications for the herein improvements.  The plans and specifications shall be 
submitted to the Commission for the Commission's review and approval.  The 
Commission has the discretion to require changes to any plans and specification prior to 
any approval by the Commission. 
 
 (16) REIMBURSEMENT:  The cost of the contemplated improvements will be 
borne by the United States Government and by the City as follows: 
 
 

August 3, 2015 M-3-6



(A) Any federal funds for project activities shall only be  
available for reimbursement of eligible costs which have been incurred by City.  Any 
costs incurred by City prior to authorization from FHWA and notification to proceed from 
the Commission are not reimbursable costs.  The federal share for this project will be 
80 percent not to exceed $127,824.  The calculated federal share for seeking federal 
reimbursement of participating costs for the herein improvements will be determined by 
dividing the total federal funds applied to the project by the total participating costs.   
Any costs for the herein improvements which exceed any federal reimbursement or are 
not eligible for federal reimbursement shall be the sole responsibility of City.  The 
Commission shall not be responsible for any costs associated with the herein 
improvement unless specifically identified in this Agreement or subsequent written 
amendments.   

 
 (17) PROGRESS PAYMENTS:  The City may request progress payments be 
made for the herein improvements as work progresses but not more than once every 
two weeks.  Progress payments must be submitted monthly.  The City shall repay any 
progress payments which involve ineligible costs. 
 
 (18) PROMPT PAYMENTS:  Progress invoices submitted to MoDOT for 
reimbursement more than thirty (30) calendar days after the date of the vendor invoice 
shall also include documentation that the vendor was paid in full for the work identified 
in the progress invoice.  Examples of proof of payment may include a letter or e-mail 
from the vendor, lien waiver or copies of cancelled checks.  Reimbursement will not be 
made on these submittals until proof of payment is provided.  Progress invoices 
submitted to MoDOT for reimbursement within thirty (30) calendar days of the date on 
the vendor invoice will be processed for reimbursement without proof of payment to the 
vendor.  If the City has not paid the vendor prior to receiving reimbursement, the City 
must pay the vendor within two (2) business days of receipt of funds from MoDOT. 

 
 (19) PERMITS:  The City shall secure any necessary approvals or permits from 
any federal or state agency as required for the completion of the herein improvements.  
If this improvement is on the right of way of the Commission, the City must secure a 
permit from the Commission prior to the start of any work on the right of way.  The 
permits which may be required include, but are not limited to, environmental, 
architectural, historical or cultural requirements of federal or state law or regulation. 
 
 (20) INSPECTION OF IMPROVEMENTS AND RECORDS:  The City shall 
assure that representatives of the Commission and FHWA shall have the privilege of 
inspecting and reviewing the work being done by the City’s contractor and subcontractor 
on the herein project.  The City shall also assure that its contractor, and all 
subcontractors, if any, maintain all books, documents, papers and other evidence 
pertaining to costs incurred in connection with the Transportation Enhancement 
Program Agreement, and make such materials available at such contractor's office at all 
reasonable times at no charge during this Agreement period, and for three (3) years 
from the date of final payment under this Agreement, for inspection by the Commission, 
FHWA or any authorized representatives of the Federal Government and the State of 

August 3, 2015 M-3-7



Missouri, and copies shall be furnished, upon request, to authorized representatives of 
the Commission, State, FHWA, or other Federal agencies. 
  
 (21) CREDIT FOR DONATIONS OF FUNDS, MATERIALS, OR SERVICES:  A 
person may offer to donate funds, materials or services in connection with this project.  
Any donated funds, or the fair market value of any donated materials or services that 
are accepted and incorporated into this project shall be credited according to 23 U.S.C. 
§323. 
  
 (22) DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE):  The Commission 
will advise the City of any required goals for participation by disadvantaged business 
enterprises (DBEs) to be included in the City’s proposal for the work to be performed.  
The City shall submit for Commission approval a DBE goal or plan.  The City shall 
comply with the plan or goal that is approved by the Commission and all requirements 
of 49 C.F.R. Part 26, as amended. 
 
 (23) VENUE:  It is agreed by the parties that any action at law, suit in equity, or 
other judicial proceeding to enforce or construe this Agreement, or regarding its alleged 
breach, shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. 
 
 (24) NOTICE TO BIDDERS:  The City shall notify the prospective bidders that 
disadvantaged business enterprises shall be afforded full and affirmative opportunity to 
submit bids in response to the invitation and will not be discriminated against on 
grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in consideration for an award. 
 
 (25) FINAL AUDIT:  The Commission may, in its sole discretion, perform a final 
audit of project costs.  The United States Government shall reimburse the City, through 
the Commission, any monies due.  The City shall refund any overpayments as 
determined by the final audit. 
 
 (26) OMB AUDIT:  If the City expend(s) five hundred thousand dollars 
($500,000) or more in a year in federal financial assistance it is required to have an 
independent annual audit conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.  A copy of 
the audit report shall be submitted to MoDOT within the earlier of thirty (30) days after 
receipt of the auditor's report(s), or nine (9) months after the end of the audit period.  
Subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, if the City expend(s) less than five 
hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) a year, the City may be exempt from auditing 
requirements for that year but records must be available for review or audit by 
applicable state and federal authorities. 
 
 (27) FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT 
OF 2006:  The City shall comply with all reporting requirements of the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) of 2006, as amended.  This Agreement is 
subject to the award terms within 2 C.F.R. Part 170. 
 
 

August 3, 2015 M-3-8



 
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

August 3, 2015 M-3-9



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on the date last 
written below. 
 
 Executed by the City this ____ day of ___________, 20__. 
 
 Executed by the Commission this ____ day of ________________, 20___. 
 
 
 
MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  UNIVERSITY CITY      
 
 
                                                            By                                                                              
 
Title                                                     Title                                                        
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                            By                                                          
Secretary to the Commission   
       Title                                                        
 
 
Approved as to Form:    Approved as to Form: 
 
 
                                                                                                                     
Commission Counsel 
       Title __________________________ 
 
 
       Ordinance No                                        
 
 
 
*If contracting party is a County with a county commission form of government, the 
execution page needs to be modified to allow the three county commissioners to 
execute the agreement. 

August 3, 2015 M-3-10



Ja
ck

so
n

A
ve

P
ur

du
e

A
ve

82
nd

S
tre

et

81
st

S
tre

et

O
ld

B
on

ho
m

m
e

R
d

August 3, 2015 M-3-11



Exhibit B – Project Schedule 
 
Project Description:  TAP-5402-614  Installation of full-lane width enlarged shared lane 
markings along five different streets within University City.  The streets are 82nd street, 81st 
street, Purdue Ave., Jackson Ave., and Old Bonhomme Road.   
 
Project Limits: 82nd Street from Olive Blvd. to Paramount Drive, Barbara Jordan School 
81st Street from Olive Blvd. to Groby Road, Brittany Woods Middle School 
Purdue Ave. from Olive Blvd. to Canton Ave. 
Jackson Ave. from Delmar Blvd. to University Drive 
Old Bonhomme Rd. from Centennial Greenway to 81st Street 
 
 
 
Task  Date 
Date funding is made available or allocated to recipient 12/2014 
Solicitation for Professional Engineering Services (advertised) 12/2014 
Engineering Services Contract Approved 03/2015 
Conceptual Study (if applicable)  N/A 
Preliminary and Right-of-Way Plans Submittal 
(if Applicable) 

07/2015 

Plans, Specifications & Estimate (PS&E) Submittal 02/2016 
Plans, Specifications & Estimate (PS&E) Approval  03/2016 
Advertisement for Letting  05/2016 
Bid Opening 07/2016 
Construction Contract Award or Planning Study completed 
(REQUIRED) 

11/2016 

 
*Note: the dates established in the schedule above will be used in the applicable ESC between 
the sponsor agency and consultant firm. 
 
**Schedule dates are approximate as the project schedule will be actively managed and issues 
mitigated through the project delivery process.  The Award Date or Planning Study Date 
deliverable is not approximate and a Supplemental Agreement is required to modify this date.  
  

August 3, 2015 M-3-12



August 3, 2015 M-3-13



August 3, 2015 M-3-14



August 3, 2015 M-3-15



August 3, 2015 M-3-16



August 3, 2015 M-3-17



August 3, 2015 M-3-18



August 3, 2015 M-3-19



August 3, 2015 M-3-20



August 3, 2015 M-3-21



CFDA Number:   
CFDA Title:   Highway Planning and Construction 
Award name/number: TAP-54026(614) 
Award Year:   2015 
Federal Agency:  Federal Highway Administration, Department of Transportation 
 
        CITY OF UNIVERSITY City 
 
INTRODUCED BY:      DATE::   August 3, 2015 
 
BILL NO: 9269      ORDINANCE NO: 
 
 
An Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract between the City 
of University City and the Missouri Highway and Transportation Commission 
providing for the improvements on Forsyth Boulevard. 
  
 Be it ordained by the City Council of University City as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of 
the City of University City a contract with the Missouri Highway and Transportation 
Commission providing for the Shared Lane Markings in University City. 
 
 Section 2. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances therefore enacted which 
are in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  
 
 Section 3.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date 
of its passage and approval.  Read three times, passed and approved on the day of  
______________________, 20 _________. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
__________________________   ________________________________ 
City Attorney     Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest:       
       
 
_____________________________   
City Clerk      

August 3, 2015 M-3-22



CALOP Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, June 25, 2015 

University City, U City Library, Room #2 
6:00 PM 

 
 

Members in Attendance: David Stokes, Dennis Riggs, Patricia McQueen, Claire 
Linzee, Beth Norton, and Edward Luby  
 
Members Excused:   
 
Members Absent:  Councilmember Terry Crow 
 
Others in Attendance: Keith Cole 
 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Ms. McQueen, acting Chairperson for the meeting, at 
6:05pm.  
 
Approval of Agenda  
A motion was made to approve the agenda by Ms. Linzee and seconded by Mr. Stokes 
with the change to move the Treasurer’s Report to Section IV, Agenda Items to Section 
V, and to table the By-Laws to the next meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
A motion was made to approve the April 23, 2015, minutes by Mr. Stokes and seconded 
by Ms. Linzee.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
Mr. Cole reported as of May 31, 2015, the current year to date expenses and ending fund 
balance.  A motion was made by Mr. Luby and seconded by Mr. Stokes to approve the 
Treasurer’s Report.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
A motion was made to move the remaining project balance from project, “CALOP 
School Project,” in the amount of $887.79 back to the fund balance, by Mr. Stokes and 
seconded by Mr. Luby.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
A motion was made to move the remaining project balance from project, “There’s No 
Place Like It,” in the amount of $5,825.00 back to the fund balance, by Mr. Stokes and 
seconded by Ms. Linzee.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Agenda Items 
Discussion of topic was how to proceed with CALOP.  The proposal from the Mayor, 
Councilmember Jennings, and Mr. Riggs was discussed further on the possibilities of 
how to get this proposal up and running.  The proposal consists of creating a University 
City Training Center.   
 
It was decided to draft a Request for Proposal (RFP), which would outline the specifics 
on how to run / operate a Training Center.  Mr. Stokes and Mr. Riggs volunteered 

August 3, 2015 O3-1-1



themselves to help write the RFP, and then to bring back a draft copy for review at the 
next month’s meeting.   
 
Ms. McQueen handed out copies of a CALOP Grant Reserves Scenario and CALOP 
Grant Judging Criteria Checklist.   
 
Besides the Media Training Center proposal, there are four additional proposed projects 
that have been brought before CALOP.  It was proposed to meet at 5:30pm, July 23, 
2015, to meet and discuss these proposals.  Before the meeting, it was recommended for 
everyone to complete the CALOP Grant Judging Criteria Checklist and requested amount 
to give.  Everyone was in agreement to meet at 5:30pm to discuss the proposals.    
 
Also, during this time, the possibility of creating Sub-Committees may be discussed.   
   
Next Meeting Date (Tentative) 
The next meeting is scheduled for July 23, 2015, at 6:00 pm.  Location is U City Library 
– Room 2.     
 
Adjournment 
A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 7:21pm.  The motion carried unanimously.   

August 3, 2015 O3-1-2



 

Page 1 of 2 

Historic Preservation Commission 
March 19, 2015 Meeting Minutes 

(approved 5-21-2015) 
 
The Historic Preservation Commission held a meeting in the Heman Park Community Center located at 
975 Pennsylvania Avenue, University City, Missouri on Thursday, March 19, 2015.  The meeting 
commenced at 6:30 pm. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
Voting Members Present    Voting Members Absent 
Donna Marin, Chairperson    None 
Esley Hamilton, Vice-Chairperson 
Richard Wesenberg 
James Guest 
Bill Chilton 
Mark Critchfield 
Mary Pat Gallagher 
 
Non-Voting Members Present 
Rod Jennings, Council Liaison 
 
Staff Present 
Zach Greatens, Planner 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 
2.a. November 20, 2014 Historic Preservation Commission meeting minutes 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Hamilton to approve the November 20, 2014 meeting minutes as 
written.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Guest and carried unanimously. 

 
3. Old Business – None 
 
4. New Business – None 
 
5. Other Business 
 
5.a. Discussion – Proposed replacement of light fixtures for pedestrian lights in Civic Complex 
Historic District (Local Designation and National Register of Historic Places) INFORMATIONAL 
ONLY – NO VOTE REQUESTED. 
 

Mr. Greatens briefly provided background information and explained that the agenda item was 
being presented for informational purposes only since it was not a project that required a 
recommendation from the Historic Preservation Commission per the District Standards. 
 
Ms. Jenny Wendt with the Department of Public Works and Parks explained the details of the 
proposal. She stated that the existing pedestrian light fixtures in the Civic Plaza along Delmar 
Boulevard and Trinity Avenue were in need of replacement due to the age of the fixtures, low 

August 3, 2015 O3-2-1



 

Page 2 of 2 

light output, and high maintenance cost.  The proposed fixture would be more consistent with the 
1985 Civic Plaza Master Plan than the current fixtures.  The proposed fixtures would also be 
more energy efficient and provide better lighting. 
 
Questions, Comments, and Discussion: 

 
- Commission members asked about the timeframe of the project and discussed some of the fixture 

details as well as other similar examples in the area. 
 

Ms. Wendt stated that the proposed time frame for the project to move forward was eight to ten 
weeks. 

 
5.b. Public Comments 
 
5.c. Election of Officers – Nomination and Election of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson 
 

A motion was made by Mr. Hamilton to nominate Ms. Marin as Chairperson.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Guest and carried unanimously.  Ms. Marin was elected to serve as 
Chairperson. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Wesenberg to nominate Mr. Hamilton as Vice-Chairperson.  The 
motion was seconded by Mr. Chilton and carried unanimously.  Mr. Hamilton was elected to 
serve as Vice-Chairperson. 

 
6. Reports 
 
6.a. Council Liaison Report 

 
Mr. Jennings had no update. 

 
6.b. Department Report: Update from staff 

 
Staff had no update. 

 
7. Adjournment 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:05 pm. 

August 3, 2015 O3-2-2



1 
 

RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE 
OF THE COUNCIL OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

Approved July 14, 2014 
 
 

Section I 
MISSOURI LAW AND THE CHARTER 

 
Rule 1  
Rules of the Council must conform to the provisions of Missouri State Law.  Specifically, 
the Council must act in accord with the Sunshine Law and its rules for public and private 
meetings and adequate notice of meetings, which generally refers to Missouri Open 
Meetings and Records Act as found in Sections 610.010 through 610.035 of the Revised 
Missouri Statutes. The Sunshine Law pertains to e-mail messages that re-transmitted 
among  the members of public governmental bodies.  Any member of a public body that 
transmits an e-mail to at least three other members of the body so that when counting 
the sender, a majority of members are copied, a copy of the e-mail or the member 
forwarding the business related e-mail to additional member(s), which would constitute 
the majority, shall be sent to either the custodian of records, or the members' public office 
computer. Any such message, subject to the exceptions of Section 610.021, shall be 
considered a public record upon receipt by the custodian or at the public member's 
computer. 

 
Rule 2  
Rules of the Council must conform to the provisions of the Charter of University 
City, Missouri.  Specifically, the Mayor and Councilmembers must act in accord with 
Article II of the Charter. 

 
 

Section II 
MEETINGS 

 
Rule 3  
The Council shall meet in Regular Session in the Council Chambers on the fifth floor of 
City Hall or other posted location on at least one and usually two Monday nights of every 
month at 6:30 p.m.  The Council may, by motion, dispense with any regular meeting, but 
at least one meeting must be held in each month.  A schedule of regular meetings will be 
determined during the preceding year by the City Council and printed in the City Calendar 
City website and on the City marquees.  A majority of the Councilmembers elected (or 
appointed) shall constitute a quorum to do business, but a smaller number may 
adjourn such meetings.  If Councilmembers know in advance they cannot attend a 
specific Council meeting, they must inform the Mayor and/or City Clerk. 
 
Rule 3-A 
All efforts should be expended to ensure that a quorum of Councilmembers is physically 
present at all meetings.  In case of an emergency situation or other circumstances 
preventing physical attendance, Councilmembers may attend meetings and vote via video 
conference transmission.  If at any time during a meeting one or more of the elements of 
a video conference becomes compromised (e.g. if any participants are unable to see, 
hear or fully communicate), then the video conference participant is deemed immediately 



2 
 

absent and this absence should be reflected in the minutes.  Councilmembers attending a 
meeting via video conference are deemed present for purposes of participating in a roll 
call vote to the same effect as Councilmembers who are in physical attendance of the 
meeting.  If the video conference fails during the act of voting, the voting shall stop until all 
of the components of the video conference attendance are restored and the video 
conference participant’s presence is again noted in the minutes.  If the video conference 
cannot be restored during voting, the participant will be deemed immediately absent and 
will not participate in the vote.  Council meeting minutes shall reflect the Councilmember, 
if any, participating via video conference.  Participation and vote by video conference shall 
not be permitted in closed meetings of Council. 
 
Rule 4  
Special Sessions may be called by any two members of the Council by written 
request filed with the City Clerk, who shall thereupon prepare a notice of such Special 
Session, to make diligent effort to notify each member of the Council, either by telephone 
or e-mail, of such special session.  If a majority (4) of the Council does not attend the 
called Special Session, then discussion may be held, but decisions voted upon must 
wait until a majority (4) is present at another special or regular council meeting.  
Minutes will not be made of any Council meeting when a majority is not present.  
 
Rule 5   
Except as otherwise provided by the Charter or by these rules, the proceedings of the 
Council shall be guided by Robert's Rules of Order, as Revised.  The presiding office 
shall preserve the decorum and shall decide all questions of order subject to appeal to 
the Council.  Any member may appeal to the Council from a ruling of the presiding 
officer.  If the motion for an appeal is seconded, the member making the appeal may 
briefly state the reason for the same, and the presiding office may briefly express 
the ruling; but there shall be no debate on the appeal and no other member shall 
participate in the discussion. The presiding officer shall then put the question to vote as 
to whether the decision of the chair shall be sustained.  If a majority of the members 
present vote "aye" the ruling of the chair is sustained; otherwise, it is overruled. 
 
As per Robert Rules of Order, Newly Revised, 11th Edition, page 468, the minutes of the 
meetings of the City Council, “shall be a record of what was done at a meeting, not what 
was said by the members”. 
 
Rule 6   
The Council is free to use "general consent" or "consensus" in meetings as detailed 
in Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, 10th Edition; page 51.  As noted: "In cases 
where there seems to be no opposition in routine business, time can  often be saved 
by the procedure of unanimous consent, or as it is  also called, general consent.  
Action in this manner is in accord with the principle that rules are designed for the 
protection of the minority and generally need not be strictly enforced when there is no 
minority to protect.  Under these conditions, the method of unanimous consent can be 
used either to adopt a motion without the steps of stating the question and putting 
the motion to a formal vote, or it can be used to take action without even the formality 
of a motion...Unanimous consent does not necessarily imply that every member is in 
favor of the proposed action; it may only mean that the opposition, feeling it is 
useless to oppose or discuss the matter, simply acquiesces. " 

 



3 
 

Rule 7   
No member of the Council may leave the room while in formal session of the 
Council, as defined by Robert's Rules, without acknowledgement from the presiding 
officer.  If/when a conflict of interest exists on an agenda item, the member of Council 
affected shall recuse himself/herself and must leave the dais until the vote is 
concluded. 

 
Rule 8  
Notice of a closed meeting must be given by the City Council, including the time, 
date and place of the closed meeting and the reason for holding it by reference to 
the specific exception allowed pursuant to the provisions of Section 610.021 RSMo.  
An example is Section 610.021(1) RSMo, legal actions, causes of action, litigation or 
confidential legal communications.  Notice must comply with the same procedures set 
forth in Section 610.020 RSMo for notice of a public meeting.  See Section 610.022 
RSMo.  No meeting can be closed without an affirmative public vote of the majority of 
a quorum of the City Council (four members).  The vote of each member on the 
question of closing a public meeting and the specific reason for closing the public 
meeting by reference to the specific section of the Sunshine Law must be 
announced publicly at an open meeting and entered into the minutes.  There must be 
a motion to close the open meeting, and if any Councilmember believes that such 
motion, if passed, would be in violation of the Sunshine Law, such Councilmember 
must state his or her objection to the motion at or before the time the vote is taken on 
the motion.  The City Council must enter in the minutes any objection made.  Any 
Councilmember making such objection must be allowed to fully participate in any 
meeting that is closed to the public over the Councilmember's objection.  In the event 
the objecting Councilmember also voted in opposition to the motion to close the 
meeting, the objection as entered into the minutes is an absolute defense to any 
claim filed against the Councilmember pursuant to the section of the Sunshine Law 
relating to violations.  See section 610.022 RSMo. 
 
Any meeting closed pursuant to the Sunshine Law must be closed only to the extent 
necessary for the specific reason announced to justify the closed meeting. The City 
Council must close only an existing portion of the meeting facility necessary to house the 
Councilmembers in the closed session, allowing members of the public to remain to 
attend any subsequent open session held by the City Council following the closed 
session.  See Section 610.22 RSMo. 
 
A journal or minutes of closed meetings must be taken and retained by the City 
Council, including, but not limited to, a record of any votes taken at such meeting. The 
minutes must include the d ate, time, place, C ouncilmembers present, Councilmembers 
absent and a record of any vote taken.  Any votes taken during a closed session 
must be taken by roll call.  When a roll call vote is taken, the minutes must attribute 
each "aye" and "nay" vote or abstention if not voting to the name of the individual 
Councilmember.  See Sections 610.015 and 610.022 RSMo. 
 
No audio recording of any closed meeting, record, or vote closed pursuant to the 
Sunshine Law is permitted without the permission of the City Council.  Any person who 
does so is guilty of a State misdemeanor.  See Section 610.020 RSMo. 



4 
 

 
Any Councilmember betraying the confidentiality of a closed session can be censured 
by the Council to the extent decided upon by the remaining Councilmembers. 
 
R ule 9   
For the purposes of obtaining more information on a specific subject, and for the 
opportunity to ask questions on a subject prior to making a decision, the Council may 
choose to hold Study Sessions.  These sessions can be held at any time, and shall 
be posted in accordance with the Missouri Open Meetings and Records Act.   
 
Study Sessions held prior to regularly scheduled Council meetings will begin with any 
questions in regard to the Regular Session's agenda.  The Study Session agenda will 
then proceed as time permits, 
 
Study Sessions shall be designed for Council deliberations and shall not be open for 
citizen comment, except when such comments are approved by a majority of the 
Council at a specific meeting.  Members o f Council and staff shall be prepared to 
consider any questions arising from a Study Session at the next regularly scheduled 
Council meeting. 

 
Rule 10   
At the Regular meetings of the Council, the order of business shall be as follows (this 
may be changed or by majority vote of Council after being moved and seconded) 
 

 1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Approval of Agenda. 
4 .  Proclamations 
5. Approval of Minutes 
6. Appointments 
7. Swearing In 
8. Citizen Participation 
8. Public Hearings 

 9.  Consent Agenda 
10. City Manager's Report 
11. Unfinished Business 
12. New Business/Bills to be Introduced 
13. Citizen Participation  
14. Council Reports and Business 
15. Council Comments 
16. Adjournment 
 

Rule 11 
 Routine City business agenda items may be grouped under a Consent Calendar and 

voted on as one item with no discussion.  Any item may be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and voted on separately by request from a member of the Council. 
 
Rule 12  
The Council Reports and Business section of the agenda is designed for members to 



5 
 

present Board and Commission liaison reports and to discuss other issues/items which 
members want to formally present to other members of Council. 

a) The presiding officer will present a list of pending Board and Commission 
appointments and reappointments to the Council under this section at each 
session. 

 
Rule 13  
The Council Comments portion of the agenda is designed to allow Council- members 
time to freely express their opinions and ideas on topics of interest to them. 

 
Rule 14 The Citizen Participation sections of the agenda are designed to allow 
members of the general public time to express their thoughts and concerns to members 
of Council, staff and the community at large. This section of the agenda is not meant to 
be time for a discussion between the speaker, members of Council or City staff. This is 
not to disallow a simple answer. 

 
 

Section Ill 
ORDINANCES 

 
Rule 15 
All proposed ordinances and resolutions shall be introduced in written form and 
identified as to who proposed:  City Manager or member of the City Council.  All 
proposed ordinances shall be prepared by the City Attorney or bear the City Attorney's 
certification that they are in correct form.  A copy of each proposed ordinance shall 
be sent to each member of the Council prior to the first reading.  The first reading is 
for information and shall have attached to it a brief resume of the bill as prepared by 
or  for  the City Manager, together with the reasons for the introduction thereof or, if an 
amendment of an existing ordinance is proposed, the nature of the change sought to 
be made.  A bill may be "defeated" or "killed" with a motion and a second or by 
postponing indefinitely with a second. 

 
Rule 16  
The City Manager shall not request the introduction and passage of any bill carrying 
an emergency clause unless a copy of said bill has been delivered to each member of 
the Council, together with a resume thereof and the reasons for the emergency, at 
least 24 hours prior to the meeting of the Council at which said bill is to be introduced. 
 
Rule 17  
Following the second or third reading of any bill, the question shall be put by the 
chairman, "What is the pleasure of the Council?"  A Councilmember shall motion in 
the affirmative or negative, if the motion is followed by a second, a roll call vote will be 
taken to either confirm or deny the passage of the bill. 
 
Rule 18   
Any bill shall be subject to amendment until the vote for final passage; however, 
substantive amendments will require the bill be continued to the next meeting.  What 
is substantive will be decided by vote of the Council. 

 



6 
 

Rule 19 Except as provided in the Sunshine Law or as otherwise provided by law, 
all votes shall be recorded, and if a roll call is taken, as to attribute each 'aye' and 
'nay' vote to the name of the individual Councilmember. 
 
 
Section IV 
RIGHTS TO THE FLOOR 

 
Rule 20  
Any member of the public may speak at a Council Regular Session at the times listed 
in Rule 10 and Rule 14, under the following conditions: 
1) Speakers must fill out a written form, available at the entrance, and place the   

completed form in the respective inbox for either "agenda" or "non-agenda" 
items. 

2) The Mayor will call speakers to the microphone at the appropriate time. 
3) A member of the audience may also be called to the microphone to answer 

specific questions at the discretion of the Council.  A City employee should be 
called forward only if the City Manager requests the Mayor to do so. 

4) All speakers must give their name and address. 
5) All speeches are limited to five (5) minutes or less. 
6) When warranted the City Manager will send a letter, e-mail or place a phone call to 

the speaker in answer to his/her comments. 
 

Rule 21  
All special committees shall be proposed by the Mayor or any two members of Council and 
approved by a majority of Council. 

 
Rule 22  
By consent of a majority of the Council, a special committee may be appointed at any 
time to hold public hearings for the Council upon any matter pending before it. 

 
 

Section VI 
CITY OFFICERS 

 
Rule 23  
The City Manager shall attend all meetings of the Council unless excused by the 
Council.  The City Manager shall keep the Council fully advised of the financial condition 
and needs of the City. The City Manager shall make recommendations to the Council 
and may take part in discussions on all matters concerning the welfare of the City, but 
shall have no vote in the meetings of the governing board. 

 
Rule 24  
In advance of each meeting of the Council, the City Manager shall prepare an agenda 
of matters, including ordinances and resolutions, to be presented to the Council at each 
such meeting.  Members of the Council desiring reports or a discussion upon any 
matter involving the administrative offices of the City shall notify the City Manager in 
time to include such matter upon the agenda.  An ordinance or resolution will be 
placed on the agenda at the request of two members.  Any resolution that has 



7 
 

been finally disposed of at a meeting may not be brought back or renewed at a 
subsequent meeting for 12 months and any resolution that is the same or 
essentially the same will be considered out of order during that time period.  
The agenda should be received at least ten days before the meeting. Copies of the 
agenda shall be accessible at City Hall, in the Library and on the website as soon as 
possible in advance of each Council meeting and e-mailed or hand-delivered to all 
members of Council. 
 

 
Section VII 
COUNCIL OFFICERS 

 
Rule 25  
The City Clerk shall be ex-officio clerk of the Council and shall perform such duties 
as may be provided by the Charter or by job description.  The City Clerk shall keep 
a journal of the proceedings of the Council including the kind of meeting, date, time 
and place, presence of participants.  The body of the minutes should identify all 
speakers, including an abstract or text of each address, and include motions made, 
any amendments thereto, points of order, dispositions of these matters, and the time 
of adjournment.  The format of the journal can only be changed by a vote of the 
majority of the Council.  The minutes of the meetings shall be transcribed within a 
reasonable period after each meeting.  The Clerk shall furnish each Councilmember 
with a copy of the minutes of the preceding meeting. 
 
Rule 26  
The City Clerk is responsible for preparing and maintaining the final agenda which 
includes Proclamations, Minutes, Appointments, Swearing In, Public Hearings, 
Consent Agenda, City Manager's Report, Unfinished Business and New Business 
which was previously approved by the City Manager. 

 
Rule 27  
The City Clerk shall post copies of notices of all Council meetings on the City 
Council's bulletin board on the lower level of City Hall, at the University City Library 
and on the City's website and alternate locations as Council deems appropriate. 

 
 

Section VIII 
NON-PARTISAN COUNCIL 

 
Rule 28  
Members of the City Council serve in a non-partisan capacity.  

Rule 29  
Mayoral and Councilmember elections are non-partisan. 

Rule 30  
When members of the Council engage in partisan political endorsements and 
activities, they should make it as clear as possible that they are acting as individuals, 
in a non-City official capacity and do not represent the Council or City. City letterhead 
and logos are to be used only for official City business and are not to be used in 



8 
 

support of any candidate. 
 
 
Section IX 
COUNCIL POSITIONS ON ISSUES 

 
Rule 31  
No member may represent the Council or the City in taking a position on a political 
issue unless the position has been previously agreed to by a majority of the Council.  
However, votes taken at meetings of the St. Louis County Municipal League, the 
Missouri Municipal League, the National League of Cities, Metro Mayors, National 
Conference of Black Mayors, and United States Conference of Mayors organizations 
will be decided by a majority of those members of the Council who are members and 
present at such meetings; unless a position has previously been decided on an 
issue by the Council as a whole, in which case the latter shall prevail. 

 
Rule 32 
A. When presenting personal positions or views, Councilmembers should make it clear 

that these are not the positions of the City or Council 
B. Nothing in these rules is meant to limit the First Amendment Speech rights of any 

individual member of Council 
 

 
Section X  
REMUNERATION 

 
Rule 33 Members of the Council shall receive no remuneration except that specified 
in the City Charter of University City. 
 
Mayor and Councilmembers salaries can only be changed by a change in the 
City Charter, which requires a voter approval by the residents. 

 
Rule 34   
Members of the Council shall make no personal use of City resources, e.g., 
supplies, personnel, equipment, facilities, paper.  Resources of the City Clerk's office 
may be used in an official capacity.  Resources of the legislative budget may be 
used according to the rules of the Council's travel and expense policies and 
guidelines.  Members of the City Council shall pay the same fees for City services and 
facilities as other citizens except for park passes. 
 
Rule 35   
No Councilmember should receive any gratuity from anyone doing business with the 
City. 

 
 

Section XI 
INTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
Rule 36   



9 
 

As per the City Charter, members of Council have the right to communicate with 
members of staff for the purpose of inquiry.  However, whenever possible, Council 
inquiries should be channeled through the City Manager's office. 
 
Rule 37   
Contents of executive sessions and confidential memos must be kept confidential. 
 
 

Section XII 
APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 
Rule 38 - A 
1. Each Group A Board or Commission appointment will be linked to a specific Council 

seat.  This will be the “appointing Council member”.  Appointing Council members 
elected in 2010 (2014, 2018…) will be Ward 1A, Ward 2B, and Ward 3A.  Council 
members elected in 2008 (2012, 2016…) will be Ward 1B, Ward 2A, and Ward 3B.  
Appointments must conform to any special conditions in the City Ordinance   

 
2. The initial linkage of Board and Commission seats is attached (A).  

 
3. When a Board or Commission seat is vacant, the appointing Council member will have 

30 days from the date of the vacancy to make an appointment.  If there is no 
appointment after 30 days, the appointment will be transferred to the other Council 
member in that Ward.  If the seat remains open after an additional 30 days, the 
appointment will be transferred to the Mayor. The intent of the City Council is that a new 
appointment to a Board or Commission will be made prior to the expiration of the 
previous member’s term.  The above (1, 2, 3) apply to initial appointments  

 
4. It is the intention of the Council that a person serves no more than two terms on the 

same Board or Commission, except for the Library Board, which allows three terms.  
The Council Liaison to a Board or Commission can re-appoint a sitting Board or 
Commission member to a second term.  In special circumstances, the re-appointing 
Council liaison can ask the Council to approve a reappointment for a third term or an 
extension shorter than a full term. 
 
If the council liaison declines to make a specific re-appointment within thirty days of a 
vacancy, the seat is declared vacant and the initial appointment process applies. 

5. These rules apply to the following (group A)  Boards and Commissions: 

Building Code Appeals 
Plan Commission 
Infill Review Board 
CALOP 
Traffic Commission 
Green Practices Committee 
Urban Forestry Commission 
Historic Preservation Commission 
Park Commission  
Commission on Human Relations  



10 
 

Municipal Commission on Arts and Letters (15 members; 
(2 appointments for each Councilmember; 3 for the Mayor) 

Board of Trustees of the Non-Uniformed Employee Retirement Fund 
Board of Trustees of the Police and Firemen’s Retirement Fund 
Library Board Seats 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 are subject to the rules in 38-A 

 
Rule 38 – B 
1. The definition of Council seats 1A, 1B, 2A, 2B, 3A, 3B in 38-A (1) shall apply to the Civil 

Service Board.  Appointments must conform to any special conditions in City 
ordinances.  
 

2. Starting with the adoption of these rules, the next appointments to the Civil Service 
Board will be rotated as follows:  1A, 3A, 2A, 1B, 3B, 2B, M. 
 

3. When a Civil Service Board seat is vacant, the appointing Council member will have 30 
days from the date of the vacancy to make an appointment.  If there is no appointment 
after 30 days, the appointment will be transferred to the other Council member in that 
Ward.  If the seat remains open after an additional 30 days, the appointment will be 
transferred to the Mayor. 
 

4. The above (1, 2 3) apply to initial appointments.  It is the intention of Council that a 
person serves no more than two terms on the same Board or Commission.  If the 
Council liaison declines to make a specific re-appointment within thirty days of a 
vacancy, the seat is declared vacant and the initial appointment process applies. 
 

5. The Council liaison can re-appoint a sitting Civil Service Board member to a second 
term. 

 
Rule 38-C 
1. Seats 8 and 9 on the Library Board are defined in attachment A 

 
2. Starting with adoption of these rules, the next appointments to seats 8 and 9 of the 

Library Board will be jointly rotated as follows:  3A, 2B, 1A, 2A, 1B, 3B, M. 
 

3. The appointing Council member will have 30 days from the date of the vacancy to make 
an appointment.  If there is no appointment after 30 days, the appointment will be 
transferred to the other Council member in that Ward.  If the seat remains open after an 
additional 30 days, the appointment will be transferred to the Mayor. 
 

4. Reappointments to seat 8 and 9 are the responsibility of the Council liaison.  If the 
Council liaison declines to make a specific re-appointment within thirty days of a 
vacancy, the seat is declared vacant and the initial appointment process applies. 

 
Rule 38-D 
A Board or Commission seat shall be declared “vacant”: 
1. On the date when a member’s term expires, or 

 
2. On the date a member resigns, or 

 
3. The date a member is removed by other means 

 



11 
 

Rule 38-E 
If a Board or Commission member has 3 consecutive unexcused absences or 3 unexcused 
absences in a calendar year, the Council liaison can request that the Council send a letter 
to that Board or Commission member to determine whether the Board or Commission 
member wishes to continue serving, or wishes to resign from that Board or Commission.  If 
there is no response to the letter within 3 weeks or if the member continues to be absent 
without excuse, then the Council can send a follow-up letter informing the member that 
he/she is deemed to have resigned and will be replaced by the Council. 
 
Rule 38-F 
University City citizens may serve on only one University City Board or Commission at a 
time.  Anyone who already serves on one Board or Commission may not be appointed or 
re-appointed to a second Board or Commission.  This rule does not apply to the Mayor or 
Councilmembers. 

 
Rule 39   
Before providing the applications to members of Council, the City Clerk will check to 
determine whether a nominee has resigned from a board or commission prior to the 
expiration of his or her term.  Failure to complete a term by resignation shall be a 
disqualification for future appointment unless the failure to complete the term was beyond 
the individual's control. 
 
Rule 40 
Councilmembers are required to serve as liaisons to boards and commissions and will be 
appointed by the Mayor. These appointments should be rotated every two years, after the 
April municipal elections. 

 
The liaison serves as a communicator between the Council and the board/commission, 
and does not vote or participate in the work on the Board or Commission as a full 
deliberator. 
 
As liaisons, Councilmembers are required to attend Board and Commission meetings 
and report back to the entire Council on work of those bodies.  Such reports shall be 
presented in the Council Reports and Business section of the agenda of a Regular 
Council meeting. 



12 
 

 

   
ATTACHMENT A 

   
9/1/2012 

MEMBER LEVELS ESTABLISHED BY UNIVERSITY CITY CHARTER OR BY REVISED STATUTE OF 
LIMITATION (RSMO) 

 

COUNCIL APPOINTMENT SEAT  

    1 HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
  1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 

  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
     2 CODE OF APPEALS 
  1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
     3 BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 

	   1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
 

	   1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
 

	   2A Presently held by Paulette Carr   

	   2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
 

	   3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
 

	   3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
 

	   M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
 

	   M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
     4 Board of Trustees of the Police & Firemens' Retirement Fund 

 1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 

  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
   

Police Rep 
 



13 
 

  
Fire Rep 

     5 Board of Trustees of the Non-Uniform Employees Retirement Fund 

 1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 

  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
   

Police Rep 
   

Fire Rep 
     6 PLAN COMMISSION 
  1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
     7 MUNICIPAL COMMISSION ON ARTS & LETTERS 

 1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
   

Rotation 
     8 CALOP University City Commission for Access & Local Origination Programming 

 1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  2A Presently held by Lynn Ricci 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
 



14 
 

 3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
   

HEC-TV rep 
   

Charter rep 
   

School Liaison 
     9 PARK COMMISSION 
  1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
     10 TRAFFIC COMMISSION 
  1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
     11 L.C.R.A. Land Clearance Redevlopment Authority 

 M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
     12 I.D.A. Industrial Development Authority 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 13 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RETAIL SALES TAX BOARD 

 M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
 



15 
 

 M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
   

Loop SBD 
   

OBA 
   

School Board 
     14 URBAN FORESTRY 
  1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
     15 GREEN PRACTICES 
  1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
     16 COMMISSION ON HUMAN RELATIONS 
  1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  2A Presently held by Paulette Carr 
  2B Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  3A Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  3B Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  M Presently held by Shelley Welsch 
  

LIBRARY BOARD (SEATS 8, 9 – TO BE ROTATED AS PER Rule 38C-2)



16 
 

   
ATTACHMENT B 

 
   

2 
	  

mMEMBER LEVELS ESTABLISHED BY UNIVERSITY CITY CHARTER OR BY REVISED STATUTE OF LIMITATION (RSMO) 

     1 CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
  	  

Seat 1 
	  

 
APPOINTMENTS BY ROTATION 

  Seat 2 
   Seat 3 
   Seat 4 
   Seat 5 
        

     2 LIBRARY BOARD 
  Seat 1 1A Presently held by Stephen Kraft 
  Seat 2 1B Presently held by Terry Crow 
  Seat 3 2A Presently held b y Terry Crow 
  Seat 4 2B Presently held by Lynn Ricci 
  Seat 5 3A Presently held by Michael Glickert 
  Seat 6 3B Presently held by Rod Jennings 
  Seat 7 M Presently held by Arthur Sharpe 
  	  

Seat 8 
	  

 
APPOINTMENTS BY ROTATION 

	    Seat 9 
 	     


	August 3 2015 Regular agenda 
	2015-06-22 Reg
	2015-07-13 Commited reserve funds
	2015-07-13 Reg
	CM #! bicycle facility
	Council Cover Letter - Bike Facilities construction
	Traffic Control Company Bid

	CM #2 Heman drainage improvement
	Council Cover Sheet - Design - Southern Drainage Area of River des Peres
	150713_Heman Park South Drainage_Scope of Work
	Article 2:  Work Not Included in Basic Services
	Article 3:  Standards
	Article 4:  Extent of Site and Landscape Work
	Article 10:  Dispute Resolution
	Article 11:  Ownership and Use of Documents
	Article 12:  Governing Law
	Article 13:  Entire Agreement and Severability
	Jay Wohlschlaeger, PLA, ASLA


	CM #3 Audit contract
	Auditing Services Contract 
	Rubin Brown Letter
	Rubin Brown Letter

	Bill 9267 Stop sign Wash U Lofts
	Council Cover - Stop for Peds
	Staff Report - Lofts Ped sign
	TC Minutes 4-8-15
	Bill 9267 stop at Loftsdocx
	Schedule VI: Vehicles Required to Stop
	Table VI-A. School and Playground Stops Designated.
	Intersection or Street Crossing
	Alley behind 6241/6263 Delmar Blvd at the raised pedestrian walkway (Mews).


	Bill 9268 Map amendment
	cover_MapAmend_Wilson_Avenue
	Wilson_Ave_rezoning_CC_submittal
	Draft_Ordinance_Wilson_Avenue

	CM #4 EMS
	Agenda Item Outsourcing Emergency Transportation Services
	EMS #1
	EMS #2
	EMS #3

	Res 2015 - 18 Wilson buyout
	Council Cover Sheet - FMA Voluntary Buyout Policy 071615
	Voluntary Buyout Policy_updated 07162015
	Res 2015 - 18 Wilson flood buyout policy

	Res 2015 - 19 Hazard mitigation
	Council Cover Sheet - All-Hazard Mitigation Plan 072115
	All-Hazard Mitigation Plan Resolution - 072115

	Res 2015 - 20 Budget amendment FY 15
	Bill 9269 Forsyth Improvements award
	Council Cover Letter - TAP agreement
	5402614 Program Agreement FS_25
	5402-614 Program Agreement Pages 1-9
	5402-614 Exhibit A - Shared Lane Markings
	5402-614 Exhibit B
	1273 Exhibit C

	BILL 9269 Forsyth Improvements awarddocx

	2015-06 25 CALOPminutes - Copy
	HPC_minutes_2015_03_19_approved - Copy
	Council Rules for resolution July 14 2014
	CM #4 EMS.pdf
	Agenda Item Outsourcing Emergency Transportation Services
	EMS #1
	EMS #2
	EMS #3




